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(nop 'ma X747) 'xaynp 'y nop pIv
. . TN 82.3 -3 TN 75.6 -0 | M2 X77) pY nna g
A"nR T A" T (nop
o 5.0-> o ' 5.1-> MIND NN 9N
o/ o/ . L (CAGR) nav¥n 'mw 7ima
7.0%-> 3.2%-> 1503 T 'Mana
2.8%-> 1.9%-> -—- -—- nmd 'nina CAGR
[21 DRAINV N9 7191 DTV A9 "D 771D — (Roasted & Ground Coffee) pnoi 17 nop vanao
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. . o/ o/ m2yn N9pn plun Y
54.4%-> 63.1%-> 0905 DRI
mvn N9En pIvn Iy

73.8%-> 73.4%-> n i
D'NIND D'NINA
. . AT TR 45-> | 2T TR 484 90 NN 9PN

2"NX 2"NN
- - 1o it 3.7-2 o ' 3.7-> MIN2 NNDN gp'n
8.5%-> 8.1%-> - - 190> 7 'mina CAGR
1.4%-> 1.2%-> - --- nind 'mina CAGR
(Instant coffee) '‘xaiynp 'n'71y ona nop vVINao

. . o/ o/ m72yn N9pn plun V'Y
32.1%-> 36.7%-> 0905 D'NIMA
mvn N9En PIvn Iy

26.2%-> 26.6%-> n A
D'NIND D'NMINa
. . TN 26.4 - TN 27.8 -5 '90d NINDN 9P'N

A"NINAIT 2A"NIRAIT

- - o i'm1.3-o o iMm1.3-o MIN2 NN gp'n
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4.6%-> 3.9% -> - -—- nind 'mina CAGR
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— Euromonitor

190D 7IY MM - 'NAIYNZN "MM71VN N9 71V

(*) 2014 2015

22.5%-> 22.7%-> Nestle

14.3% -> 13.4% -> JDE
2.5% -> 3.0% -> Kraft Heinz
2.7% -> 2.9% -> JM Smucker
2.4% -> 2.8% -> Keurig Green Mountain

(**)Inc

3.1% -> 2.8% -> OIXTLVY
2.0% -> 2.5% -> Starbucks

Euromonitor a'wnn (177 mxnin 2014 mwa naman - (%)

707 11.3 qwo x1 o'o0n 0'01O7 (**)
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190D PIY NM - '71ya [INVI 1770 A9 71V
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3.8% -> 4.4% -> Keurig Green Mountain
(**)Inc
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3.8% -> 4.2% -> JM Smucker
3.1% -> 3.8% -> Starbucks
3.8% -> 3.4% -> OINLY

Euromonitor a'wnn 1>7v7 mxnin 2014 mwa oaiman - (%)
717 11.3 9o X1 o'901 0'09Y7 (*¥)

- Euromonitor 1ina ' 7y ,m'21yn onan nopa 71wa 0'™M'Vin DIZNWN 17 DRIM 707

190D PIY NM - 'n71yn 0NXn N9n gIY

(*) 2014 2015
A47.7% -> 48.4% -> Nestle
15.2% -> 14.7% -> JDE
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1.5% -> 1.4% -> Tchibo

Euromonitor a'wnn 1pTY7 mxnin 2014 mwa oaman - (%)

N'OIAIN NPI7NA NI'M7IY NOR NN VN 707

D''NINd D'NMINA NINDN
(*) 2014 2015

26% -2 25% -> N9N'N 211N
22% -> 22% -> n"2'070 NP
17% -> 17% -> NP INN |19¥
17% -> 17% -> ON"PINNI  N'NVOIX  ,N'ON
upEYN
10% -> 10% -> N9N'N NN
8% -> 9% -> N{PMONI [ID'NN NNTN

Euromonitor a'wnn 1pT7w7 mxnin 2014 mwa ooman - (%)
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JAB niprnrn Nxp fT-7V 1p'wa ,nopn NPWyna A TR107n nnan dwnm 2015 mwa
.Holdings

Keurig Green Mountain nx JAB nw>1 2015 NanyT wTina ,NIM'ya 0'MIoN97 oxNNA
Peet's Coffee napnxn nopn M2 nwn nwd1 2015 Naiopixa A1 Tk 13.9 naimn
oo .Intelligentsia n'xny¥yn napnkn n9pn M1 nwn nx LJAB nowaw & Tea

.DONID X7 Njzoyn

m2a 193 n7vonn ,Espresso House n'armpon nopn 'Na nwn nx JAB nwo 2015 i
NoZn ‘M2 w1 NX JAB nwoY wTIn NIk AT (1'7'n 328 naimn ,n'aannal nTava noyp
.DONID K7W DIDO NMMN ,7N1T2 N9 ‘N1 47 n7'vonn ,Baresso Coffee nutn

oyl ,JAB nu'waw ,DE Master Blenders nnan 2 airmn npoy nnwin 2015 7im
JDE (Jacobs Douwe nx nx' npoyn .2014 nmiwa nnnniw Mondelez nhan Yw nopn
44%-1 'R TR"! 3.8-> N7 Mondeléz nnan .nopn ninna nTmnn  Egberts)
nopn anim nNX Douwe Egberts n1on ,aimnn Noyn NRXIND .NATIANN NN2aNn NiNnn
NOPN AN NXI N [I'71 750-> ninn (Lavazza) nyxix'? nnan? Carte Noire 'Ron'Rn

.00119 X7w 0o nmn Merilld 2Th

nnonIw? n7w 19 nopn pova JV-a ninn 50% Mondelez nnon 2015 axNasa
Ajinomoto General Foods Inc

2 'Y 20 ,nnnnn v nRunn I nn wn? nNann NNWOKA 'R AT NIT Tvm? (im
.Mondelez-1 Douwe Egberts |2 airmn jwx1a1 JAB niprnkn n1an 7w nivoin Ny

N97A PIYA Nd¥a ninan .11.4

NIIN2 NTANNA ANMXA XN WK AN 7ITA 207 0K DIND AN N9pPn Ntwyn 7700
N7x217a0 NoOZN Nrwyn Euromonitor 1ima 197 NIXpYNNI [ITAN DINN JINA ‘AR yaon
W) L (Retail Selling price) 2015 mwa YT TR 75.6 ->2 nimdnonn nndn nxe
AT TR 5.1 7w nirkaynp nNDn oy 07V 19722 AWn MIKTD 97N v KN 7T
,6.7% 10 xwn no'k Nt N L7 2015 mawa Euromonitor 9% 12015 mwa
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[P N9y ,(Single Portion) nop Ni71I097 12> N'oN' NIWTN N9 NINIALZA NNIAA NNMY

LTI NI 7 N9 AI7'wa om noy ,(Ready To Drink) n'nw'?

NIMINNY NIWSWN 27 N9 N"NY |2 YW W' DN'D7 DjZNN NINNKD DY 500
pmn nimio 7w Dietary Guidelines Advisory Committee -n nrrnin 7wn? 1x1) nrarn
2°((FDA) napnxn nisnnn

nNopN NI71097 niNna Aniwo nx 2015 mwa nxipEn N2a'nIN NNMKRN Ninann 72m 98
NN1 NX NIpya n'7Tan XNy i ((JV) olox1ip 010 nivynxl) 7'maa (Single Portion)
NN NNN2 AXAPD DP'Un L9012 AWK 'MINNSNN A7W1 KXNIW DINNA N7W 71N

http://health.gov/dietaryguidelines/2015-scientific-report/pdfs/scientific-report-of-the-2015-dietary- *°
guidelines-advisory-committee.pdf


http://health.gov/dietaryguidelines/2015-scientific-report/pdfs/scientific-report-of-the-2015-dietary-guidelines-advisory-committee.pdf
http://health.gov/dietaryguidelines/2015-scientific-report/pdfs/scientific-report-of-the-2015-dietary-guidelines-advisory-committee.pdf
http://health.gov/dietaryguidelines/2015-scientific-report/pdfs/scientific-report-of-the-2015-dietary-guidelines-advisory-committee.pdf
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DX 7Y Dpwnn ,0'WTNE D'MYZ DANM 7Y NINDI 02N AR TN NY2IY Ny
N9 NIAIN 7¢ ANNXNIN (WXL PIYA NDNIXN NINANY ANXNN JIN NI 90N v D'wTn
man Lltamaraty -1 "Amigo" nopn anm NWDI 123 DRIV N7V NwDIn PI L Nt
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[7inw 931 2015 07na 23 nia nonivw 93 2014 mws nnann v 'miwn nima 11.3 qwo
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Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A. |2 nirmian 2 nnon 7n01 197 ,nnknna ,15.0% -1 8.0% -3) nnxnna ,16.0% ->al
2015 mwa 15.3% ->21 14.8% ->1 Milzn yavnl nNMXN NNdNON 7' N9 NIX' NNDN 7NV (N9 0IXKIVY NMANI
mipn yaona Trés Coragfes ninna nn'nxn .[INVNI 17PN 197N NINDNN YA ANAXD 'Y .ANKNN L'WY (10l
nXIwNa ,Trés Coragdes 7w pqn nopn Niwa 2iman xe 2015-1 2014 mw 170N 1wy 1'Nn NIK7YN Nopun
NI71097N1 NIIDAN NNDNA DX D2 90112 N9PYN NNDNA NNMXD .NNDNY NMIMD ANMY DI TPNYKR NI72apnn Niopny
N9IPNA NYOWNI ,MYN IURIN [IV2IN q10 DRP? 17nn Trés Coracdes nnn Itamaraty nnon .TRES animmn nnn

JMInn X7 N nnonn

2015 mwa nojp (50%) nop oxVw 7w nptn Nx niIdpwnn ,Trés Coracdes T 72y 7'Tan i Nopn NIX" NNDN
n2w1 2015 mwa n"w 1"t 56 ->2 T '9*7NN WY NIYOWN 7nvial) nnxknna ,n"Y i 13 ->a1 113 -2 'yann jvanal
NOPN NN N T Y IRN TTIRY Mivawn 'mimd 1o 9p'w 2015 nmawa opn ('wvaan vana Ny i'tm 9 -oa
NOFZN KRIX' NN §7'N MIYAYA MINd "1'Y 70 X7 MWD 7¢ 'W2In [Iyana CTRWR NITRagnn NISIpNnYT arIvna ,gnmn

JPNWUR 72pnn 1yan? arkingna 7' man pna

nNYY7 NYOWIN TPNWR NIApnn NIDIpNY AxIvN 'wan 1vatal 2015 mwa n"wa Trés Coragdes 7w nindnn nnny
,N"Y 1 154 -oa1 n"w i 412 -2 Andnon IT AN L77wn 7 7RORPTTIAN RN W vximnn Nyw Dp'nen

NNRNN]

,AMMNNN] ,Mwn 7w 'van ivatal 2015 mwa 10.5% -oa1 3.5% -2 N7 'ipn yavna Trés Coracgdes 7w m7ian niNn
NM7Ia0 NIFNINN .ANRNNA 'R RN 1M 198 -0a1 'K 9x i 740 -5 'wanin ivanar 2015 nawa nononi
2015 mwa nndnoni ,NNKNN] ,Mwn 7w 'vain ivatal 2015 mwa 1.1% — >a1 1.3% ->2 nT Trés Coragbes 7w
Trés v ' nopn NIyl 21ma 17wl Nopwn 70 NN AT .anknin L,27.8% -a1 29.1% -1 'wann jivanal
-22 'wain ivanal 2015 mwa a7y (MNNX NIRXIN 197) "2y9Nn NiNn - .a'nn NiIR'n T v 1pna mpw ,Coracdes
miynwnn 71man L(nxnpn ninr? o'onixnn Trés CoragBes Alimentos S.A. niniT Ix1) nnxknna ,47.6% -da1 1.8%
TIRYINA MDY 21 [IV2I] ZI'YI DN NIRXINA AT X7 M70 NN 71ma 'y mwn 7w ' [iyana '71iyonn nina

.TRES anmn 7w nifaiyonn
70902 NMdNon AN Ivanal 2015 mwa Trés Coragdes 7w “7zivonn ninn %y TRES anmn 7w n%70n nyswinin
ARIYNY ,NNRNN (K772 98 1 6 -3) N"w pifrm 6 -0 7wn ('R X i 15 -0) n'w ' 18 -0 7w *iyen
noizNa ('R R i 11 -3) n"w e 17 -0 7wn (R 7x i 35 -0) n'w it 53 -3 7w 7iven 1090

.((50%) nop oIXVWY 7Y NP7N DX D'9PWN DIININ) TPNWKR n727nn

VY7 NIXVIND NNA NRYN

NIyaovn 1720 ,091N 'NN DTN ARYIND 121 ,2ynn 7m nron 'on' niadINI NYI'XRAPZIXRI N'0ON2 197190 "awnn nnpya
(TITNJ 70NN NI v nwa? D'DWHW) 'K IMMIKRN 271TN TA1d NIAYY7 ,07TOINN NIYavnn 7 Miynwn nNin'oe NYI'RAPZIXI N'ON

JNANKNA NN TR INNNNN 12100 L2 D (D77 DN 'w1dn? DY) 77wn 7In 7N

NIvIPNT NRNIwM ,nnxNN ,42.9% -511 44.4% ->1 'vann jivanal 2015 nwa inny mipn yaona Itk nnann Nnon
N'0N NIYAVNA DMIN'DN YR 7V 1WXINNY 1'NN NIKYN IR 197'Y NN Yaouna NNann NNDN CTRNWR Dapnn

LW MR IRPINRD TR A NIROPINI

NIDIPNYT IXIYNL ,ANKNNA L'WY [1IvaN 'y K77 NNt 2015 mawa n"w ' 33 ->2 nuj N"wa NIt NNann NN

HPwn 7m 9N 0v'"9 Dinn 'waonn 1WoswInt , TPNWR NI7apnn

['219
NISIPNT NRIYNL ,NNRNNA ,'W2AN [Ivand 12.8% ->2 1m1 2015 nmiwa 1.8% -52 17y mipn yaona 7192 nnann nnon

27T NIPTNNN TY? ANanY (NP 1p'va) Nt Nop Niva Aty ma 'nn NIKYUD IDP'Y NNDNN CTRNWR Dizapnn
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NYUNINNY NN AT D1, TPNWR NRIpnn NIDIipn? ARIgNa 17190 1017t 1210 (7NN NN WM 1AY) 'K KD

DNANXN N'NiNNn N2'a0 vy 2y ,'vnnan |IlV27d DXRY 1N

NIDINY AXIYNL ,NNXNN L'vA0n [ivanal 2015 mawa n"w r'em 20 ->a1 22 -02 1Ty ,n"wa ,|"72192 nNann ninn

LU 7m R 19190 01T 7Y NYY Np'nwn 1vswin N"Ya nNonn CTENYR DI7agnn

n'nnN
NN NIdvIPNY ARIvN2 'wann 1vanal 2015 mwa 0.6% -511 19.1% -31 17y mipn yavna n'anna nnann nnodn

.2014 72nvo0 170N NN7wIn MYDIY "R 19PN ANm a2 NIYTN NNDN DM 2 ,N97Wn NNDNN NNMY . TRNYUR

.11.1% -3 nn'n 2015 mwa mipn yavna nNann NNDN NNy LM 7nun

TX7 N12an? ' N9 Niya 'Y NIy N NIKYNE IIMd anay n9p'w 2015 mwa mipn yavna nnbna anmsn
MN2NN NNDA CTPNWR N7pnn N91pNT ARIYNL ,nNn I T (7N N9pn Wi 12Y) 'RnKn 12T NIpTRNN

TPNWR 79700 (1217 AXIYNA NMNoNA NIZWWOA N M9 Vil 7V Wi  NIMMimd NITAY 197w [1lyand

NIDIPNY ARIYNL 'Y [Ivana n'w 'rm 9 -5a 1min 2015 mwa n"w it 19 -51 19y nnMa ,n"wa ,nnann nndn

Lpwn 7m X annn IK7N 7Y Nyw n'ny Ywa 0tYe DN 'waon 197'YI, TRNWR DITagnn
i i i i i

.(9.0% -7 24.0% -n) N2 im "xm v n"van 17 1.6.2015 2

n'aA10

NI NIvIpN? ARvNa 'wann (Ivanal 2015 mwa 5.8% -d>a1 0.5% -51 1T ,mipn yavna ,n'a102 Nnann NiNdn
JITMNNNN D200 N9INN APy DNA NRAYIE N DYIT N9 'ANM NOTYNY NOIX NNANn 1YSUIn NNDAN . TPNWN
A7ITN 7mM R mipnn yaonn DNy IR?  NI7'Yon 7w NIFNiMa NNyl 02102 NNDNN ITNNA NN Dnnnn 7wa
[A2 W DT NWIDN NI NIKAN DIY7 AIFTNN IR NN2NN NDTY NN NIRZYN YXA7 Nnynixn N7 'Rpnkn
DdINN) N"W |I"7'n 22 -> 7w 102 nw1on nxiapn 077 2015 niwa ,oxNNA .00 NI7'YSY 0'oniMmin 0TWNIN M7 0'od

.2015 nanx1a 31 o1'7 ov90d5n NiNIT? 15.3 Ik IxY 0901 0'01OY .(2015 7w 'van Ivana mw n'v it 14 -5

NIapnn NI9IEN? AXIwNa 'valn ivanal 2015 mwa n"w pf'rn 9 -5a1 22 ->1 nop n1o0a ,N"wa ,Mann nnon

LU 7m R 1000 11T 7w NYY D'y 7w 077 DN W9 IWOWINI, TRNWR

prall

NI72NN NISIPNYT NRIYNL ,NNRNNA ,'w'an (1vanal 2015 mwa n"w if7n 15 -3a1 42 -52 nojp 7xwa2 nnann nnon
27U 'Y NYOWN 21 NIM'OPOXR 1'NN NIMINN ARXINDI NI NA'0I0I'R N'NNNN 120 Vi) 7V N0 AT, TRNuR
,IN'DNNN NIdIRAN NININD Ninton NIty 1o ,2015 n''nna Imn 7in 7w 9Ine 1IN0 NIy L2 Md .NNDNRN 7nnn
A'07 NNI9-N9 .(NNXNNA ,N"w 117 1 -1 13 -3) PI'wI NNDN NIRXINA 7700 NINIT N7V 1210 [N2 NInTi 07 TIana
28w o 7w "avsnn niNn .8.6% -3 'vaann ivanal 4.3% -> nnn 2015 miwa nnnna T Itan 2N A nrvn
IYONN NN DTN CTPNWR NI72Apnn NIDIZNYT ARIYNA 'YAIN [1y27a '1'w K77 Nt 2015 mava n"w ' 17 -2 1
(7N NOEN WO QW) 'KPINKRN 7T NIPTANNNI NNANYT 20 N9 NIYa n'7un ,7'W7 MK NNDna TN nyan
NIRYINA DT 7RI 0NN N9PN 7W NPOOXRN MWW 1ID'W TAIN TPNWX NIapnn NI9ipn? nxivwnl ,n"wn 110

Q'7vonn

xwa Dr{eirh] ni''yo

non 11.2% -21 vopINIvo ' 7y np'TNN 2015 MWy 1211 7RW ITN PIYA D772 MWD NN2ANN N2 OIRIVW DX
Piun (Tpnur n7amn noipna 11.5% -27 nxknwnl) '90> Y NN N1FTN 'RAIVARD PIYA NIRYUANT [ITAN IV
NIRPYNNI 1IN I 272y 2015 niwa ,007111V0 'S 7Y .01IY D'INNA NNANN N7VID A1 NXIAPD 7U NN PIY KID 78W2

.0"0> 0'minm 1.9% -11 "xwna
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SINW N9 NIP'WO ,NNINI ARYNIT DN NID'RI NIXNA NIR'ON DR D770 78W 0IKNVY NXAR 7w niwon 79D ninodn

.(4 mn) 7 W' 0'n OINNLVY NI7'YSI 7XIWI 111 O7n NI7'WD

n"y 2'rm 4,128 -5% nxnwna n"w ' 3,982 -0a Yxwn oIkduw nxiap Nirws 975 nnon mdnon 2015 mwa
NXRIYNL N"w 217 961 -21 7RIW 0IXNVY NXIAR NI7'YO 775 NN IndNoN 'l (1vana .3.5% -3 v o'y, Tpnur
nmion Ny o ,2015 n'nna mn 7N 2w 9pm7? mo1d niva .1.0% - v o TEnux Ny 21'm 971 -4
NI7YN A0 K77 .71'W1 YDA NIRYINNA 770D NI N7y N0 [N NIMTI DMWY TIANa ,NNDRNA NdRan Ninand
0.6% -> 7w nnu1 2015 nmawa 1.7% -> NN'n 78w 0IKNVY NXIAR 7Y NI7'WON 725 NNDNA AT L|ITAN 710 NIyl

L'V'aan |1vyana

X' OINILVY DINN

n1an ' % 73w oIVY NIT'YD DINN W D710 DINTA 7Y nooiana N'Zoyn NIT'YOA NINXIN Nrxnn |7aY

(n"w ar'ypa) 2014 -1 2015 12anyT2a 31 Dira iInmnonw 01IY2171 0IY7 NIPYON

Y17 1y nvY

mw % 2014 2015 mw % 2014 2015
D''N NID'NI NIXMA ITAN
(0.2%) 465 463 (3.8%) 1,974 1,898 101 NN
5.8% 44 47 (7.6%) 203 188 21y9N NIN
9.5% 10.1% 10.3% 9.9% 2ivon nin %
NXINI ANYN 1TAN
3.1% 218 225 (3.0%) 998 968 101 NN
(38.1%) 20 12| (16.8%) 112 93 719N NIN
9.2% 5.5% 11.2% 9.6% 21von nin %
787w' OIXNIVW DINN D"NO
0.9% 683 688 (3.6%) 2,972 2,866 101 NIN'DN
(0.6%) 274 271 (7.6%) 1,196 1,104 mY12 NN
40.1% 39.5% 40.2% 38.5% mY1a nin %
(7.9%) 64 59 | (10.9%) 315 281 "1lyon NN
9.4% 8.6% 10.6% 9.8% "“1yon niN %
nnn

-3 99 1Y'wa DT NN DTN NIRIENIRDA M L(N"Y it 106 -3) 3.6% -1 vt oixdovw ninon T 2015 nawa
v nnona AT (D" ' 30 -3) 3.0% -3 v iv'wa pTr ANt ARani anyn nnal (n"w it 76 -3) 3.8%
N7'NNA |ITAN 71N 7 7IN7 IN0'D NIAPYA ,H012 .NI'VPZOX 1NN NIMINE NI N'A'0101R NMINNN 120 Vi 7y 7'l
MDA NIRYINM 7700 NMIT DY 1210 [N NIATIR DIY7 TN ,NNDARNA NIdIRAN NININS Nintion Nt iano ,2015
niNn 'Y .1.5% -> nn'n 2015 miwa nnDna 2T L Imn 7N DN o7 nnie-no .(n"w i'7n 63 -3) pirwi
NoIPNA NNI9-N9 71vonin niNnn w'wi 38.9% - KN MKd NIV A1'07 NNNIS-ND TPNWK N7apnn N9Ipna M71an

.("avonn niNn 7 nyown X77) 10.8% -> n'n TpNWX n'7apnn

-3 7w 1y'wa nvy N RNt anyn 1 L(n"w it 5 -3) 0.9% -o1 7xw oixdow ninon 1y 2015 Y 'vhann jwana

.(n"w 1" 2 -3) 0.2% -> 7w Wy'wa AT AN DN NIRIENIRNA TN, (DY ' 7 -3) 3.1%

NIM7YN AI'07 NNIS-ND 'y NN [1IvaNa N"Y [1"7'n 15 -7 dnon 7'W7 NImxd NNDNNn NIdIRNN NININD 1110 YWX NIM7Yn
AI'07 NNIID-N9 TPNWR 72N [1vana mian ninn w'w .3.1% -3 nnn 'wann [Iyana ninpna 2un L Iitan gin
NINN 72V nyswn X'77) 9.7% -> XIN TPNWK 772mn [Iyaia nnio-no 7ivonin ninn y'wi 38.8% -3 Xin Wmxd ninvn
JNIY NINIALVRA 'NN DTN YT Y 1702 TTIRW ,'MIMd 71 N97'y 'WNn [Ivadn NNDna n'vn L("21venin

mY12 NN
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NoIPN? NXNWNL , N7 nirnina 1.7% 7w o'y Jim ,n"w ji'm 92 ->1 Yxwr oixduwa m7ian ninn T 2015 nawa

.m0 nirnina 0.4% -> 7w AT 7N, Iman 2IN 2 DYn 07 nnig-No L TRNWR N7ann

NIPTNNNIL, (D TPWI DTN LIRPPZ) D72 NN N7y nnion NN NN ,NNDNna AT gpwn 2015 niwa m7in nina ot
17X . TPNWUKR NI7T2apnn NIDIPN? ARIWNA ,N"wUn Ta1d (D7an Nninn 770 0'wi11 0NA) 2'770W 91 'R inRn 17T
TPNUR N72pnn N9IENY7 o MWD 7Y NMYN N'¥NN2 270 NIPARE M70 2700 'nn N1 T 2V pva opna immip
,2A7N 1TYNn ,NINAY7 N2 D 270 XM 7Y NNV 150N 1P'Ya 0NN NNANN N7TIN MWD WY Ivadn N7'Nna)
NYOWN T 2V ;0"709Nn 190102 NTIIRNI XD D70Na niytnn D% T 'Y (3%-7% 7w nnoa awyin A%n1 270 nIkpwn

.("M1'nV) NNaNN YW DINK D72 YNAIN Y'MNN DTN DAIRD 1'NN AT 7W Ao

NXRIYN  nm7in nirnin2a 0.6% 9w 1o i ,n"w r'em 3 -01 xwr oixdvwa m7ian ninn 1 2015 v 'wann jlvana

Dm0 nernin2a 0.7% -3 7w vy 0, pimn zin a2 Dy a7 nnaig-No L TpNWX n'7'apnn noipny

1N A1) NN NdRNRN NININD DY aro 7w 77w nyown qpwn 2015 v 'wann lvana m7ian nina jiopen
NN NITYY Y D20 NYOYN L, TAmI NIM0PZON 1NN NIMIN TYY ,'vann 1vana n'w it 15 -7 mononw (imn
190N NTARNI XD DYANA NIVINN DN L, TENIYR n7apnn n9ipnt ona (70 2701 J'va) 07an nin 1aana
.N1ANINN 'NNA AT ,D7Y9N

2Iyon NN

9.8% -71 nndnoni 0.8% -1 N1 n*2wvonn nirnmnt ,N"Y 17 34 -1 YR oixvwa fvonn ninn T 2015 nawa

J'vonn nirnina 1.0% -3 7w T a0, imin 7in a2 Dy aro? nnlis-no .nndnnn

nnononi 0.8% -o2 T n*avsnn nirninni,N"Y I 5 -21 7xwr oikdvwa iveonin ninn T 2015 v 'wann plvana

J'veonn nirniM 1.1% -> 7w a1 a0, pimnn 2in a2 Nty anro? nnie-no .nndninn 8.6% -1

M (It PINT ANII9-N9) M71a0 NINA [10'P J7'Ya NOZwN MW 7w 'va1n 1vaar 2015 mwa “iysnn nima a1
197 n"w I'7m 11 -3) n"yn TN NIV 19'Y A2 N01dNN 101 ,NIKIIYARZ NN A1 1'va 0poion NNt nwion ,2015
NN NN L|'9"¥2 DI DR"I7INNE DNiva wTNn A"I'7 00 9w 7apna nhon P L (Mwn nnumiw 7R 0IkNVYA 0N
197 8 Qo Ix1 0'9011 0'V19Y7 ,2015 NanyT L )PdNIMD DYYWIN DNIY7 Naynn .wTNN A"I7N7 1aynn NNaona ,wny Nl
TPNUR NI7APNN NIDIZNN '7M X NIM7IYON NIRXINA 107 T 7V NN ATTIZ "721y9Nn NN AT CTARNN {70V JIRN
7V nyown N77 1t 7N 1aa Niryn AIro DX DA 17702 wn NIFIYONN NIKXINA NIY7210 'Yl NN NIRYINA (1070

S21VONN NINN Y0

MIX'72'2 0'NNnni 0*720n Ni'7'yo Dinn

NIY¥NARAI ,NTIPI 2"NINA "NN20" NIyy¥nRa 0'nnnl 0'7200 AX'ONE NRIYNA  NNdIN ,NIX'N  ,NNNSA AXIAPN IT NI7'yoa
N¥IPN 7¢ NONIYN DLW DTN NIYYNAKA ,NNX 7D ,NIY¥ANA N72IX NI7'Y91 NN20 NI7'WO .n'7100IKAl 17'opna "n7aN”
YN NU'W 0'01 7V N7910UN N72IX NI7'WOAI NN20 NI7'YOL n¥IAEn 7w np'7n 'xinwnn nima .(Nnx ‘72 50%) 17'099 7wl

JITRNN

nMNNLVE 7992 nN2o 7w 'podn piwn NN LIRI D Sy .A"NANa AN A7Iman 0ivnn 0NNl 0'720nn MN2aN XN NN20
28.5% -27 nxuwim (71wa 1 190n) 27.8% -1 72w Ty 2015 nan¥Ta 27 -2 mrmonw niviawn 52 -2 nixnn o'ninnn
62.7% -27 nxnwna ,60.7% -> 7y Tay N9IFN NNIKQ 0OININQ NN20 7w '90dN PIWn NNI . TPNWKR N'77ajpnn noipna

JPNUR R7apnn noipna

7Y NN1 N1'Nan n72amn nnann "' NNann D I'IX" ,AMMKRN QX 2V .0"ninn DI'X NNDHRN o' 1ol lralvle]ial
niva nnann ¥ nnonn Qi'na N7y Nnw 17'opna Nl N'7700IN |N AYKRD LI'OpN DI N'77001K2 OIMINN DINNA
2015
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1(100% 7w niwa Wy'v q1ay n"'v 21'7'm) 120 nian nir'ysY n'Mnal ntood nhaml |1aY

1ynn 1IyanY DYy
2014 2015 2014 2015
357 344 1,288 1,422 nNN
30.1% (3.6%) 13.9% 10.4% nnmnmy
19.5% (4.7%) 14.6% 1.7% Y20N NYsSWN 7N01a NAIK NN
36 57 181 188 NINNKX NIXXIN 197 719N NN
10.1% 16.4% 14.0% 13.2% 2ivon niN %

JpnuX? axnwn 0w 7' 134 -1 1712 2015 mawa nhao ninon

JPNUR 7apn 1van? arkiwna 0’ fzm 13 -31 no 2015 nav Yw 'y j1lyana nnao hintn

IXY) 77U 7m 7R RPINRD Y72TN 7w Ny NIRTRNN A2 0'1AI'N DINN 'WI9nn n2Iv7 1wswin 2015 miwa nnao nindn
qQlo'x 7w N nyoswn qona nivpwn 2015 mwa nnao nnodn L("N'%n nao0a oti'w” P91 '9'7n WY Na0 oA

.MYN 1UN [IY2IN N7' NN YX¥INNY NNANN 7w nnaxinn omin nirx (recall)

[I¥272 2"NINA 0'NNNNE 07201 NNIR0RA NI NDING ANMY 1R N9PYN MWD 7 'Waan [1Iyaia 1020 NNDN TN
NN17 NXIYNL L,'N2IN [1IV212 2"NINA 0N N0 W PIWn NN 97 102 21, TPNWUR 72700 [1yal? axivna 'ndinn
7V 0on ;TPNWN '727nn (121 62.7% -7 nxiwna 'ndinn (1yana 62.0% v 190> 7w NN1) TpRWR 7200 [1yana pivin

(IR m1ma

N7apnn noipn? arnwna n*2wesnn nirnin 0.8% -3 7w AT im ,n"w ' 7 -2 71 2015 nmawa faiyenn ninn
nX 0'opwn n"y 17 15 -3) nnxmin (recall) qio'x 7wa n"w ' 29 -3 7w 102 'NIv TN NP7 NIRXINND . TPNWR

2015 miwa pirwi NN NIRXIN 7w Mojpnd 7721 T 0100 .(50% -2 nxiapn 7w npin

NXRIWNA N*2Wonn nirniMa 6.3% -3 "o v m ,n"w e 21 ->a 71 2015 maw v 'wanan ivana fziyenn ninn
5 -3) onxinn (recall) qio'x wa n"w 'ty 9 -d 7w 102 NIV ThN NI771D IY2IN NIRYIN .TPNWR n72jpnn noijpn?
7N YN Iyana pirgl n0on NIRXIN W mopnd 7901 nr 0o .(50% -2 nxnpn 7w np'n nx o'opwn Ny irm
PIMYN YARND DT P7TN NN %W D2t nyown NN 7'Nnn NYSwn Qpun 'whann ivadn v yesnn nina

(Mwn 7w 'wwn Ivana Irwn ynrna 7ma INK?) IgNWR apnn (ivan? nxivna

N7

:(100% 2w ni7va y'w 11ay) 221X NN NiY'ys? 0'Nal 090> DM |1aY

-3 7w nNmy) TENYUXR n7apnn n9ipn? ,n"w r'rm 79 -3% axiwina ,n"w 7 82 ->1 monon 2015 niwa n7aIk nnon

TPNUR n7apnn noipn? arnwna 16.5% -> 9w nrva nnonon n"yw nyswin 7nvia mwn nnonn nnmy .(4.4%

.N'00IK2 NNDNA 71ITANn 7'V Nyain ninbna n"2un

TPNWUX N72n noipna Ny 1M 28 -37 nrnwna ,n"w (1" 29 -11 monon 2015 miw 7w v (ivana n7aix nintn

nxiwna 19.0% -3 7w n7pa nnonon N"yw Nyswin 7Nvia nmwin 7w 'waan 1lvaia nnonn NNy .(1.5% -3 7w nnmy)

JIPNWUR 720 (1val?

JIPNWUR N7 noipna N i 31 -57 nxnwina n"'w 19 27 ->1 nonon 2015 mwa "21ivonn 10900
JPNWR 72700 (1van? nnima 0" 7' 1 -n ninsa nbnon 2015 7w 'yrann (iyana f21iysnn 10900
NNNX NI'I'7'Y9

OINTVY NI7'YO 2D 17X NI'WD "an NIMP'n N7'won "NiNNK NIf'wo" 1Tand 0"'902n NINIM NI77210 Ni7'wo nxinpy

1N oM nI7'vel o
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7¥ DTANIN'Y L[12'07 D' NIDWN 7Y NNWYI RI'Y D200 ,NIM'9A 0N 21Y2 N7'W9 NNANN ,0M OIXIVY NI7'WS NNAoNa
.N'22R1 'O 7KW YA NPY N

NI7'YoN [I2IX-NT DNINNY DMD0N 7U MY 7V 1'RN N¥IAPNn NN2N 0Y D' OINIVY NAN NNANN ARNN NITA N9I7Na
178 D'MD0N MIYN NRXINDILGNIYA 0T Dd0NI NN NNAYNI N97NN 071D TWKIL['02 0'A OIXIVY XN qNIYNAN DTN
D7YIN MK AR-NN )70 MR DXRp Dptnna 66% nant ,34% -7 50% -n qniwnn 0T Anann nptnn Ty
0"90d NINIT? 12.6 7Ix2 IXY ,0'001 0'0197 2015 Mv v 'wwn [Ivadnn 7nn 071010 NINT Q7NYnl NN N9IEN2
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YTOIN DY ONONN TN IR NTOIN X L, AYPYNN DY 590N NYIDNN NNNM INRRHDD MNYN DOV
D9YDN WININN IZAPTPY DY TITIAYTHN WA 73 TN TWUR DI TNYN DINMITNIN MDD
9Y NMY RNND MNMYN NVIY DIV INRY ,NYPYNN DY 09902 9D TUND 991 99 NN 1090
D230 NXPII ION T NP TN 4997 NN MTA MINN MINN IY0Y 9P ,Navnn 93 0190
MYN NVXY 13D NOMOLNPN NPINMN NIINA NYPYNN NIYNHD PON INNNN PLMND MY NYOD
RALY YAy
SV NIVYNN 92 DII0N NP WYY DOTHIND DY 1IN DX PN DN YD1 Ty NN TON
TOANN DIV INND ,NYPYNN DY D190 TIVN .TIY DTN TOINN NNINNRD 1211 12 TINNN NYPYIN
920 RINOR MINNDN MWD NOOW 29D Yap) MNY NYPYNN DY DMAaD1 TN DY MY RO 7Y NN
T DPPN TOaN

199919 DYPIMNNN D29VIV XY DIDI) 3,11

MYNNNI POV PNN DNIAVIY DM 1192 MY OX NINIY DPINMND DXDIID ONINDN DXNVIV N DD
STUNRNN YN MYNNINI KDY 90 NPOY

D770 NM2APIKY MNPNA .NNIAPN DY MHIRNIVNN NP1THN 29 DY D¥DIIN DY T11) ,NTINY OXPININD ONPD DIV
OPIMND DNNDNT NN 12 DD NN NMYY NI, PINN MNYM DD TIVN 1210 TN 190,000
DPNNPN NNNSN DXNNNN BN NIINY

NNYIND OXMIAPW OXTDIN N ONNT 121 NINY PIMNI DI DY MUNIN MDD NYa TIY NN 0170
12y DYV TIY NTPH TOIN DY 1208HN DIZ0Y TY 03101 DXNNT TOIM NI DXAPI ,WTNND NTITHIN
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07215 Mavn 3.12

NI NTPONY MM 3.12.1
MY OMNIP DMZYN NNSYN NXAPN PAYY NPOYN DPD INRD NN NPN NITHNI NTPND NN
PN APIAND DYDY DYNYWN DHYY NYPNYN IN DPVIYN MIANNND 1Y TPINY DN NTIN
MNPNA TOOM NNID INXIND MAPI DY INRD MIALN PHXI NI NTPON MIDNI PPONY
.DMMVYP DIMPY DITIVN IPD 1DONNIY

NI NAVAY AN 3.12.2
55 12y TI9 MAVINND DY INNRD MIVN I NITHA NAVN NN PH NP KW VI MMDINHN
N9PNL POV DMWY MNNNA INdNIN DXTNYNIY MHPNYN NAVNN DD NTNHN T DY ,NNON
PIDNN YD) DY NN MNYN NN PNONT NIIY 290 TN 1T NAVN MNTIP MNPNIY NPNONN
M2»NNNN NYAIN YT DY NITHN NN PHA VI L(DIIN) MVPNNNN DY IV NN NN NYIP NNIAPN
DIMYY 9D, NITHN NAVN 1PI2 MNNNN NTTHY WHRIUY NPNN NYY RITHN NIVN X2V ,(DDN)
JOMHYN NPT NOPN NOPNN VAP
MOONI MTINY NPIIXNP 2IN MNN DY 905N 280N DY MITH TIRN ,NNIWNN XN PPN NV
YOI NMAPNNNN .NXIAPN NMAPNNN DY MANINNT ININD OINT JDYW YA0NT MY SXTNNY NN
ANIOVPN YN 2NN DX (1PN DRI 1IN DIVY DMINIVPNR DITDAM DN DI NMODID NXIAPN DY
DRNN NMINITN NN NOOY 297 THON
NRIVN ,OMINIVPN D>TOSM OXNNT NID NITHN NIV I VI L(DIN) MAMNNNN DY WTINHD DTN
(1257 VLYY PVLMDIY D) DIDIIN NIPN DY NYIVYNL INWID MNPV 197 ,(1N12>T LYNID) MIDIN YD) DY
LD09TIYY MY NN Y915 NN 79T, MaP) WIHN M
NN MDY YW YN P NINK NAVN NNONY MAMNNN DI NNNX NIV NNIN YOI NITPN NXAPN
TIND ¥ 391, NNNNRD NNIONN 1PHI MANINKD PHDY ¥ DNN MMONN 9TV WHNYND NIVIVND N9IND
TMONN PH2 NYY MININNKN DX PHDOY NNX NMONA GTIVN NN WHNNY IN IV DD DY MINNNN NN PHOD
PINT I NINKRD
S9Y MINSIN P02 NIYIN ,TOON NNIY NIPTIY VI NN

N3N NN AVOIN MY 3.12.3
172NN TINND DXNNA YAPY TN PO IN AP 39 MAVND ,NTTH 998D OITYD MIAVN NP
.DOVNY NTMY MAYNNNN 12 TN OXNN YSINHD NPON .AVNN DY XON pidod
95 HY ININIITY ONNNA NP PITD NINIAN DT NYNN D> DIVYND NRNINY MIAPNNNA NN NP
NN XD ©Y01 DY T

NN DN DYYN MNPOY  3.12.4
TPNOIN AND NPV NY2 NIXNN NAVNN NN ,DXTIVA DYTHD DAPNI IOV NIRXIND NP NI1ANN

Black ) 05 P92 5711102 windw 7IN ¥yapiw ,npavnn TN NPXNIND YW NN MY DXNNA ,D>TAIYD
.(& Scholes

9901 9272 NIAND MWD DY DODINNA TPNNND AN DY NHWIAND NMPN THND NDIA NAVNN
DWW NAY TUN NPSIND

PNV MY  3.12.5
MOYNN MIVAR KDY PN 19INT NAPNNN NXIIAPN IYUND NINXIND DXAPT) DITYY PV M
0NN NNV NION 29 DY HNPNN YN TVIND DI 290 DI T INVIAY 7110025

mwuian 3.13

,72¥2 YNINNY YIPRND INNIND  AYANYI IX TVIVH 1PN MDIND ¥ NNIAPY TWRD NI NYIaN
MMNNN PIYYOY NPYISS ML DY ODOY DN YT D MNAN TUND) 1IN0 19N ITNNRD NN
MWD DR GPYNRN ,0N 95 NP2 NYYWI OO TRYN DNMIVNDN DTN PN O DY MYap) MYIann
SYHONIYRND 12D DITPY NI MIA»NNND DMOPHNIDN DNDPON DX DI DY TN TIVD MOvIVn pwn

030 NIN NN GPYD 1IN DY N9PN YD1 OXRNIN NYIONN DY D901 TIVN .N1aNN

.MINNNN NN PIDN N12NN DX D2APNY NDUNY NYYNY INTN ,ONX P, DX MY DI NN NNIPN
.YI9N DI HY N9 1IN MW XA 10NV DISON

1N ,NINONN NN DIDDN NN TIIND I KDY TURD IN ,NPYITI MAVND YINW YITHY NN KD TUND
NPY5YI NMIAVNA VINIYD NYIDP M0 DY NIPNIA LYNY DN MAPNNNY NN
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(qunn) mwyHen  3.13

IN DN TONN DIVYM NN MNPYY NVNINY TRV NMON NIYONR NXIAPN TYUND NI 2N MOWH YN
D200 MIPYNND MYIANN MDD IINONN AR NOD IYIANN .NMONN YY DAY YN 110N NNIAPIY
NIAPN DY MOWNIN APMIDWAT MDNPN 1PN TUR) 22107 MW NID1I2 MO

NMSYY DY MO NAPN T Y DONNIN HAPNNY NMOXN MAVNN TYND NN DITAIN DNND NYIN
M5V YV SNONN TIVN PR TININ 19 5y NTTHI NYISNN .NPHIND TPINNNNA NTHYN NRIIND MY SN9aN
NN DYP TYWNNY 1) PN MIYN DY ORI TIVM NNIND 510929 HRNN

52 NWI9N .NXIAPN DY D3N DIPOYN TONNA DMVAYN DY NIRXIND JIXD NPVAYN MIYIN I NMIYION
IUNI ,I2Y2 WNINNY NN INNIND  DYANYN IR NN DVAYNI MIINHD NP NXIAPY TUND NI NIYIN
9O 19N NN THIND 1N MANNNN PIPDD DMY5YIN DXANWNY WITN NNIAPN D NY IWUNND A0 INY
X2 OMIANN DNIMITHN DTN NMY .NNAPN NIIVY IMNDN DN 12 A¥NY DNMNN NIN MYIAN HY 512
SNONN 1Y 285 INXIN PR MYISNN 129 .OPNIRYINT NN XIM INND ONTY IWON YN DPVIUN DIIHN

JPMNN NPR PPN NYIVN

mon 3.14

oM NYONn  3.14.1

NYAPTIY TNNNN DY ININN ONYN 19 DY NTTHI MIIND NPINHN NOIDNN - MIND NPON - 3.14.1.1
NDIINA NN NP NN MM NPINDI MININ ,MIINN D% ,9IPNND DTN N
TNNNN NYAP MNP DY NNNDN DY MODYANND NININN DONIVAVHIN DINIIDN IWNRD
NINNY NMDYN NINDN NITNN MIYON NN NN 19N TIYND MIVAN NNMP NN
DY NOVN) MANYI PR NONIND ,JN0 I9IND DTTHY NN NPOYN P2 NNV IN
5 MNYI TN PITD INIUNI MPON .J2000 I9IND NTITNHY NINY NDIDNN 191 NIINDN
59 119D MDISND NN NIN MNPOYH MYINN 7 MDION .NNNNN DY SNONN TIVN
NN ONIYRD NP N9

N ,MPYI N NN D ,NNN NPDYI DX 1192 MMY 1N DN DMIPNIa
SV NN MNYN D02 DY WYY NNNNN NINSPN TWNRD ,T19)2 2>57 D 220D NdPVYI MOIdNN
L7921 209 9o

DMYVYNL D3 XYW NN 3.14.1.2
MMND NPODN NNIAPN INNDNI ,DMOYNI DM dPYIN NN NMNPOYHD NDION
DPYINNI NDIINNY TD ,NPOYN 22> P NYNIDN ,NTIND NMPN 19 DY DY) DIMPY)
NP 7YY NI PNTI DXADNN DXNPYM NNNDNN NDIDNM ,NPOYN TN NN
MODT/NMINN NVONI MM NON MIXPOYH NMYINND N2 MDDTI/NMNNIN AN
R)iabja]

9P MM NHIvYHN  3.14.2
NN NNPN THIND MM ,MIDIWAN NIDNI NNNDN TYN NP NNDN NIDWNN NMIDIDN

OMPYUN MOIN  3.14.3
VTOIN .MIVTN TYINI ,NPOYN NNYYN 25D YON 19INI TOIM NN MOPII IPINNY DXMPYN MDION
YNIAY MV NN NYYD ONMNNT 2IWVIND INOYNN 2OV

MMpYs MMn 3.14.4
Sy ,MNN2 MPON NN DI1HN DXNIND NNNNN DY 120NN DI DY NOIDNNHD MOV NMNPYY MNIN
8PN T HY DIDIYIV MTIDN OYNIN IN STHY NININ 9PN D02

YY 9272 MM ONON AN P2 ,Y1IP PINN . PTHN PIN MNMYI2 00N9 2014 DI wTINa
MAPY 970 SNVY NTOY DXPNN NYIP 1272 MY, OOXNIYIPN P2 DXPADN P2 DMITOM MW
TR0, TINNN MOVHN NMIMNI NINDN NPDY NN 2015 NDXNNA PN PIN DY 9PIN0 MDD

PPV NN MIRNNN PON TINYT DMLY IND 112 MNTIP ONIYD
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0»NoUNN DIPIYN 3.15

TNYN NAPNYI 12PN DNY 20 PNV OPP TYUNI NN MY INYRID D191 DIMN YN NHVNN OPIvN
.BNYapa 9NN DOXNINA

NP PNVOY PN TO NNID DXAPTY ,NNAPN NINWYI N2 MIXNN DY NNad DYIAPNNND NHVNHN PP
TN8Y DYIAPNNT NSVNN PN LTOIMN NNIY MIXXINND MAPTI 102 MNP NN ,MONMNNT NINNININ
D»NN NP TNRY PNVIY ININD TOI NN NITY DXAPIN DMVIMNDIN DIDIINN NP DNXIN ,DX0D) NV
999 3.4.1 9INI2 NIND 00N HY DOWIDIVN

J(Forgivable Loans) n5»nn> nnnn MXNSND DOYNVH MNP IPNND SUPMIIY 1P SUNIN WTHNND DIPIVN
19 DN NON ,DPIWNN NP DA INNN 7NV 290 MINNND D191 WaApNNY W1 >pavn IAS 20 -5 oxnna
PINN NP TN PIND NV NINNN P2 WISNN TN XD HAPNNY DIIDN D A0 JPINI INTH O ININI
DY9PI) ,DINMP DX ,DMPYN NMPN D2 YINND N2 M1NNNN DIDD NN IPNN MINXIN MVPND 1IN

STO9M NN MITH

19291 HINSINI MDD 3.16

N22PMY MINNDN DY NI NMINN IYPYINY DNDIO0 I 72 MIDION 99782 MYHID 1197HD MINNIT MDION
YOI OXMNT, TN NN TIT PN MY DNNINN DMDIN DIDI) DY INMNN MNVIA DMIWN (TIT2¥T HD19) 103 NN
(DVITIMP) MMND I DM LYY ,TOIMN NN DMIINMN DTN DXPYINI DITOIN/DMNNTN WY SWI9NN
PNNY INIYR IMDY LYY NPDVPORT NN NV MYNNNI NN DY MDD NN MDION
SY NN TIYN 29D MNYN TN JPITY INIYNI NN 17)2 12 MDION .(3.4.1 7IN2 D) NNI) VAP WIDD

21D MDIOND NN NN

,N90IY MY DI D9 NINDNI MY NNVY NI 192PNNY N5 , 003011 525910 5Y MMTa
593 NINDNI PP YITT MYT BY 1N NN )N MMIY) D9PW DYDY 1INIY IRTUN MNYY LYY
MU0 DN ITAPNNY DITITIXN PN MY DN MNYY 11311 .AYPYN MPYon 0IMIM

NypYn

170901 YY D01 NN 3,17

NN DN RON TOAM NNIY DD DXNTI DX0N) DXAVIVY DXON .OXNTI DXAVIV DIXDN DIV NODIDNN DY DYON
IN PN MPY DMNN OO0 DI NTHNL INK D915 NNID I PNNY NIPY DXAPII IN ,DOPOY 118N YN
ANK 9910 NNAY IR PNND NAPTI NDIONN DY DXONN NXRXIN ION DIPN .INNRD HDI1ON N2

DOV 20N

DOONN DNPNHONYY 9D AWINKD XINYI ,MIYD DN N2MNN NDIDNN DY DINYND MANN DNN DIID 1N LIV DNN
NN ONPYNL OMPY D) OO NI 90N ANNN DY MTN PIRND NUYNY PPN IR PPMY PIiNn 290
DT NPITN X2 DYDN MODIM MNTIP DNYWH DXON»NNIN

D29V IV OO0 MNIPNHNM YOI NVP

YD) MIVPY NPIND MM MVAYN MDY NHYPY NN DNVIV DON NMNIPNNMN PDI) NMPH NP
YOOIV IN V) DDA LY DV DDN NMANNNM Y03 PODY NI NNMP 191,000 DX0N NMANNM
.01 DXIAVYN DXV IVN DXONN NMIAPNNMN

ONT) OYON

9D MPT TNKY NMIAYNNM DXDI) HY D190 TIVN P2 DMINT DIWIANY DNMNNA NN ONTI DN NN
MYNIY NIONN NYA DXNIN DMINTN DOWIINM Y20 DXNTI DONI NN NN NNIAPN .DX0N ¥II¥D DI PId
TN TN NVLIV NXIAP DTN, MANMYN MXPOYI) NI MIINA NYPYNN DIYIANN DOWIAN 191 ,)PVININ2
DANN DN MY Y DITTHI DXNTIN DXONN .PYY IRV TNYA 12971 ONY NN NT PRY DTN 1) WI9NN
SV NYTN TINND NYYND PPNV IR IPPMIY DPIND DY DDINNA IVNIN? 12 TYINI OMINTN DOWINN DY DIND

D905 ANNN

DN OXWWIINN NN DXID 7P 1N NTNIY ,NAMN NDION 7PNN TNYIY NN TUNDI D190 191 NNTI DN ©)
DYDNN YD) DN DXAPNN OMINTN DIWIFNN NN TY D121 OXNTI DXDN YDI) ,NIAMN NDIDNT 29¥ TN N
,MYNNNN MONMNNT DN MIAVN 7D MNAN KDY TN 90N ANNN DY MPT TN Y92 WINN DXPTI) ONTIN

.DYNN9YM ON
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(7unn) NYIINN HY OION NRYIN 3.17

PNYIY NANY T SAXN NV NN 0010 NPT TN DI WINN DXIIWN 11D XOVW DNTI DYDN YD)
LDNIN 9XID 173 7Y DTIOY , NN NDION 7PN

ONTI OX0N NMIAMNNN 202 VP

YD) NIPPY NINY NN VAYN MDY NNMPY NN DONT) DN MIAYNNM S0 NNPHN NNAPN
NINONN YN ,NMVY MIIND N NNIYY 192N NNIND DN NMIYI TMINRD DONPH OM DNTI 00N NMAPNNM
TINT-12 I VI DIDA DY DINTIN DI0NN NMNPNNM YD) NN PODY

T NPITN 1) DN NN

19953 XY 11 DN NODIN .NXIAPN NN YT DY DY TYTAYT NPIZN DY NIPNA DN NIDIN IPNNNY MIVY NXIAPH
112NY ©N NADINT NOION TITT NPIYNY DN NOY NN NXIAPN MIIN NPITN TWNRD ,D90IN NINMT2
DN NADINT OINION DXNNIN HTT PYNY NPINN NN NN DN OMIPNI .PYY IRDN TNYL ,NYIPNRN
ST NN PHA,N2 2NNNY 172NN MIYYY NN NADIN 1P)H2 DY NTINY 11NN NINY ,NaNY

NI 12 TYIND TOIM NNIY DXPII ,NIANN ST DY DITITT APWYNN DOYINN DD NDIdN DY DXON
ONNNN TITTN DIPYNDY MNNNN

0*PAYN MNIN 3.18

DOy D»HDIN MMT2 MYY) DHNDN OXTYA TINYY N¥IAPN NINNK XY JPY TWN DIPOIDN MYAPNHI NN
NNNRD MNN NXIAPN DX MIVRN NPONN MWD NI

DI MINHN  3.19
ATNNNN DY TOOM NNIY MOPII DIDID MINNIN
MOMYN MNPOY > 5 MNNHNA Mannwn 3,20

DYIO0NY MNODNY ONNNA NPAX DDA DY MNYI MINKYT MMYP NNANHD MNNINT MONNYNN MOION
NIRNNN NINSIND YYD NIYHIN MHANN DY DIVI

9319 N 3,21

5y AWVINKY MINY YDIDIN NN .NTYW MNIN NPMINN NN 12X 1INY 55170 YOX02 NI MINI NN NP
NYINN DY OOPIVNN YINNN 19002 NN DY MDNIN NMIND YOYAY ONPHN TOINN N NNIN NN >

TINNN T DY Yapd MIND SO TNHN NNIN ININD NPIN 1PH NHRND INKRD, MIYN TYNI NINNL PHIY MM
M0 NMIND DY DOPIVNN YIMNT NHIRNM NIANN DY MDNIN NPIND OOYAS ONPHN, TOINN N NNIN
, MOSTHN NPONINIVIBN MDNIN NPIND DI DY MYV PIY ,ININD NN PHII DNRNND INRD, MNNIY

LDYTWD IPININY NYIND TPNIN AN MDD

INNMIN OOV DOVIN ONPNH 3,22

0039 099°van ,IFRS 9 (2014) »mIxv»a 9905 M1 ypn  3.22.1

DPYON HY AT NPDY MNITIVHN MNMN NYNON pnn Yv oo noy wn IFRS 9 (2014)
NUDI P95 MADNNND DN MIXINN .OMDIPY DX0II DY T NP NTTHY vIN DTN 191,070
.2013 MY DDAV OO0 - NI MNNIYN

(AERAPA PYNRAY)

NN TIT NN NV ,NNNNI MDY : DMDINY DIDI) NPTHY NPIPIY NPINLP V1TV P PN DNNNA
MY SV HOPOYN STINN DY DDIND 2IN YPYWIN Y20 NPON DIV .INNX 15 NI TIT NN MY TOOM
DXPYINI NYPYN DODININ DN DY DOHIND DNMITAN MIOITN MDMIND DY) D1V DIDI) Y
NN VXN ,TPNYRIN NIONN Y ,NINT NIINN DN XON) TOOMN NN TIT NN ONYIA TTON OO
.(ANNN H9IDN NN NN MV DMWY

TOOM NN TIT N ONYO YTYPY NPDINI NMONNN DY INNN MWA DO D WN'T 1NN
ANK Y915 NI 2199 119 MY MNIUNRD 127D NPWH DIONPNIN
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(TUNN) IMIN DIOY DIVIN DNIPN  3.22

(Tunn) 011’ 02V, IFRS 9 (2014) 3mIND»*a 2905 MVT PN 3.22.1

3995 - YT MINRNIVN
NPNY NMVY DMNDD DM IDNKY YIDY NI YY) TUN MADN NT) NMLIVDN 1PN ONNNA
LNTHN NPDOPAN NYIAPS SNONMN 80% - 125% -N 1NN NN PONN JPNN . NTH MRNAYND MPYD
PN PNN L9012 OMND G0 WMIAPY DN ,ATHINN DPYINN PAY ITIINND VI P ODITD WPY YT
DN YR DNNDN DIINT) ORIYN MDYND DNMNNT NT) MNNIYNY MNDN DMNNNN DVTN DTN
MYTN MO0 MYOIT YIP 1NN, 1D .0 DX PYWINI D19V DIWTN MNIPY ¥IPI JPNN NYINN2

DYDY DIV YW T NI
>0 2 My ,(‘Expected Credit Loss” Model) 0198 yNIWUN »TDIN2 NIONY WIN 5T 9910 1pnn
D230 DNPNN HONRIYND NP0 DN : TIY DT DY TIORYT DTN DY) PN WTND DTINN .0»0IN 2NN
MNIURN YTOON NANA TOOND NWION DYIN ,NNIYRID NIDNN TND IMYNDUN 19N NHY KD YDIN
DN .MVTN TN INND DOWTIND IWY-DNY TONNI NIYIN DNIYNIND IUN YWD H'NPNX Hwa DN
YTDIAN NANI OV DTN TIY NTPY NYINN DMIPNN NN ONMIYAYN 19IND 1YY INIYRD N0

DDA DN DY 01NN TN NITN 2 DY DI INITYND

NMININD DNNNA .2018 TN 1 DP2 MPNNHT NPT MNPNN NN YDVPIDIVA 19INI DU |PNN
09057 PMMT OY IFRS 9 bw n»axn nyawn NX mMM2 NXIIAPN 2IVEN DTPN mw» IFRS 9

MMPY oy 0NN 1997, IFRS 15 1mINsyra 2905 M1 ypn  3.22.2
DOVINY NDIDNA NIOND WTN DTN MDY NIDIDNA NIDN PRYDY 0PI MN»PN MPMINN DX PONN JPNN
VNN 5910 DTN AT M9 DY IN NNN JIT NTIPI : NDIDNA NIOND MV SNV YAIP 1PNN .MMpD Dy
MYAT YIP JPNN 1D 10D .NMDD NXY NDIDNA NIINN NTVY NN AP TN DY MNPDY MNY DIAOY
DD MNMPN IDNRN TN MIAN MYTN NN

PN YW NNHUNID DIWHON TN NN MY MINTY nvdnn Sy nyhin IASB-n 0v19,2015 %911 22 o2
,PINND IN 2018 AN 1 DY MDNNHN NPTY MNPN 22D YDVPADIIVI 1IN DY PNV T

oTPN MIw» IFRS 15 mxmnd oxnna IFRS 15 -5 qaynn mN1MnNa mumonn mvpna awnnna
09050 NIMT SY IFRS 15 Hw 7980 ymyawn NN NIMA NP OIVON

man , IFRS 16 8933 %905 M1 ypn  3.22.3

PN MIXND .MNMYPN NPNYISN XY (IAS17) mon 17 9900 dNIND»A 1PN IR POND 1PN
L0100 PRYY ,NNT DN .1 IN TPDIYONI NIDNN NPDY DINNND NNMPN NYIITH NN NIDVIN
M2A»NNNAY ©I2 ONY 2NN DYY 1T, NYPONN D52 SNNAYNN DIDVY TAR DTN WINN JPNN PN
MHNMPN NN NP MIANIN MYTN NDN MYOIT YIP 1PN ;)2 19D .D»ODON PNINITA 1ONN PHa
Ru)p)

NI2NNY 72927 ,07TP1 DIWMD MIYOR DY ,2019 INXIND 1 0PI MDNNNND NPV MNPNY DV 1PN
MY MY MNIN Y910 Jpnn .NMpY oy onnn Noon LIFRS 15 nX 0y 0Tpm \imoxa nnwdn
DIV : NNIYNID DIYON NY2 NININ MNINNND NNXRA INAY 1951 MIINY T 729010 MINNN DIWV»
T TVIND DATIVN NN NHORNN TIN INYRID DWW DPH DNN JPNN DIV IN XIH YOPIDINIVI
D050 MMTN YY 1PNN NIOIX DY MOOWNN NN TN NXI1APN

NN NIY 091091 1933 011 0201 20933 1990 ,1AS 12 -5 vy 3.22.4

NYaYN NX Y00 ¥ M9 NIMN NDIDN NOIYN NYA ,INTI ON D)2 175N TNKD 25,9020 Ndnn
DOVION YV DY DMDY DN 79932 YSIANN IT NOIYN .NDNY DOININ DMINT DOWIIN YW 09N
8D 1) DTNOYW NIMNN NOIDNN N0 DY MYIM DNN SPINT MNMP OX )I1DN0 OONIN OMINY
NINN IYPY DD X2 NDION DYDY MIYY MO NAYN NDIIN D YIP NPXNN 90N .0>TON
NPMY MNPND Y1905 DV NPXNN .TIY MPODN NPRI NHMOP DX ,D1901 DIIYN MAXN DD
S MOYYNN NPNIA2 NONN DIV NXIAPN .OTPIN DIVOD MIVAN DY, 2017 IR 1 OP2 MDNNNN

APDN IR
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NININN NPT IIPIWI HVIIP HIRNAYN NI - 4 9INA

Y)Y NPN MIIY ,0MNY DN I2YN PO DY DIDDIAM GLIV NN DIPDI TITOINY NYMNN NPV
.DOTNY DWPN

,O¥20 DXYN ,NONR NININN DIYINN DPNNIAYNTN DOITHIND .TNYN Y200 MNIN NNINY DO TOIN NYNIN NNIAPN
D902 TIYO NOXMNH DNINNND DX21N0 DMWY TUN ,NINNN DITHIND .I¥92 MININNND DMWY NP OMVY
9N DMYTY ,NNAN MY ToNNI NMMI»NNN DO DY

O02) T 1Y

DMYYY MDY IN DNPN DMINP DN P90IN ANNN JY MPT TN 953 myma nxapn ,IAS 36 -5 oxnna
MoMNLNN ,MANMVN MNPOYI NMYPYN MY )HNOINND IWN DD XD DD DY DI NP Y TNy
023N YY 01902 TIYN ORN NIMIA NP ,TIY DT DY OXTYNN DNDD DIDPP TYURD IINNDN MWD NVIWI

YV NAYNN-12 DODN DY N

D»N TN OHYI DMYNIN YNDL DD IN,POINN NODION DNV NIN DTN U3 Y AP TINND MYD NNN
STV NTYYD D00 DIDMP DN AN 10N 19IND WX ,NAYNN T2 DIDI0N YV NOIYN NNIAPN NYNAN TN dNYa
9272 MMNN TIY NDPN TOIND NN IOV NAYNN-12 DID0Y DIIN NN NNAPN NN [, TNND NN
NNAPN NP9X DY 197,007 DIDIIN IN IMNIDN DIINN I2YN PO HY MODIAN DMONN DINIIHN N
SY DNITHIND NYINDN NXIAPN DN HY DOYIDWN DPNN TN NI THNNI WY D»H550N DININY Wl
DMNYPN IOV NP1 DN MNIN 9272 15.3 7IN2 0) NRI .00 HY NIAYNN 92 DD NY AP MY YN0

VNN DY T N

PV DIPYNIN PNV DX0I) DY NIIWN

5¥ DDIANNA VVNIY NMAPNNNM IWINY DX0II0 MPINN MIIN DY NYIIIN MDY NX MXPNY NYIT NXIIPN
N2 WHOW M HY DMYN YNYI MY YN DY NNIAPN NIYPNN ,MYITY MYOII1 .0NOY INNN NV JTOIN
DYNMIYAYHN NN DNITNIND YINYW NIDINND NON MY MIIYN .NOKR MNNNM DX0I) DY INNN MW NYapa
INDN NN, MMPY VP DI  NIMINKRD DNV 1IDNY OPMNNN OPYNN YNYIN DX .IDMINN TN
P2 ,0°9915 NYRD OPYMN YN DD DY D1WINIWN DPNN TIN NN WDIWY DMOVIIP DI TOIN .ONNINI
WYY DOVIP DITOIN .PIYI NMOY NMNNINM NN LINWD NAPN ,MNPIN MIYP NP AR NN
YN MDY MMPD OTIND DMAY DNIMIN MIIN ,IIPN P ,DM91D DIHNDN DMYMN dNDA DX0I) NOIYNI
NN 5y DODDANND DYDY DN THIRD N MY wpa ndmnn NTmN .0amnd (replacement cost)
N .Y NPND NMYY 51191 MININD TIN NIRXINI MINTI ONX N2 NV TR ,NDTINN 2OY2 M0 INSDIVY

ATNN N5 DN TN MDY DMYNIN dNYA DYDD) 1272 15.2 1IN D)

MMMYN MNANNN

T MTMY NTNN NPVLOYN MYAN P2 MNYN MYIDIN MMOD NYaPYI N1NIAD DN O»p NHanNa
DYLN MYINT OYOVNT DMVAVYNN FPNYPH NYT NNN MZIAPNHN IV YT .A%Y MPIMN MM 112NN
NN IN (50% SYN) NN98 NYANN DNN DINMNN) ,MIYANN DY NNDNNN 1120 NN NYTN MINA DXIIYNN ,N12NN
N2 1N TN ,NN2NN Y1902 NYIAN NNYII XD ,52PNNY 179N NN NYIANN TUNRD D2APNND (NMINS IN 50%) 1719
199N ,0aAPNNY MY NYIANN IYND .PMNN NYIANNY DTN DMI0ON MMTY 24 7INI NNONI MY IANY
SV NPYRIDN NMDYDIN NIAN IAXIY 1PDNN ,DMVIYNN TPNYY NIV DY DDINNA ,NOWNN DIFD NN NN
N2 > 92T HY 1D WIOP DMVIYNN DIIDNN 1T NDIYND DNNNA DMODON MMTI NYION NI ,NIPNRN
DYMIYN DMADIN MINYTN MYON YD1 NINDNI .NYN DITOIND NNV NPNY NMIVY DIMINRIIN 199) ,09vNN
MYANY AWpa D) DY) NIPA 0NN PNVPIPTN DY O»9DIN MNYTN N1NIAD DTN NNMPN ,NIaNn DY
,MYIANN YN0 MY ,NI2ND TN MTIY NMONT MPANN Y099 717192 NN ,NIIND T MTMIY NMONN
MMT2 PN NYIONN MDD INNYSN MDD JND NOHOVYNN NN NN NIANND DY DMVIVNN TINYY MDD

.0»905N

DOPNDN MAINY NYIN

NYIAP .MNMPON NI Y Ty NP 19N oxN Nwap owd 1AS 39 ypna wapiv nyninn AN NN NXapn
M NN ,0MDINN N P2 ,)NIYNA NP IR NYTN DIPPY NOYIND ONMYIYN NYT DIPYY NOYAN NIINND N
NP ALY NN NDIVA NNIHN NN IV HY NNMIND ,OYTIAN MAIN DY HNVD ,MMPII NIN> D)

IMPY PIIINIYN MDY NOWN 9272 28.1 1IN 9 7IND D) NN QYN MM MPON dPOY DY

ONT) O Y0I)

DN PYD NN TNYL PIPY NN OXN NDXIYN NN NOMN - DN 1IIXY DX TOIN 1PH2 NNTI DN ©I)2 NN
SV NPIVART NOYYNN .DINTI DN D)2 (NP1 KD IR) 17N ORNNAY DY TOIN TXIY 7P 1N OTIOY DN DXIANN
,ANTI DN 0532 17757 D)2 DXTON DY GO YNIY .TOIMN NN NNTI DN DI HYW 5102 IN NID7 NP NF JTRIN

.NDIONN YY OY0N 91272 ,35 INI NN

24



-\’f 727793 9)9) DINIOVY
ol lnGe” DXTHINNDN DAVIN MMTY 0Y9INa

1NN MY NP - 5 INA

90N YR .DIDNDN NPIPNNM DX0) HW INNN MNVYN DX MAPY N¥IIAPN NWITY ,DM9DIN MMTH NN TN
: DININ DXIN22 HYD) NN NV NP WDIWY MMNN MTIN

; YPWND 1757 9271 16.4 N0

S TIIN Y212 MIINK NYAONNM MNNDN 9272 20.2 NIN2
;N DOILN DWYWYN XITON 1272 23 NN

.D»DIYY DXPWIN 1272 28 NN

PINONY MDTR MY 923 PIVNN DAY DM NNAPN NYHNYHN ,MI1NNN IN D) W PIND MWD Ny apa
AYAPYTI ,NDIYNT WNIWY DINMIN Y DDINNA INNN MNYN XITNH MNT WIBWY MPYIND

DT NIPIONNM IX DYDY DP9 PIVA (DHNIND NI) DVVIND DPAN 1707 @
49 1 NNI2 D99 DIRY ,POPYI IN PIVNI ,PIVNN DAY DN :2 07 e
.DPA¥I PIV M Y DPODIIN DPNY DN : 3707 e
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ol lnGe” DXTHINNDN DAVIN MMTY 0Y9INa

M mHan - 6 MNa

MOIPEY MM MaN 9273 YN 6.1

MTIANDD NN (%) VYOV PN Hoon NV
HY PPN DIPINM 930873 31
NYINA MDY 2013 2014 2015
SN 80 80 80 17¥2 NN DINIVY
SN 100 100 - (1) D7Y2 570 NN DINIVY
SN 51 51 51 1792 DIRIOY XTI -T> NINON
INYY 50 50 50 (2) n7¥2 573 NN OPNX YIY NNV MASNNI
SN 88 88 88 7Y DY) DINIVY
"IN 100 100 100 S.E. USA Inc.
M 74.9 74.9 74.9 Strauss Coffee B.V.
P99 100 100 100 (3) Strauss Café Poland Sp.z.0.0
oMY 100 100 100 (3) Strauss Commodities AG
I 100 100 100 (3) Strauss Romania SR L
NPRIPIN 100 100 100 (3) Strauss Ukraine LLC
TN 100 100 100 (3) Elite CIS B.V.
Mo 100 100 100 (3) Strauss Adriatic Group
PO 100 100 100 (3) Strauss LLC
oM 100 100 100 (3) Le Café Soluvel Rus, LLC
(ONN NI2N) DY 917 DINIVY DY MITIN DY 10 NN DINIVY MDY (1
.1PNY 6.2.2 DY NN N7Y2 MINIL DIRIVY YT DY NPININ (2)
.Strauss Coffee B.V > 5y npimn (3)

N2 N3N NVIYY NP MNIM NPT IPIY 9293 Y11 6.2
MNYIA OINIOVI NYPYn  6.2.1

PN ONINNN 20% -2 DPPINHN MHNT NIIN .NMINIT DINIVY DY MMINN NN 80% -2 NP>INH NI1ANN
YT HY NNV DINVPIPTN DI DN MYXIAN NI TWUN MY DY NNDIWI NYAPI NMNN Y1 050N .NMNN
NP T DY MOLOWIN TMINK MNP MINIA DINIVY P MRPOY MOYNON ND YN TNT
TPNN AT GPINT POV IR PIY ININ MY DN XIN ,VDINRIVY N¥IAP7A PRY DY OY IN "DINIVY
NPOYN MY PIY ININT MNY P YIFNN DY NN HAPD MIDM NINIT I NIPNA VYN ,NY’IIN DIDN
MYITTN MDD NPHRY INNRD) STIVN OPIN ANIN 1D 25% -0 TN NI TIDDT NPDN ;5391
MIAN NPPN ; INT DX DSTHN NN 1N YW IN NDXY NYSN ; (050N YI1API NINIL DIRILVYD
DYNY DMINNI MPOWN L POPYL IN PIVINI ININND NMPYIL XY ,MINII DINIVY T DY N1
MYPYN IN NN DINTOY OPOYI XTIND NPY ; INYT DY NINND IO 1D NN DY DN ,A9N 18N
21PN NYVN DY NOY 25N YININD 1IRY DINNA ITNNN NN NIRNINIY 20NN 1IN DIND NINY DINNA
YISPY DMININ DY NOY NN MIIN IN MINID DIRIVY YT DY NN ; NINIA DINIVY INNHNNI DODN2
2NN NN MIATNN VYND) NIV OOV YT DY IN NT DY NVHYI NN Y IN MPINN DINIVY T DY
DIDNA 2PN NYYN DY VY DNNIRD DMININN DY NPV NIINN TO OX L,(DINIVY NTYN Nrya
NOIDON AR VYN NNPN WX MW ,NIINN NYTD .MINMD DINIVY DY THIRNDD dNIYN NN
VYN NPT HY NNN OINNN 1ID) 27970 DPOYN TONNN DMINN TYUN DN PNX IN MNPOY DY Wawnd
YN 2299 VNAY MDDIN NND .MN2 DINIVYA 172NN DY NNVIOY TUNN NN YINY N2 PRY
D»9DON NMINTA NTNIND NI 1D, DINTVY NXIAP T HY NLYWI MINIID DINTOWY ,MPOND NP

IN1PN YV
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(TUnn) MIa Man - 6 INa

(7unn) N2 N3N NVIYY NP AP MNIM NYT NPIY 9393 Y119 6.2

nNAVIA NYPYN  6.2.2

N2V NP JPNVPITI NYIN NN NYY NNV KW NPIND NI 50% -2 NPIINN NN DIRIVY
(DN NRYPN DY TIT2 NYIT MINIL DINIOVY .NMINN NN DXINNN 50% -2 771NN

YHya5 555 TIT2 NNPIIN NN NN NNPNN NNV DY YIMN PN MIPNIN NI PN 50% (N)
5 N)2XPN YT YN MDD NN NN .DIININ VT IN MINY MDD LYNY NP2 NN NPIN

MAovN 21172 NPIN 3 .ANAV NOPIT TVAY IN NNND M NN, NINN I, NNPHN 2N NN 2 (3)
;1PN YT MPINN

97 D) TPMY NIV TAN NVPPT VY N NNNY MO IX PN ,NNX IYION NN ()
5Y NIPNRI NPIND DY NYONID) 1PNVPITA GON NP HYa 7O MYYON NOONN V1M \PNVPITN
P YN

T2 DY NN NNV 5910 Y5 1713721 ,NNIV> MZMIND 12D MNIDNN NN YAIP NNV’ BY DOONN Y905
NN YNND IV MIT MY NN DINIVY DYV DINVPPTY .XIDPN NXHNN Y9 DY NNV NVPPT
NN MO MY NDYPN OYLN DINVPITY .NMINIT DINIOY T DY NNN WNVPITI A" D70
DINTVY YT DY NNNN NNV DY DXDIN DN ITPINT DHINNNN DMWY HYI IPRY 1) NPNY
NINT DMDT DP¥9ND DIRWI P XY DN TN NTIYW NN DY D) MOT 1PN DYLH DNVPPTY .MINMA
UN DIWNPN IN MXPOY 5y WAUnD NDIDN AR VNI NIPN YR MY .0 PID DOPIIN NIN
SV NNVIOY TYNN AN VNN N2 PRY VIVN NIMDT HY NN ONNN 199,290 DPOYN ToNNN 0NN
NP T Y NVOYI NNV YD MPDNY NYNIN NXAPN DY VMY MDOIN NN NNV NIANN
X1APN HY D»IDDN MNITA NTOIND N ITII (NN DIRIVY TIT) DINIVY

9P VINIVYA NYPYH 6.2.3

P AWND (7o oNVY” onY) Strauss Coffee B.V. 5w nvann nn 74.9%-1 np>vnn 71ann
25 112NN P2 DODNA .NYPINNN 25.1% -1 nprnn (" TPG :yon5) TPG Capital novon mypwinn
YHYA HY MYOIN MIYL DN IN DD MLYNN NYAP IWN DIPN DY NDOWI YR MYPYNN I
T252) YPNVPPT NN YATY DIPADY DMIPN 1) NOP DIRIVY NPINN 90% -1 DXPINNN NN
MLONN NNNY N NONR OMIPN DY . NYIRN TY WIASN WPYNRN YT DY INNY TN THX NOPPTY
DINIVY SV NPINT PN MY ; VNN PIYI NMDTIY DMNIYPN DIRVII MTIRNNN Y9000 PPN 20
DV DOV IN MIYIDT NMUOIN ; DINKX TIY NIV NPT INA VIV NN DY NDTH XY TWN NP
197 ;19 DINIVY DY MY Y9INI YMNND MNPV DY NVINN ; DOPNMYNIVYN DIOPINA DIDD) IN NNV
MNXNMN,NIAND NYTD .NAP DIRIVY DY D)1 DIPOYN TONNN DMINN TUNX DMIDNN IN MXPOY NN
1991 ,293710 DXPOYN TONNN DINN IWNR DOWPN IN NINPOY DY WAWND NDIN NN VIVINID NIPN VN
DINYNA N9 DINIVYA 172NN DY NNVIOY TUNN DX YNNY N2 PRY DIWHD NMDT DY NN DONIN

SNNXD DMNIYIN ITYND,MIPIDNN PIND DV 1IN ¥IP) DN

n¥Iap > Yy nodws Strauss Coffee B.V. » mpond nynn napn 50 oMoy madsoin IR
NNAPN DY DMV MNTI NTRIRD NN 1IN ,DIRIVY

NAX N9 OWXIVYWH TPG moddh madn numa ,nop 0XIvYa nmnn moya , TPG -1y nhann
IUN ,A7TIN,PIY P2 NN NOP DINIVY NPIN DY INDNI DN PN NN NINY MNINN
NPONY NNINN NNDNA TONPIIND TIV MM MYID DA XD PPYN NVYL NYNN NNINDNI
NPIOT NPANA NPINN NRSPN DN ,NPAINN NN TONN 220 TPG oy 05012 N1aNn Ny»in ,NMIVON
NN ,DHYIN DN ,D9¢IN 1N NPANNY MINTN DD PN YD WITY .NPNN NN INND NMNn dHya
, DOV NVOY D5 PR N9P DINIVYIY NIANDY 027 DM NNDN NPANN NNOYN 2D PNX 1D TN

AN NPIVAN DY DNV DMIWIN NYAPI NPON VNI DIIRNND PV ININ TN Pa
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W
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OY1NINDN DPODIN MMTY BI9INA

(TUnn) MIa Man - 6 INa

MNM NOYOY MIPM 1IRY MNDT NYYI NTHIND N3N 9243 YN 6.3

NYMNN PV NVOYY NNPN IPRY NPIDT D MNP TWUN NP DINIVY NAN NIINN 1272 YR oD
:(MPNI2N P2 NMINPOY 51012 7)35) NNIAPY
43814 31

2014 2015

7Y 9399951

1,260 1,081 D2VIVY DD
1,427 1,157 D90V DPNY DYDI)
2,687 2,238 (m}ivie) By i)
473 400 MavIY NMIMNNN
62 51 MAVIV IPINY NMIMNHNN
535 451 MM2»NNN TO
2,152 1,787 100% Y0 DX00) O"ND
540 449

4318473 31 D13 NNPMNTNY NIYH

MOV NNPN PRY NI

2013 2015
7Y 9399951

2,250 2,047 1,947 moIdn
272 259 192 I
(240) (273) (389) NN 591 TN
32 (14) (197) 9913 (T991) NN 57ND
PN PRY NI ONPNN OND (TON) NN
8 (3) (49) nouoY
181 218 118 NAVIVY MPPYAN DNV DY IN
(5) (48) (29) NYPYN MDY Wy DNININ DN
NOD PR MDA wpww DINRND 0NN
(49) (173) (92) NOY NNPN JPIRY N THIPDT
- (59) (42) NOMY NNPN PRY NMDY OOWY THIPDT
9 (7) (19)  ©Y1NN NN’ HY PHYNN WY NITIN NYaWN

118 (69) (64)

28
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S
Olf(ﬁ(,l[% ' DXTHINNDN DAVIN MMTY 0Y9INa

023121112 MY 021N - 7 N

921872 31

2014 2015

n7Y 9399951

150 147 D’P)22 MM DIPNN
617 413 TP
767 560

MNTPOY TIY M) - 8 INA

2014 9258473 31 2015 4any4a 31

792590 NYY 7Y 999990 0290 NYY n”Y M5

- DYPND NI T MIPN NNTPD

2 - T2 NTP

0.51%-1.49% 21 0.35%-1.49% 15 n"Y1a NTpo
23 15

- DPNO TIW MM

50 27 NPNOYNN 1IN MNN

48 18 NPIIXNP 2IN MIN
121 60
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OY1NINDN DPODIN MMTY BI9INA

MMPY - 9 MNa

299N 9.1
“any1a 31
2014 2015
Y 2991
952 950 DYNIND MAIN
(45) (24) DYPNDN MAINY NYIAN NDNM2
907 926
SHMPIN MIN 91 M’ 19nY 9.2
2014 4any7a 31 2015 435874 31
nl’arn) Y990
many many
o'paron 0paYon 93
7Y 23999
(1) 855 (1) 881 792 DN
- 30 - 32 DY 30-15¥ 9
- 5 (1) 10 DY 60-315W NP9
(1) 2 - 2 DY 90-61 5¥ NP9
- 1 - 1 O 120-91 5¥ NP9
(43) 59 (22) 24 DY 120-1 NOYNS DY NN
(45) 952 (24) 950
$NPNN TYUNI DIPAYDN MAINY NYIDN NINNN 9.3
2014
7Y 9399951
50 45 NI 1 OYO MW
5 7 NMNPNI TV NTIN IDINY TN
(7) (26) DYTIAND 129NV DXPANDH MIIN
(3) (2) POHN YW OMY NYIWUD
45 24 920%72 31 OO NI
PPN N 29Y MPTN 199D MMPY 192 INIYUN 1192DD 1299100 NOYUNN 9.4
431813 31

2014

7Y 1NN

546 576 DT MMPY P
94 127 Y09 PV
184 150 b A p)a)
83 73 DMINN
907 926 11D
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2N MIN» 023N - 10 99Na

921873 31
2014 2015

TR A%
14 11 DYPAvY MNTPN
11 6 nmTom
12 10 TVIN I MNNDN DY MOV NMTN DD NPINNIY MNNDN
36 19 92p% MOION
72 41 (1) O
27 25 TN INYN NOIY 295 MONVKIN NMIPINNI NN DN NI
54 59 YN MNNIN
30 12 DN DYIMN

256 183

NRNNA,NY NIPINE7 -1 26 -5DW TD2 2014 -1 2015 920XT2 31 OPY DN NNV TNXD DTNV NNTPAYNS (1)

NI -~ 11 9INa

9358473 31
2014 2015

7Y 2399959
342 271 [np>Ralalal
52 55 NINININ
23 17 179) °N52 NININ
255 226 (D»NP DM YD) NI NININ
9 12 Y TP DN

681 581
PIINNN MY NVIY 9D MHAIVNH MPININ MIANA MYPYN - 12 N2
NINNN MY NVIY 29 MYUNVNN NPMNN MPIMN MIan  12.1
P MTDINDND NN 117 5991 PR
PIYN MYPYON 2874 31 OPY NVIYUM
2013 2014 2015

9172 50% 50% 50% (1) Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.
VIR 50% 50% 50% (2) Sabra Dipping Company

M N7y, nnnann ,Sao Miguel 1ON91120 MPINRN 17N YY) NXIPN YW ONRRNDN MWD DWW 299 NHMLRN NPYMN NN (1)
liquid ) >51) W$19p 19719P 003 NOP VP NOPY 972 MNDN ,NOP MNIN ,DPN SN ,DNIMND 19P IS NN NYM NPNWH
971925 \IND MMPYY 1P P17 NOP NI 1N N0 MPANI 1P MNPYN ,(Cappuccino

DNINNI DXYIVN NP NPNVN NI ,NIXMND NNNNN IPIDID KW NXIAPN DY MITRNDN MWD NOIYW 295 NOMVNN NPIMN NIAN (2)
NTIPYANANOINID
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(TYNN) 1NN MMYN NVIY 397 MINVNN MPINN MHANA MYPYN - 12 N2
INNN MY NVIY 23T MINVNN NPIMNN MPINN NN 9272 358NN Y119 12.2

Trés Coragles Alimentos S.A Sabra Dipping Company

38473 31 9358473 31

2014 2015 2014 2015

7Y 93990

967 773 277 336 D90V DYDD)
:OOMN
129 158 64 99 DI MW OININNH
644 468 672 691 DYVIVY DYNY DY)
1,611 1,241 949 1,027 DU TV
*754 405 266 257 MAvVIV NMIAPNNN
12NN
POIRY NPDINS NN
412 192 92 140 mwH9m DINN DXNOT ,DYPAD
174 312 92 29 MOVIV PIRY NMIAPNNN
*928 717 358 286 M”2»NNN TO
*683 524 591 741 100% LI DY) 2NO
*341 262 296 371 ) DYDY NI2NN PON
*208 172 109 110 THINN MNNND
549 434 405 481 NYPYNN YW D801 Ty
Trés Coragles Alimentos S.A Sabra Dipping Company
San87a 31 012 NNMNDIY NIYY HanyTa 31 012 NNINDNY NIYY
2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015

n7Y 93999

3,426 3,593 2,982 1,131 1,288 1,422 moIdn
2,410 2,503 2,109 568 644 730 MINSN
1,016 1,090 873 563 644 692 M9 P
347 329 259 147 181 188 Y2VAN NN
267 278 202 76 92 102 MY NN
*(145) *(38) (293) (28) 58 2 NN 991D (TO97) NI
*122 *240 (91) 48 150 104 100% 5515 (T99M) NN 7O
Am)inlal

28 33 31 36 28 42 mMNNM NN

9 11 10 - - - M2 MDION

30 23 25 12 10 9 M2 MINNN
(50) (27) (18) **(57) *+(69) “*(76) 10N HY DO NMINNIN
*(39) *q (69) (7) 12 - MINN MNNNN
(TD9M) N2 NHaNN PoN

22 124 (114) 17 87 52 01902 X317V Y9157

TPNORN NMPNL MINNY DIRNNY TN DY wINN IN - *
.SE USA Inc. np>ynnn N1ana nniwdan 21NN MIVN NOOY 239 NY9I0N1N NPINI 1720 19)2 DN INXIN **
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e
ol lnGe” DXTHINNDN DAVIN MMTY 0Y9INa

(TYNN)Y 1INNPN MMYN NVIY 295 MUAVNA MPINN MHANA MYPYN - 12 NINa

992 NPMNN JIRY NIINNN MMYN NVIY 295 MYIVNN MPINN MM 9273 Y9981 SFNNN YN 12.3

sy
431871 31 012 NNPINUNY NIYY
2013 2014 2015
n7Y 93999
106 76 103 Mypwnn bv 0901 Ty
(23) (1) 8 (TO9M) N2 NXAPN PON
(6) (4) (5) NN 91D 1D NNIAPN PON
(29) (5) 3 99191 (TOAN) NN TOA NXIAPN PIN

INNN MYN NVIY 29Y MYIVHN MPINN MIINN VAPNNY DITITA%T 93272 DIV 124

930873 31 D12 NNINVNIY MIYY
2013 2014 2015

7Y 939995

32 55 2 (1) Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.
23 21 13 Sabra Dipping Company
33 20 33 171Y2 M3-10779 DINILY
88 96 48

.2014 WA N7Y 19 6 -3 HY TOI 571922 JAKY 291 NPMINN JOINRY TR ONWA NVIY X35 MINVHRA MPIMN MIND HDBTHNS (1)

23191 192 -5 N7 23191 180 -3 1>7 2014 13072 31 OPHY 2015 12071 31 0vY Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A bv oaTva mann Sv npon
DA IN PN NYTIN TNXD P WYY N1 GUR ,PVIYN JIPD PININ ,NNRNND ,N7Y NN 18 =51 N7Y NN 16 -5 DY TO DIINN ,NNNNNA ,N"Y
N Y 172NN NYMN T DY NVONN NAPNN IYN DN IXINN 1IPA DXYHI) ,NNNNNA ,NY NN 85-21 NVY NN 78-5 HY TOY D1VIVN DITOIN

.DNN NPIYIY DN DN DY PLINKY DIFDN ,TNY2 DN P¥INN P DX PHNn Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A ON . TYT72573 P9I

0902 HINT PPN 12.5

Trés CoragBes Alimentos Sv ¥ TMXHNN DD MMTN DX NON DITRIND 01D MINYTY NOINN NP

JONDITIAN HNOIN NI D20 DY NIMTN Msn yavn .S.A
.0.98 1N HPWHY DN 2015 120X TA 31 DY HNOIN DY PONN WY
:MVTN NANPNA DN DY PN YW IDNY MPUN N DIYNINNDT PONN YWY PONY

SN DY P2YINN YV

YWY oNa INDMIAN
19590 yY
9PUN NYIVY YN
% nYPNY
10992 NNNVNY NMIYY
(32.9) 1.19 2015920872 31
(0.1) 1.53 2014 920872 31

NYAPN DY MIINNN MVH NVIY *3Y MYILHN MPIN MIAN *2)Y DD DIVIS 12.6

SY NNV YY PINN N¥APN MI2N DY (7DD DIRIVYY : 1919) 17y DD DINIVY NIAN NN NN MTH NNPNI
DN DINIVY PONN GMYNT DN PNIIN-NT YA DNIVHY ,9MYN DN DIOM , NI NIV NA9NN MDO0N
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.2012 92nKVADA 30 DY NN HY DADIN NMINYTN 1D MAYY THINNIYNN NPNY DNNNA

MT D02 Yy D) NN DANNT DNMYIT NV DY AYN NP TYNY DM NNNN DMDIAN DXON NTNIY ON
2NN 1?2 OV DTN NN NTIYNA 3P0 ,12>7 NODINA T NITOR 2IND MIN OPO2INN NN NN ,NNNNIAN
,NMNIAN NIMT 29 Yy 01,7 Sy noy mmwn EBITDA -5 nhann Sw D TmnNmn 0»9050 MMTa 10I Y0390
2THN NYIEY NY NNIND 2IND NN OPIINND N NISNN INNN D917 DINIY DD MNYT WA NINSD NN
NPT PNITY DY NYTIND TN OV 45 MoNa ,0wn BB -5 nnnn 19 77 17701 230N MHN NPT OX )0 MO

TN NYPAY N T NITON 1IN NN OIPIINND ,NOINN KD NPT ININDY ,NINND

NIND NNHNNIN IOV 19 NMPNNNM OININN D53 NIaNN NTHRY 2015 NIV THNNAY 2015 920872 31 OPY N
NTHYNY N2V DPNN DININD IMPNN XY 2015 MY ToNNY 2015 92087 31 OPY 19,4002 /T NITD 2N
.MIONNNN MITIVN P2TNNDY DIVYNN NNVINY NINY NNV YNNI IN YTHH IV MNNNN MTIYN

MTOIY NNAN MIANN ,MTN TN .NIND DOPI2 NIVY NPDINS DTN MNN WIAP) NN MIIN >NYD ,q0Na
JON DONINA

IR 13D MO MM OINDT - 21 9INA

9358473 31
2014 2015
/Y 239919
7 6 DOVY MINSN
39 31 TONTI NN
23 24 DN
20 17 DYNINY DONINA DXDIDN )2 MAPNNN
- 8 mTom
2 2 DYINN DINOY
91 88

0Y729Y9 MV N - 22 9N

NI M29Y) IWI IN VAW DX TAND PNV MINS DHYY NP NYIT DXV NTIaYN PN e by 22.1
MODNY DNNNA YN PV MM DIIPYNT MIAPNNNN 2IWON (MINK NPPNID MDY HYWA 12WY
MY DWYNY MANNN DMINY NIAND NOMN NYTY IWUR ,715WN 2D DY DDINNA 9PNV NTIAYN

RYRN 2]

NOMVN YN PNV MINS PIND 14 PYD NMINDNY ONNNI NNX TPION : DMINAD NN YNV NIIND
12012 NSNS NYMVN YN ,JN PN 14 PYD ONPAIDY DT PHA IV 1IN ; NI NTPONY NMIONO
2y MOV NYTPON YT HY NIPIY NOIDN DITAIWYD PNV MINY DHYY DNV NXIAPN MNND . NITHIN
YD) MZAMLN YN MV NN MDD NI T DY, MINN DM 7PDID MNP DXTIIWN DV

0N

DYVND NXAPN MIAONNN .D>1P52 DX TAW0 MYINDN MIT BYYY MIANNN NIIND ¥ NN NPIDIN DY qON
.DYT2IYN DY DY MAVIY NYTPAN YT -5 NDIINA NPN MZINDN 2T
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(TUnn) Or12IYY Mavn - 22 INA

12 DTN Y92 MNMPN PIND MYITY DRNNA NYY) DXTAIY0 MAVN NDVN ,PINIPIN MDY 2D 22.2
DPNYYNRN NPIOIND NPYTIN MTPON 595 TIT2 MYNT NYN 2IN MYIIT .NONS NXIAPN

Y N812PY 901N .DMYIN NPOYN YPINY DRNNZ DYDN DXTAYD MIALVN DIPYND MANNN ¥ NIAPY
IOND YNV NON MIAVN .DMNMIPNN DIPINT ONNND ,NINDNID INNY DITAYY MAVN DIYWND MIANNNH
TN Mmavnd

259490 22.3
921873 31
2014 2015
Y 29919
NN NAVNY NINN
132 127 MANNNN YW ONON T
(71) (72) NPIDIND YD) DY NN HONY
61 55 ") , 00725 MAvN 7o
NN NAVNY NMNNN 22.4
NN NN MINN 1PHa MAMNNN NYNINN 22.4.1
2014 2015
/Y 29919
127 132 NI 1 OPY NN NV NN P2 NIPNNN
(10) (14) NPIDIND 29 HY WY MV
15 11 2 QLY MPY MDY
3 1 DMINVPN DY 10N
(3) (3) TINX NN
132 127 I20¥TA 31 OPO M NAVN NPIDN PHX2 MAPNNN
NI N2VN NON 09I 2590 22.4.2
938473 31
2014 2015
/Y 29919
8 11 DY NI DINNNH
19 16 NPYNOVNN NN
11 12 NPIINNP NN
33 33 175737053 ©PNN DMPYIN
71 72 5NN Y03 70
NN N20N N%5N 2051 NYNNN 22.4.3
2014 2015
7Y 939950
72 71 NI 1 OPY NPIDIND Y0 DY NN MY
6 6 NN ITPNNY DINOD
(6) (5) NPIDIND 29 HY MWW MV
2 2 Y MODN
(3) (2) D»INVWPN DX TOIN
71 72 920872 31 DPY NPIDIND YOI HY NN MY
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(TUnn) O>12IYY Mavn - 22 MINa
(TUNN) NN NAVNY MNNN 22.4

MYNI M NPINIOPN MMD 22.4.4
£ DM91NRN DXNNKA (GIPIVN YINK) NPT TIIND NPIPYN NPINIVPRN MININN

2014 2015
2.18%-3.07% 2.49%-2.85% (1) 920872 31 02 PNPAN NV
3.0%-6.0% 3.0%-6.0% NPPNY 19U NPOY NYY

(2) D9MIT MINN
NYMOIN NPINNP IN MMN P Rvivahyla) NN NYY 2014-1 2015 0wa (1)

SYIPOTI, NPAINNT MM DY DXOVINND DDWNN (2)
NO0N NIV NNN PIY PN 7Y DONOY 2013-3-1 7PDID TN DY DIODIANN NTIAY TV )TN TMHNN SNYY (N

959 ,10.36% 1PN DXT2W SV PN NIYN NYY ,NT MNMY DRNNA IYN INM HY NN HY DXODINND DXT2IY NI MWW (A
P MY H5Y ,13.5% 1PN N2TYN NV DI DXTAIY M1V . PN Y

IPY NID MNNN NININN INOY NN, NPINIVPRD MNINNND NNRD MPTN TPIRN P20 19INT DOIVIN DNPY
:YAPOTI NN NAVNZ MIANNNT DY DIWIYN

2015 93873 31 DY MY

(2) 0.5% -15Y7%) MANN NYVY
3 0.5% -1 \OOp NPNN NYY
5 1% -2977) nYTNY 1O NPLY

4) 1% -2 0P nYTNY 1O NPLY

(1) 1.2-1590n NATY NV
2 0.8 -29901m0 NATY NYY

ANAPN TV 01PNV D2MINN DN YY 29NN NYaYn 22.4.5
SNY NP 6 TO N MININND NITHIN NIV NION 2016 NIWA NMAXN MTPAND NNIAPN TOIN

6.6 - 5.3 2014 NIYD) DNV 6.6-6.1 1N MMTN NNPN NOD (DOPIWN ¥YXINN 293) NAIINN PN TNRD NXIIAPN JTHIN
N(ap31Y}

NYVINN DTPON IOINN 22.5
VW PO 36 :2014) NP PN 37 TOI NRYINA N¥IAPN NT°ON 2015 120872 31 DY NH1PNONY MVA
DTN ATPOND NN PHa (N7Y 2P 35 : 2013
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Y931 Y0012 DIMYVUN - 23 INa

2010 5998 ,2006 LOMIN,2004 7Y DWVWTINT MOTIY IWNR ,2003 YNNN DD DXTAIYY D1ON NNONY oXNNa  23.1
L NNY oN2) (MHaNn PinY 20 PPN NDNL) 2013 920VIDY 2012 S L2012 XD 2011 D9
D02 OXTAWY NIAND DNXPN ,NIANT PNOVPPTY DINN ATV IR NNPIAN DT T DY 1IN
5Y ).y NYY 1 N2 NN TINRD VINNY TN 1NN DNKX DD TWR 71NN XYY (Warrants) npsoN n¥iapa

1912 VNN PPN VY VINON DID

L2VNN DTV NIAND PNOPIT NYIRD TYNNL ,NI2NN DY NYDHIN NOOPONN NIYIN 2013 920V901 9 O»2
PNIND N2IDNA DXHNDN DINYD NITIY DININN NPT NN NN DY DN DINN NPITH NN
NPYTN NONN 230 WKW MPIN YOV TIYa MYTN MPIVN 5y 1IN )1oND VNN ,OMNITYNN PN

PPTHRN NYIN N PIY 29D NIDIND YYD NN 910NN

INDNN DN N DY NPION WYY P2 YIND MIYN NINDT DPIN J199YY DNNNA T2WD MINPIN NdINN
NN PINY NPSNND NN D19 WINMIN PNN PIAY ("PIV ONYY) YIddNN DY DTPY NN PNINKD
LMPANNIN NPINN DY 1IPIN TIWN TO ONYWA NPIN MO NIDINI) MINN DY PIvn

SW NN MYV YNINND ¥API 2013 920VID INNRY IPINNY NPINN YAND HW VIO NN — WINMIN NN
NN NY YINMHIN PNNY T292) 5% DY NI NIDINA YIPN DY INTPY INDNN M 30-1 NIANN 1IN
97 IPINNIY NPXAIN YIND DY YININ NN .Y2IPN D1 OTPY INDNN D DINA MMINN DY NN IYWN
DN TTAY TN NIN NPIVN MNEOR Y THINDI NDINIAL NN NN YINN NN Gpwn 2013 921090

AN DY WY TPIY PINRN TR0 TY RPN TN TN TT0010 DN 198D

21%9) TINN N2V NN NNKPT KW DN 19IND IANNY PINN AN U DY NIH9NN DN I YLD NN
ST RIPYN IR NIANN DY NN YYD NINDT NPAN ,NIANN NN DY

DNV NVIZYA YINMNY 0NN 1P 2013 920VADN SNN IPINNY NPINN AN [, NPIDIND ONIN 29 DY
2N P2 IPINNY NPXN 2N NPNNIND MNITN TYIND DNV YIIN) VDY ,0OMY DINN NN OMNY
MINDIN TYINN DN YIZYY DMV DINN SNN DMY DINYOY MW YINMNIY DNIN 1> 2013 1200905 2011
DNV NVIYYI WIdND MINM NPSNND 2011 I H910) Ty 2008 I WTIND MPIYN P20 .NPNNNY
D51 MPNAIND Y2ANI WININT INIIN NPNNIND NMINITN TNNND DNY Y2INY VDY 0PV DINN NN DNV
YIN5 HY MND NNIN NN WNNY T2IW0 MITN NNYNID NN INND DNY 4 YW NI NNPN TUN1 DWNnNY
IWPN DPD) TAYN T Y0N DPD SY NIPNI VP TN ININD TY IWNINY KD TUN TINIIN YN 7PSNIN
DV TYINY NPSNIND AN NN WNND INIT 7P TN ,N200 NHNNN PV IPY ROV (NXI1APD Y8 Pa
NPXOND AN DXON DD DPH O 180 DIN INNRY .DXONN DPD DPH DM 180 DY NNPN TWNA WIN
TONYI 7NN ,NXAPA OOMYD DY YW PN DY T2V DY NNPND DION DD DY NIPNI IYP VN ROV
YAND DY NNTPI NYWIAND IRIT MDY TAVN 2D MNP 01NN NTY IRA PNVPITN NN ,N1ANN
D 180 2 VINMIN NPN NN TINNDY DXOMNN DPD TYINN DWVWTIN 6 TIN PWANT DI TNY TUN NPNNN

.00

XYY NIV ,172NN YPINVPPT YW DININN DT 2T DY IWIRD DIIIND NPXNIN NPV ,MIONN 9 HY
APNOPITN OV DININN NTY NXONND OXNNA,NIIND )PNOVPT T DY IWIRN NI NIYN

795 DRNNY ONNN DIVDNI) NOIDN N NTIPAY 102 PYDY DRNNA NIVIN NN DRIV DITAWY *2)D
125NN DY DIN AUR DN DIFD 952 DYTAIVN INY NN 29 DY JNINI NN YTPNN MINOIND YAND

NY1N NNPNA MPIYH 23.2
VN 1T NOIWND WYY DN NYTN NDMPN IPINNY TPNND dAND DY NN ONYN 120 )P PnY

: DPNN
TN
1PN NMVY o”n navIn N
PPN NYY mmvy "oy v 7N NN PNY
29991 YMIN 99010
% % oY Y Y Y DINIT D72 PN 1IN
0.64%-1.17% 24.11%-25.12% 4.2-6.2 61.71 58.61 6.4 5N 8 -9 500,000 2015 00219
0.59%-1.11% 24.10%-25.11% 4.2-6.2 61.68 58.60 9.0 NIWN YRV 4 -5 700,000 2015 002 22
1.05%-1.63% 23.20%-24.50% 4.2-6.2 58.22 55.56 0.5 NNX NN 40,000 201592087213

MY NNN VIYYA YINN MININD 22N YINMD NINII
YINIRND NOWIANT NMNPN 9 DY DMADIN MNITA IRNND PPN VN MPINN NYANN NIVNN
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(TUNN) M Y0VIAN DIMYYN - 23 NINa
$PNOIND AN NN JoNY  23.3

(D295Na) NINOIND 22N 9901

2013 2014 2015
4,725 2,965 3,453 N2 1 OV NN
- 1,580 1,240 NADN INRNPN
(1,715) (1,075) (590) (1) TPNOIN 2N WINMN
(45) (17) (177) TPNAIN AN VIPN
2,965 3,453 3,926 (2) 920872 31 OYY N
56.33 :2013 7Y 66.17 :2014) N7V 62.51 PN 2015 MV IWNINY MINIIND YIND YIND DA NINN NN DY H5PIWNn ysimnn (1
R(aka%]
MIMNT MDT NNMP (MNNINIIND Y9N 724 : 2014) PN AN YAHN 928 DY TO 12D, NPNNND NN TINN ,2015 920872 31 O»Y (2)

N2 N3N NN SODIAN DIMDYN  23.4

NPIND MPND XY APINN NNIPNY TNINDA NON NIIND )NPNIVPIT YN 2011 INN291 2 O3 .23.4.1
MY NNN WHRNI MYYIIN TYN 071530 MIDIND NP DINIVY

PR 34 -5 170 NN Y1 Black & Scholes 51 > Yy awin AUN Ipang NPSOIND S¥ NN PNV TO
MANPN 139 HY OMIDIN MNITA NRXIND NIPTI MIDNIN NYAIN NALNN .(N7Y AP 25.5 -5 NIINND PON) NYY
.6,029 110 NPNMND Y2ND 190 2014 12NNTA 31 OYY .NOYIANN

PNYIND MIPND XY NAPXNIN ARSPNY NN NPRNIYN NP DINRIVY NN 2015 92D RN DOWINA .23.4.2
NY NPTV NNN YWHN1IDWID NPSOIND .INPNNNA 0N 92 Hnk 191 D152 030N NYITYD

PR 2.4-5 1910 NN Tyma Black & Scholes 51 »9 Yy awin AuN Ipane NPSaIND S¥ 1NN PNV To
AN OO 1.8-5 NHaNn PYN) NY

1 Y00IAN DIMYYN DY TYPA 99U MINSHN 23.5

43212873 31 D2 NNINDNY MIYY
2013 2014 2015
7Y 939990

18 18 14 YN MNIIND NIPIIY NIIIN NNIINN
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MNIYPNN MNAIY ,05NAYY ,MN5N MNAMNNN - 24 N2

MON MNANNN

24.1

MHYIND JNIOND N9V NN MM NHINN THD VAYNN SNAY IWNNY NPMNNN MY anNn VYIS PNo 24.1.1
MYANNY MNOY XY D ,NT 2YWa NOIYN ,DMVAYNT MISYY NOIYN DY DOINN ,NHaND NYMN .NPNS»

:1vapNn
o190 m
» ”
nyann nysanh XYY . nYNIM I Y nha nUsn
1) ny*ann
v ny*ann
on) 57 MP92 DX TV PINNN HY 3T DY NIINIY NN PNV PNN M) | 1590 NIANN 0NN NI2N,NIIND | 3970 HINHN Wwninda "’Z“Oﬂlzg
(N¥1pn TINIPN NININ PIVYD XY
DTHN PV NPVYN NINM N7Ya
17Y2 DRIV INIPN PNV
38 INININN DN NN NNNIY MYON 7NN | -NemnNpN wrpna | I
o 2014
YN IPNY NMMWIND NI5NY NOY 1N NN 772NN TRID VAWNIN SN WNNY NPINHDN IYIANN VIS Pd  24.1.2
: TN DIDID TIND T MTN NNPNT PX2 DMVIYNN ©YINN NMNON
2150 NPIDANI NYANN XY yamn nYNIN 13 YNNa 19
nyann nYann nuIn
9315959) nYann
(nu\g
11 | DY 5PV WY »Y M1pya ;2015 Y1102 31 DY .DININ NOX THN NN YLD aa=lan] NN YNNI "32)31’;
.DYD 595D WD DIHNM MYIND NPNNI ,YIND 572 19-N"N2
11 | 9-N7N2 YA vIoNN 2015 9NN 11 DA .DNININD DXIXIN DDA NNINID NPYVN aa=lan] NN YNNI "3;9&’:{
PADIN NYIANN NPINNY NIAND NYPA NN TUND 19-N"12
12 | vnnea vONN 2015 NN 10 DY .MNTY MHINI DI NN NNINID YLD NPINN NN NN YNNI "32%311
IRNN NPIO KDY ¥2INN HY MPONDN NYTIN TWURD 1D-N/N2IINNDT NoMVNN HRIWI 197-NN2
MVN NVOW D
NINNDN
34 | NOXN2 PHINHN YR L2015 SXNI 28 DN .ANININD DAINID NDDA ANNDY MYON | NN "IN 712NN SN wrnma ":‘2%3;
172NN YD DIDIN INNDNA DYTIND P2 NIVIN ITONY PT PO HY 9PN 1NN N NN DINTOLY n9Na
792 DONDN 12IXY Y915N YPNNY DIWNN 48 DY NPN THNNI DY DX DIINN JaliVal
YN 6-55Y
20 | >hNnpn wrpmea vYNN L2015 55 1 DY .ANINHND DMINN MDA NN 7PN 72NN SHINRN Wrnma ":‘“’2%‘1’:
IR NPIOS KDY ,YAINN HY MPONDN NYTIN IWUNRD 19-N"N2 19-N"N2
200 | Y3 ,2015 5512 12 DM NPV IDVN YY DXDIIN NI NDDA NINDY YLD 72NN SN wrnma "3“’2%’1"1‘
PIMMPSY 17NN PN 1Y NIYAN DIDN NN Y/HNA IR INNONIY PT PO 19>-N"1N2
99N 200 -2 YW TO2 V7OV KINY 1D NPY XAOR 900 DV HNYIA DN NNIM MNIN
Ny
115 | wnida vYONN ;2015 92KANA 17 OPA ANINNND DAINN PPDI NNNID 7YV NNV> MASNND HINDN VNN 2%"1’2
YINN SY MPONON NYTHIN TWURD ,NONIHNHDN | 97T ITNNOINIR WY noNa
(509%) nrya
25 | MmN wrnma Y59 ,2015 920133 30 DY ANININD DAIXIN PNPDL NNNIY MHYON ™M1 NHIN mnnn wmma | 2015037
AT POAYY GPIN NY INN NYINN HY MPONDNN NYPA IR NN | 2102 NP DINILVY 19N
1,832 | DIPNI NTOWN DD MNDN INININD DN MIIWN 1D NMINNA NNNRID 1PYLVN N3N "IN 1570 YMNNN WHNna 2“:)"1’2
SY MPSNON NYTIN AWNRD 1730 S1HINNN Y7Hd2 VIINN 2016 DN 14 DY .DMWMIDN | H7Y1 DM DINILY
INSIN NPIO3 OO NYINN
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(TUNNY) MNIYPNNI MNAYY ,DINAYY ,MNIN MNAINNN - 24 N
(Tunn) NN MNIrHNH 24.1
MANR NN NHN2NNNI MY*an 24.1.3

NY MOV 91N YN 19IND ,NAPNNN NIANN N3N NIYNRN IRYI NHYI MIA»NNN AN5Y OXNN2 - 24.1.3.1
YUYW MY 2PY NIWNRN KW Y HOINY (MONNNN ANI2 ONITIND) IXXIN IN M2AN DD Hwa nwn
NP IN TOND PPV IN PIYNI MNYPI ,MIAPNNNN AN PIND MINX DIWND RYD NP 97IN2
PV IN PAYNI 0N NP YO IN ONN PN IN,MIAPNNNN 2NI2 DXONNNTN DIWVRD NN
NIVNN ONWN DOY NYapm DX ,NMIVYA MIINH WYIAPTY DIMODY G0N ,N1aNN BOHYNY DODN
9 DY NI2NN YW MIXYN PINNN 25% -2 HANN )2 DOVNNNN DIWPRNN INY IN TN P2 720802
NPV DD .("YNIPN TYINN oND) SN NDHUN DIDYN TIIND D) DININND DMADIN PIIMT
95 DDNOY PNINKD TTHN TY YIPN TYIIN 29D DONAY PINKD TTHN I TTHY TS M 22990
L0 P2 ,772N0 DY NN DY YW NYHHON NOONN NIYIN 2015 MY 90N .DYYNN NN TN
NV DMNVPPTY NDWH MIAPNNT NPINND NV YANI NPIYN IWANOY TI 1I2NN 1PN NPIN NN
SV 91NN NYOTH PPN ,O0MANPY 1IN NVIDYN DY 29PN MIAIY NN ONNONN NIYN
NPYO MANNNM NPINKRD NV SAND NPIYN 19T DX NV AN NPIWN IWINOY D 172NN
.1720N Y79 M2ADY ONAIPI NVIDVYN DY 29PN MY ;NN DNNINN NIV IRYIN DNVPPTH
.24.4.2 97N D) WX

nrya DM DINIVY TN Y aAn NN ("Ponr) Esio Beverage Company nian Sv npionn 24.1.3.2
PONR TNV NYIANT AN .2015 92HINA 5 -2 NWHN NIVIRY 27NN, INDT NPTHL (70 DIRIVY?)
WPYNOY (PINNDNNY) A9YT YPYN 5.25 TD2 PONRD RN PNY PHNY NNINN NN DN DINIVLVY
TN MPOY NN PIOANY NXINI PON 19 NNYY XOWNY ,PON DY )1N2 AT P9 25 DY qD) DI1OD
L0 DINIVY NN .NPPOY NPNNTIN JTINY DXMYT YTOIN N2 IR TIN IXRIIND )Y NYTND
INNONN DD NNND NPIGNY NYIN NYNIN DI DINIVY .50% -1 0910) YAPNND NYINN M0
JDOR DY DY Y090 NI GIPNA

31 OYY MNONDN DMITIPN DINNIA 1O ROY MINK MPAN) DMNIIND VAVYNN SN2 MYann  24.1.3.3
TPNYPN NDDPY NYT AN DY NDODINNN NIAND NN NYTY .APYY NP 91 -5 5¥ TOY 2015 120872
NNIAY DIOON HYN DN MPYANNN DTN NPV MTMNXNDN MIINDY NIIND M KD ,DMVIVNN

.D”9051 MNITA NWIdN NNYY)

DMPNIIN VAVYH SN2 NN MNP 973922 MINNDN ONYN NVOW 130 NOMOVNN NPINN NN THD  24.1.3.4
1DINN) N7Y NP 149 -5 Y TOY (NXI1APN PON) 2015 920NT2 31 DYDY MNONODNN ,MINN MM
8 -1 NTIAY MY MYIAN XA NYY NP 59,0700 NIVIN MYIN PHI2 N7Y NIPHN 82 -5 DY DIOD
NN ,NIANN YW DMVIYNRN TIIYPN HAPNNY YN DY DDINNA .(NPNIIN MPIAN 1PH2 N7Y NP
172NN NN VANV DYDY NYPN 51 DTIP PO DXTOMIN DMMINN DMVIYNN DIIINN SV
MYIDN NI MR I MPIANNN NPYY DN 112 -5 53 NDIRNN NV NIV 295 ROV NPININD
MYANNN DMONN DIXTOINN NDMIY DIPYADNI DXIAVYMN (NXIIAPN PYN) N7Y NP 11 -5 Hw o
NNINRN

.35.1.2 7IN2 IR NN MYPYN - TITYOIPIN GPINK NXAPN MNIN WDPY MIAVN 1272 24.1.3.5
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(TUNNY MNIYPNNI MNATY ,DXNAYY ,MNON MNANNNN - 24 N

oMYy 24.2
S YOPOTI DITIAYY NN NXIAPN MIAN NPMIANNND NNVIANY 24.2.1
93598473 31
2014 2015
Y NPIN
3 3 91N2 DYP)2 NVY HINA BYIVIV DD DY
57 41 TNND MNVN NVIY 9D NHNVHIN NIAN YD) DY
NN DY 191 Y7 KT YD) ,0NIPNN ,D3IWIN ,0 , TP ,NINON DY DVIV DITIAYY DINDMP 24.2.2

IR NPT NAVY NIND MYNSN NXIAPN MIIN 190N DY ,DXTANYNN DIDDNN MMOTM
AYIAPIY DININD MM ON DY NIPN DOPIYA ITNN NNVLIANY

NXIAPN NN 9909 DY ONDNDY TPN ,MNDN PTMI NOT YD) DY DV DWIAP DITIAYY DMIMP 24.2.3
INIYN NNLIAN TN DINNY DY NAWVD
TaYWO IN PYND NOY NIND DINN DNNHHD DN DIPI2 NV NIAND DY MIANNNN NHMP 24.2.4
LWUNIY AND2 DMNRHN DI DIPIAN NNIDN NYAP KYY DIDI)
mNaIyY 24.3
VNN DINNDY DOPIAD TN 12NN NN NN ,NNIAPN DY NOPOYN MPYoN Dy Wpa 24.3.1
S PIap)
925873 31
2014 2015
7Y 239951
384 467 21N2) ¥IND N2 MHAN NAVY
23 22 9/1N2) YIN2 DINN NVO
MY2NN YN (D299 NI MDANND NPTTN MNAY MNP NOY NMITMXHD MIHAN PIAY NHaNN P2 24.3.2

.DMINNY DYP32 %990 MA»NNNN YD NNLVANY , 01502

DY IMIVPHN 24.9

»H-10>79 DINILVYA (NPPDRY” :PNY) Pepsico Foods International nypwnb mvpnnn nnona  24.4.1
NNAYN IPRY T T DY (POPYL IN PIYNI) VOVWOIN NI2NN 12 NIPN D, NPIND Y1 P2 050N N7Y3
95 NN WD MNNXD NVOYI NIANN DY NNYPIN DOWTIN 12 NONN MDD IPPDY 7PN ,DINIVY
NINAY, 050N ITOIN IDIN YAPOYW PIY NN D7V MD-10219 DINIVYA 172NN DY MIMIN 7NN
20 JPIND YAPM DOVUTIN 12 OMN TYNI WTNN NOVODYWN HY2 DY NOWS GNYY 19 DINA NND P09V
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STO9N NN YY IPMINN

MINYN 552592 09599 2239 1NN MYN MY NN 28.2.3

-3 2015 720872 31 DY .MNWHN NPIDITN NN PO NN IO >0 IRS MNpOYA nwnnwn NHann
.Y TN MRPDWN DY PINN MY D902 TIvN 2014

DINYN NH359 YOV BPYWIN 223D MY NN 28.2.4

TVINI DMDIHN OINN VLYNY NMIAMNNNM DODIIN Y PH2 MVINDIARN NN MNYWI NPV
YY) MY MM \9NY DNNND DIMODI NIAPIWN NMPND NNIN AN PINN NN (POPY) DT MPTN
DN MYaWn) DOYNNI DOYIAP IRY DINWNN INY DOV NMNINA

2015 9308472 31

(NNYYN) NN
NO¥? 2% "O*P 1% MNUN MY 91N 1% 91 2%

N7Y 239590

105N 5N

(3) 1) (5) 2 4 (NN
2014 92812 31
(NNYYN) NN

PO 2% "OYp 1% MOYN N PHa 91 1% 912 2%
V7Y 9399951
NOIDN O”NO
(10) (5) (1) 5 10 (NMNX)

: DD DYV
M2 NIAND IMIAMNNN IPYMN INTN YVRD MDD MTINY MNYN NP2 NH2AND MDION Py
DOOPYN NIDYTH NI MITINN INWH
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-\’f 727793 9)9) DINIOVY
Gﬂ(ﬁ{le ' DXTHINNDN DAVIN MMTY 0Y9INa

(TUnn) 0”019 DIYPYIN - 28 NINa

MIIND 29NN 3’0 28.3

DYaANN MDY NPWN D¥NYY >1oa (Derivatives) oMm D»OIS DXPYINI YW MV N81aPN MIan
MY DIDIN IX (VAN IND ,DPN INPP ,PIN N9P) N¥1I MYNTN MNND SY DPIN DIPNN MMPWN
(D1 ,09) MNNDN MNNN DYOVINN

: NNYAPN W DOMNNN (NDN2 3I1) DIVNN DI DXPWINN VYV N9 28.3.1

2015 920873 31 09Y

MY 09901 Ty 273 799 NYIP /YN TN
N
Y 2919
(4) 170 2016 720VAD — 2016 NN I YNV DININ
- 37 2016 >y — 2016 XN Buy Call - ywonw nyyon
- (6) 2016 '8N0 Sell Call - yanow nyyax
(2) (44) 2016991 — 2016 XN Sell Put - 1now nysamw
(6)
2014 92871 31 09Y
MY 09902 Ty 2993 79 NYP /YNNI TN
N
/Y 2919
(16) 177 2015 920V90 — 2015 NN I WOV OONIN
(1) 92 201551 — 2015 X0 Buy Call - ywomw nyxaN
1 (103) 2015597 — 2015 X0 Sell Call - yanow nysawx
(3) (83) 2015 °9 — 2015 X0 Sell Put-anovw nysow

(19)

Y Nop
Y Nop
Y Nop
Y Nop

Py Nop
Py Nop
Py Nop
P17 Nap

DPSINY NNTPNR NMINPOY — MY NN’ 28.3.2

MNXPOY 1PX2,NNPND NN NNY PNN DX (POPN) DHTHN DINAN OPMNNT NNNDN YPNNIA (NTI) MDY
,DOIP IIRY DNNWNN INY TV NNINA NUY) DT NN .)9NY DNHIND DINMIODI  NPNNNY NPTINY
0N MYSVnn 0dyNMmI

2015 920841 31
I PN MY

o> 10% MO 5% 0292 912 5% 9192 10%
7Y 23990
(7) (3) (1) 3 6 NPTy
(13) 7) (5) 6 13 VDI
(20) (10) (6) 9 19 751 70
2014420872 31
T8 N0 MY
o> 10% NO¥P 5% _ e 912 5% 9192 10%
R
(10 (5) (12) 5 9 NP>y
(13) (6) (7) 6 12 VDN
(23) (11) (19) 11 21 951 70
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orrmﬂe ' DXTHINNDN DAVIN MMTY 0Y9INa

(TUnn) 0”019 DIYPYIN - 28 NINa

NN Yavn 990 28.4

TN 70 2015 7210872 31 OYY .NOW NIN YaILN NN PN IT0 71D (OTC) oa nupnwn NP 28.4.1
NP 4 -5 DOHNDN NXIAPN DY VI (NIN YIVN) DN OMDININ D1PYINN YV NN NV 011901
(N7 YoM 18 -5 2014 929872 31 DYDY DY

002990 (7MM2NNN) DDV DN MY NN 28.4.2
720872 31 OYY N¥IPN Sv oMK (OTC — IN ¥yavn) DAININ DPYIND DN MW MM PP
91N TN ,1208TA 31 PIAINNY DMIPIN MYV HY PYNN MYV NPV 2014 920872 31 oD 2015
DOINWNN IRY YIYW NN NYY 1% NN 19N DHXINN DIODI NMPNY NN NN NNN DX (POPN)
DN MYaYNN DHYNNI ,D0NIP IIRY»

2015 932872 31
MY 09901 79y

0P 10% PP 5% M N1 5% 9793 10%
Y 9PN
35118 3.7069 3.902 4.0971 4.2922 AT /Y NIV
(11) (5) 4 5 8 A9YT /07 99T DD
2014 9312872 31
NS 10% popsn MY °;;?|°’ T YPAS%  HYPY10%
7Y 9PN
3.5001 3.6946 3.8890 4.0835 4.2779 9T /NY NYY
(12) (7) 16 3 5 A9YT /0P YT DD
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12792 9Y9) DINILY

OY1NINDN DD MM DI9INA

(TUnn) 0”019 DIPYIN - 28 NINa
(JUNN) YIN Y2V *NI*D 28.4
N80 Y0702 %9 Yy Y9091 281N Yy M1 28.4.3
2YIAPYTO NN, DTN DYDINH DXPYWIN X VYNY NIN YAV TTH 120D NP NOVN

2015 4any84a 31
10 09 NY NN Y294 9IN N1 THnY XY N7Y s 'Y
n7Y 191

560 - 58 2 86 92 322 - DM NI DNONN

60 - - - - 4 31 25 NYTPY TV MM

926 - 145 132 2 24 623 - mnpo
168 75 1 2 8 62 20 - (1) 12N MM DXI»N
208 - 10 - 50 69 79 - TN JIIY N2IN NI MINK MYPYN
(178) - - - - - - (178) 2N MNVN DY MOVIV NMIN
(181) - - (31) - (36) (110) (4) NP P OINIYNY MRNON
(713) - (44) (7) (18) (171) (473) - (a)phalv)
(510) (80) (34) (29) (4) (10) (338) (15) (2) MDY MINM DONOY
(834) - - - - - (478) (356) 2N MDN
(943) - - - - (15) (460) (468) TIIN YOI INIUNI MINNON

(1,437) (5) 136 69 124 19 (784) (996) 510

7Y MIPN 15 -3 DY TOI DX DODII DIPYIM KO ND (1)
7YMIPHN 21 -5 HY TOI DTN D10 DIPYIN IO ND  (2)
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-\f 127793 9Y9) DINIOVY
Glf(ﬁ(,l[% ' DXTNINNDN DAVIN MMTY BY9INa

(TUnn) 02019 DIPYIN - 28 NINa

(7UnN) YIN ¥avVNI NP 28.4
(TUNnN) N8N Y001 %0 YY K9D5N 28NN Iy M7 28.4.3
2014 4ans41a 31
219 9033%9 N5 NN Y294 9N 91 TN NS 7Y Y n'Y
/7Y 93990
767 - 64 4 106 89 504 - 0IDITN MNYY DINNND
121 - 4 - - 9 45 63 NMTP T MM
907 3 186 107 5 27 579 - mMmpo
229 79 5 - 36 108 1 - (1) *n2m MHIN 01I»N
245 4 6 90 97 48 - TN P23 N2IN NI MINK MYPYN
(179) - - - - (179) 2N NN DY MAVIY NMION
(150) - - (2) - (50) (94) (4) NP PIID IRIUNI MINNION
(846) - (60) (6) (26) (215) (539) - DYPav
(559) (88) (33) (37) (8) (11) (364) (18) (2) *MOT MMM DOXOY
(1,020) - - - - - (480) (540) N MIN
(1,045) - - - - (51) (519) (475) TN PITDONRIUNI MINNON
(1,530) (2) 172 66 203 3 (819) (1,153) 51D
NN NNPNA MINND DINNND TN DY WTNND AN *

Y MIPDN 27 -5 HYW TOI DTN DODII DIPYIN INONY (1)
7YMIPDN 37 -5 DY TOI DTN DODII DIPYIN IO NY  (2)
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OYNINDN DD MNTY DI9INA

(TUnn) 0019 DIPYIN - 28 NINa
(Tunn) NN ¥yavn *99%0 28.4
M09 (MNA1NHNN) DI0Y DN MY NN 28.4.4

DYDY DOV YINN YIVN NDY DNMNNL ,I120NTA 31 DIINND DMIPOYN NMIYAVNN HY PIONN MYYI NPV
NNN) PN DR (POPN) DT N ,NYY MPINNN MNAND DWI NN DY MDY YAV IPRY |, IN ¥a0NI OXIPIN
11912 ©MNINN DIDDDA (NIANN DY NN YA 55 DNPHN

2015 93871 31
19 7 N7YY
PO>P 10% PO 5% 9902 913 5% 997193 10%

Y 239991
3.50 3.69 3.90 4.10 4.29 9T /N7Y NYY
(2) (1) 24 1 2 7Y 2991 YWD
66.71 70.42 74.12 77.83 81.54 997 /5277 NryY
11 6 (113) (6) (11) 7Y 9199792 NYIUN
21.68 22.89 24.09 25.30 26.50 99Y7 /1229 NYY
3 2 (34) (2) (3) 1Y 21992 NYIUN

2014 929893 31
199 /7 YV
P3P 10% PO 5% o902 913 5% 99193 10%

/Y 23990
3.50 3.69 3.89 4.08 4.28 9T /NY YWY
(8) (4) 81 4 8 7Y 2991 NYIUN
53.59 56.57 59.54 62.52 65.50 A9YT /929 Nryw
9 4 (90) (4) (9 N1Y 1PN NYOVN
14.19 14.98 15.77 16.56 17.35 9937 /N°29) NYY
3 2 (34) (2) (3) N1Y 1PN NYOVN

71 92°0 28.5

PIPNANNN GTIVN YN TTHN NIPON PON ITHV 3T NMY MANPNY DI PAY TT1 2N NWHNNWN 112NN 28.5.1

799 SHN =Y NN 28.5.2

NANT TTAY DAY DXVIND NP YTYINT AWNNNY dNIY DD DY NN 19IND D PNNN TT0a (M) MDY
9955 ONYPPN NIN) NNN NN (NPVPN) ND>TI NN DM TNYN TTHN SINKD TN DI Y NN MWL OOVNN
NNINA NYYY DY MINA 0N DAXIND DMNDDI PN DIXTIN 1PH2 IMHPND NNIN NN (NIANN DY NN oyl
DN MWD DOYNNI , D3NP TRY DNNWYNN IRY DIV

2015 9208414 31
01902 79y
PN Y
Y PN
19 @ (34 7 19

PO 2% PO 1% 5153 1% Y193 2%

O»PNY TTDOIIN

2014 4anyTa 31
0’9902 79y
NN Y
7Y 239991

(21) (10) (27) 10 21

POIP 2% PO 1% Y193 1% 919 2%

OOTNY TTNOININ
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ol lae’ DYTMINDD B2DD MMTY DYINA

(TUnn) 0019 DIYPYIN - 28 NINa
MYt 19990 28.6

TINNOM (T NITOY 2 MITO) 1IN MMN NPAN MYNANI ORIUN DN MY 172NN DY DPNMIA»NNN Iy
12%1 DNV TIND .DXPIAN OXNVN PN ORIYNX MNP NN ¥ ,NON NMPNNN DY qON .DINND) DYPI1an
Sy NOLVIV NPDINAN NMINNNA TINYD NY DIIWIRND YN ,DMIPN ONNIN MDA 192NN DY NPPOYN MDYIN
192NN 99N ,MPOYN MYAN NINY NN DY qON )10 MNPNY 112NN WITM NN ANY OY TN .NNNY
NPYONNN DY OMIND PIYPIAN XTI NN PNY .DMYID DX TPIYN DXADNN INXIYND MNP NN INYD P2 DN
Y NYTN PINNY DWW OXTTNH HY DDIANND 1T M .HHP MNIDN NYAYND VI TR ,N23) MDYN KD NPOIND

P2 MY N7ON DY POHN WY, TTNI : D 9DIN AN
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-\f 127793 9Y9) DINIOVY
Glf(ﬁ(,l[% ' DXTNINNDN DAVIN MMTY BY9INa

(TUnn) 02019 DIYPYIN - 28 NINa

(Tunn) MY 9’0 28.6
2015 920872 31
2021 09N
T8 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 MN DXINN D190 T9vN MNa
7Y 2999951

- - - - - 713 713 713 17 DOPOv
- - - - 24 21 45 45 18,21 DN
- - - - - 13 13 13 18 (1) Y2795 NN NN NN
- - - - - 465 465 497 18 (2) DINN DXNOY
- - - 182 189 197 568 534 20 12 7T NN
358 77 46 47 39 21 588 478 20 T VT NN
- - - - - 22 22 22 20 D321 MIVYT IRNON
28 27 55 6 6 7 129 100 20 D3N MOYPY NNNN
27 27 54 4 5 121 102 20 D320 MOYPY NNNN
- - - - 48 49 97 93 20 DOPIAN NOPY NIRMON
189 99 102 16 17 17 440 369 20 DOINND NPOPY MINNIN
158 67 24 24 25 26 324 250 20 DINNND TPV NINNIN
- - - - 16 13 29 28 20 DOP3210 NPIVYT MXNYN
- - - - 1 1 2 2 20 DOINND MINT IRNYN
- - - - - 31 31 31 20 D330 Y2172 NIRNYN
- - 7 27 38 55 127 121 20 DINNNIY DOPIAN MINNIN
7 1 1 - - - 9 6 20 PN NPON

767 298 289 306 408 1,655 3,723 3,404

$YTONIPT NHNMINNIAN DM (1)
D2 1)1 05YY MININ YD D90 TN (2)
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-\f 127793 9Y9) DINIOVY
Glf(ﬁ(,l[% ' DXTNINNDN DAVIN MMTY BY9INa

(TUnn) 02019 DIYPYIN - 28 NINa

(Tunn) MY 9’0 28.6
2014 4amy7a 31
2020 =25 1))
1998 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 MN DM D990 T¥N MNa
7Y 2999951
- - - - - 846 846 846 17 (a)iphalv)
- - - 15 8 37 60 60 18 *DIT)
- - - - - 13 13 13 18 (1) 1799 NN NN NN
- - - - - 512 512 546 18 (2) DINNX DONOY
- - 184 191 198 206 779 719 20.1 2 17TO NN
435 46 47 39 21 21 609 480 20.1 T NYTO NN
- - - - 22 16 38 38 20.1 D120 TIVYT INNDN
56 55 6 6 6 6 135 100 20.1 D3N MOPY NNNON
56 55 4 4 127 103 20.1 D>P)2N NMOPY NRNON
- - B 48 49 50 147 139 20.1 D320 MOPY NNNON
290 103 17 17 17 17 461 375 20.1 DINKRND NPOPY MNNON
225 24 24 25 26 26 350 261 20.1 DINND NOOPY IRMON
- - - 13 13 34 60 60 20.1 D320 NPT MINNON
- - - - 1 2 3 3 20.1 DINND NIVYT IRNON
- - - - - 3 3 3 20.1 D321 9272 NIRMON
- 3 17 26 35 40 121 113 20.1 DINNMD) DI MNNIN
1,062 286 299 384 400 1,833 4,264 3,859

;YTON T NN NN NN (1)
D2 1)1 DHYH MNYIN Y915 §19D2 TN (2)

PNORN NMPNL MINNY OIRNNY TN HY UINN I *

69



-\’f 727793 9Y9) DINIVY
ol lnGe” DYTHINNDN DAVN MMTY YN

(TUnn) 0019 DIYPYIN - 28 NINa

00399 DY9YN YV NN MY 28.7
N MMY 28.7.1

LN TN DN ,MMPY ,TIINY I8P Y219 MYPYN ,DNINRN MY DINNN YW D901 TN
.DNYY NN MWD 2P IN ONIN MDT NN DINIT DXMPY NNND) DPADY NMA1NNN

SYAPST 1N 29097 ANH Y MTL AN D190 19Y DY TN, INN TN HW WNNN MNWn

SansTa 31
2014 2015
19 79
M MY 01902 MR MY D903
7Y 3PN

771 731 562 544 27970 2N MDN
535 485 537 483 T NITO 2N MMDN

NIANIY M HHD DMV TN AN YN T MY NDNIAN PN DY DDEIND  PINN MNWD

T Y70 NN X N7 PN 12 -1 9 702 2014 120872 31 OPYY 2015 920872 31 DYDY 2 NITO AN P
NI 5 -1 5 702 2014 920872 31 DYDY 2015 920872 31 DY

D MNY NI 28.7.2

D MY NIIYN NPV — 09N 28.7.2.1

Forward -n 9>nn 2 w1900 N0 902 9y TN Wnn Mvn - (Forward) nnTpx shn

VIDOY TIN,11TAY TY NHIND DY PN NI P2 nonn Forward -n v nn pad nvina 13N
DT DYPYINT MINNN PIY NP2

.Black & Scholes 515 oxnna ¥yap: NN MUn — N 20N Yy NPYIN

$INN MVA DTN DD BIIPYIN YV 1NN MY NN 28.7.2.2

2014 928472 31 2015 93108472 31
39 2 1929 3 2mn 19
1Y 939995
003399 (NNA»NNN) DI

- - 98 - - 45 DYPND T M)
- 17 10 - 6 9 D) 1)1 0IAYN
- (27) (33) - (36) 9 D) )2 OOND3
- - 23 - - 26 17790 PN IDINY DI
- - - 5 - - (1) 1IN MWD TPNIN
- (10) 98 5 (30) 71

TTR) TPSMIND DY INNN ONYN ITRNDN MIYN NVOY 295 NINVNN NPINII NN NN NYIITY TPINN (1)
5Y 19) NPIMNN NIANN DY NN NN ONY DY AN P2 ,MODINN TIN IDIP-NONN IMIXIID MYSHNI
,A00 Y NRY) NN MOIDN PYDA YD) TOIM NNIN DY NITI PIYYN NYIVN .MMT MIH2N DY NPNTHN

(12.6 MN2 XD
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M9 - 29 N2

430873 31 013 NNPINVIY MIYY

2013 2014 2015

7Y 23990

4,656 4,470 4,245 INPY DN MPON
678 635 602 DYINN DX MPON
271 310 336 (1) MINN MOION

5,605 5,415 5183

.D2YNPNN MDIDN DX NPV YPYWINT DXMPY JNNHD MDION IPPYI MOHID MINK MDIdN (1)

999190 My - 30 9INa

025999 *aY 30.1

430873 31 D12 NNINDNIY MIYY

2013 2014 2015

7Y 939990

2,670 2,587 2,570 (1) DN NN
401 396 384 NMYP MM MNOWN 1OV
116 107 106 MNN9M NN
211 202 188 TINNX N NINSN

3 4 2 NPINND NYIONL NPY

3,401 3,296 3,250
(12) 22 (22) Y NOO DIVYTINIP T MXPOY NIN PIYY

3,389 3,318 3,228

DRI TIY N PIA (NHRNNA NYY NI 23 -1 N7Y PO 35 :2013 -1 2014) NPYY NP 21 TO2 IV TOIN 9915 2015 MHwa (1)

10390 MNP *9Y 30.2
931873 31 012 NNINODNY NIYY
2013 2014 2015
7Y 999N
2,958 2,904 2,868 INPY DININ
334 270 257 DINN DMINN
109 122 125 (1) MMNN MOIdN
3,401 3,296 3,250
(12) 22 (22) MY YO DOVITIMP NN MINPOY NI TIYY
3,389 3,318 3,228

.00 NPV Y PYINT DIMPY INN 1A MMTY MY MINN MDIFN PA3 NMOY (1)



12792 9193 DINILY

Y&
Glf(’:(,l[% ' DYTHINNDN DAVN MMTY YN

PV 19910 MNNHN - 31 9IN2

43212873 31 D3 NNINDNY NIYY

2013 2014 2015

7Y 23990

544 544 523 NI MINSM MMNOVNI

331 312 201 (a)lvah]

8 4 17 DYTIAN MIN DOPNDN MAIN

219 212 208 1920 NINXN

143 154 158 NPINN NINSN

51 52 58 NINNM NND

MOV MPINID NN YT DY MINXIN 1NN

(32) (33) (38) MINNDN MNYN NOOY 29Y

77 73 71 mMHINN
1,341 1,318 1,198

1999 N9NIN MINNN - 32 NINa

43213873 31 D2 NNINDNY MIYY

2013 2014 2015
Y 9PN

227 212 207 (1) NI NINSIM 1OV
18 23 24 MNNAM NN
8 8 6 MmN
67 59 56 MNP I Iy
24 23 30 NPINN NINSIN
@ 2) 9) MONVHRN MPININ NN >T> DY MINNIN 1NN
MINNN MNYN NOOY Y
6 16 15 MINN

346 339 329
:9973 (1)
5 6 6 MY YINIYYD TIDINY NNV NNDI MINRYIN 1OV
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12792 9193 DINILY

L
o:fm{]e’ﬂ ‘

OYTNINNDN DD MNTY 0IINA

Y, MINN (MNRNHN) MDIIN - 33 N2

430873 31 013 NNPINVIY MIYY
2013 2014 2015

7Y 23990

MINK MDI9N
22 - 1 Y03 ,NYPYND 1797 M12P WIDT WINd KN NN

5 5 1 D07 DM DXDINA TITTH MOIdN
noNY

- - 6 O3 NNIN T MWW PII MDION

- - 4 NI1Y DPIMN DIDI TIY NN TOSN NV

1 2 4 MINK MDION

25 4 16 MINK MDIIN 71D
MINN MINHN

(4) - - nYpYNY 157 7Y NN 709N
(66) (17) (15) I ,2NMIN TN PNV X2 NIRNIN
(3) (17) (10 NPV NYIIN NNPPN PI2 MDY
0025 MNTI MNP WIDT PHA TOIN

- (41) (@) (1)) ,n7o1Y DIPINMN

- (32) (18) (2) ©»YNMN YN OX053 P2 TON
(36) (1) - MPINM MIIN2 MYPWN TIY NP
(10) (10) (10 TINKR MINRNIN
(119) (118) (57) MINX MXXN "D
(94) (114) (41) I ,MINN (MINKIN) MDION

15 D2 9PINY 1D PYOYD MM WK ,2014-T7YWNN NN YA MINNN OIPP PIN MMYI1 Do 2014 090 whna (1
2014 MW .DONIWNHPN 125 PN SPAD P DXITOM MWD MHYY 1273 MOM DXNOIN PN 12 ,¥1P PINN L2015 N3

YYD 30-5 DY TOI MNTI MINKIN PIA NNNN ,INYN P2 ,NNYI)

153 MNOANRY TIY MV ITIYPNRY (2
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12792 9193 DINILY

L
mrm{ue'ﬂ ‘

OYTNINNDN DD MNTY 0IINA

10,1999 MINNN - 34 9IN2

930873 31 012 NNINVIY NMIYY

2013 2014 2015
7Y 23995
NI MVIIN
22 14 12 293N MOIN
MY DOTTNRIN DTN DMV DIPWINM 1V NN
- 19 - TOOM NN TIT N
- 6 - POYN YW DNMPYH JOI NN
- 1 9 ) ,INIYIA 1IIXD OPNNIN TR NTIND PWIaMN
22 40 21 NI MDIdN N
NI MINYIN
PIN MY DITTHIN DOITN D1DINS DOPWINNI TON
- (8) TOOM AN TIT
(103) (107) (112) 2% MIRNIN
(6) - (1) POYN MYV DNPWN IO TON
- - (1) MINN
(27) - - ) ,INIWIA 1DIND DPNNN TR NTNRNN WM
(136) (107) (122) P MINRKIN 71D
(114) (67) (101) I, )10 MINRNIN
91511 5y 02N - 35 NN
HNIWA NYAPA 93N MW N3 DNN N2 9393 DIV 35.1

mMHan vn NYv 35.1.1

12015 - 2013 D)WY NH2AND DMOVIMIIN DPNOINPY PND e
25% — 2013
26.5% — 2014
26.5% — 2015

2016-y7ywNn (216 'O0) NDIIN DN NTIPO NPINY PIND DX NDON NNOYN NN 2016 NI 5 O»2
T 1.5% Sw Mwwa 781 2016 MHWN NN ,MAI2N DN NV NTNN,I0N P2 ,V3AP WXL ()P N
MMTN DY NYSWNN ,2015 920872 31 DYDY TY NYYND NNOVIN NNMN NPIPNN YN .25% DY TNy
9 -5 5v 702 DXNTIN DYONN NMDPNNN MM PNVIPA NNVIAND NNMN 2015 92HNTI 31 OPY DMHVON

MNIYH DRNNA DXAVINKD MNNTHN MNPND DXOVIWN DIDNN .OXNTI DIDHN MDIDN TN N7Y NPIN
995 0NN ONN

:19N9) 1961 - N7OWNN (WTN NOM) NDIDN DN NTIPAY 174 )1PPN MNIYI2 DD 2010 INN91 4 DV @

NYDNR - 29 7O MIRNAVN 1PN MOV NYY NIRMN YNIPN NTIPAY R87 YD qOIN INNONI ("ITipon”

nYapa SN XY MNXNIYNI 1PN OHNRIVWN TOMN 0019 (IFRS) 0»mind»a »905 mvT »pn

:19NY) ©»ADON MMTI DMN N PN OX X ,2009 -) 2008 ,2007 DNN NNV 12)7 NI»NN NDINN

T2 ,MYVUN IRND PN INNONL YN ,NTIPAY 188 1NP>N DONID 2012 N1 12 OV .("Nywn NXNNY

PPPN DOMNO 2014 5912 31 D2 .2011 -1 2010 DHN NN NN NDIINN NYIAPA D) DINd RY 29 Jpnv

1 OPN MDVPRITVI NN 2013 -1 2012 DHN NNV XD NYYN RN GPIN TININD INNONA NTIPY 202
2012 AN
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(qunn) NDI19NN Yy DPoN - 35 NN
(Tunn) HNIWa NYAPN M9AN MIW N3 TN N0 9372 DIV 35.1
PO MYPYN N PIND 99PN Mavn 35.1.2

:19N9) 1980-N/NWN  MNIPNA NI MYPYN YYD PINM 1959 -0mwn )N MYPYn DYy pinn »a Yy
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STYTTN NPIZN 132 N2 2NNNY NIAND MMYYY DN NIDIN "3

SNIYIY NINN NXAPA NYND 1Ha M DN MAvH 35.3

MO (15% S NYWa DIPNI) 2% DY NYYI NN NMNAN DD 172N TINDT 71P2702 NP )3
.2017 DN MY TY IR ,WITIN 9PN DXT2IY NPOYN 191 HY9Na DY DDA PMYPYN

YOI ON MY 35.4

MIAYMIN NPNIY NIDIY IN NPND DN NIDIY INXIN NIND MDD NPIPIYN NNAN MIANN TN N1aND
.2010 DNN NIV 591DY TY (1PT 29 DY NNYIONNN NMPN NIIND MINYTH NN Y TYND 91901) NPV

NN NIV H915Y TY PUID DIRIVY NY :PPITI NPMD DN MMY INNIN DXIWD NINND NXIAPH MI2ND
;2004 DN MY 55101 TY 1PN DIXIVY NIY ;2011 ONN NIV D01 TY TINNA NP DINIVY N1AY ; 2009
1Y ;2014 ONHN MY DI TY NV DINIVY NAY ;2014 ONN MY 9151 TY NPRIPIN DINILY NIY

.2011 ©HN MV Y9101 TY SE USAMAY ;2012 DHN MY 99101 TY YONTTN DINTLY

01 ’978Y DYaMN BTN 35.5

AN PN 467 :2014) N PO 509 DY TOA NN MIYD DMaINN DN IIXY POYN DXTOIN NXIAPY
AN DD 351 :2014) N DN 467 DY DIDDA NN DXNTI DY0N 1P XD DIHAY DITOONN NI

76



-\f 727793 9Y9) DINIVY
Glf(ﬁ(.l[% ' DYTHINNDN DAVN MMTY YN

(qunn) NDI19NN Yy DPoN - 35 NN
DaF O Rakda)s] 35.6

DYTTN P2 NPHNINDIA NMIRPOYA DININ NN NP MAIYNN MIVARDN NVPN DD PIN DN WP
MNPOYL PIVN MNY NPNIY NINIPY VAP NIPNN NNDNA .2006 92H2N YTINT 1NN IUN ,0MNIVP
nYY NYN NINA 192NN IR MNPOYY DNMNNT MPT NININ Y 1971 ,0MNWP DX TN P2 NPOINDI

NNPNY OXRNNA YATIY D25 DMIPD NYNIN DN 192Y1 7NN

NMYHNI MY 35.7

MYAT 10 1295 2013 - 2011 ©NN NNYO MMV HXIYI NN MIAN 190D NIIND VAP MTH NOPNI
DYUNN MMYN NINDNI H2IY DITDY HYN (NTNNN YW N¥2¥) MIAID) NYY NP 64 -5 DY TO OHwH
MMV DY MY NI DNPN NINVOY NYIT IR NMIMT ,NNIN MIINT NIINN DN DIV )2 DXVIVN
TYPY PIN DIVOY ¥aN2 2011 MY X2 NY XN AUR N DY 9IYIY NYOIN NNV MIATHN N3N 1D MO 9N
MN»P ,N1INN NYMN NIIWND IOV DNN IXYP MYSHNI NN 200 35.1.2 PYDI NN PN MYPYn

12N MI2NM NI2NN 21902 MPADN MYIN

1039710 Yy 00N MNIN 1990 35.8
93253843 31 092 NNINVIVY NIYY
2013 2014 2015
Y 2919
152 134 111 DV DYON
13 13 41 D'NT) DOON
(4) (3 (13) MNP DNY DION
4 - - 0NN OINYVIA MY NYAVN
165 144 139
1099902 19593Y 9NN MNYIN 1925 DN 299 NN YY SVIININN TNN P2 NNPINNN 35.9
93259843 31 02 NNPINVIVY NIYY
2013 2014 2015
/Y 2919
496 478 484 10ION YY DXON 7Y NN
25% 26.5% 26.5% MPIYN DNN NYY
124 127 128 MDY DN NYW Y NDIDNN DY DOON
4 - - 0NN NIV NPV NYIVN
20 - - DONIJD DN )2 DN
5 20 16 91N/ T TITAYT X2 DN NININ
28 17 21 10,002 DOV
DYDN DM DY NOVW (DXTDN DIX) DMINT DIVWIN
3 (3) ) oNM
MYN NVIY 290 MONVLNPN MPIMN MIAN NN PON
(27) (29) (28) DXNTI DD DN INIWI ROV MNINNDN
9 6 5 DXNTI DOON DIH2 MYII NI IUN TIY M1
3 10 11 VI ,IN MSIND DHNHOINYYIOINYNN NRNIND DIWINMN
(4) (3) (13) MNTIP DOV DOON
- (1) (1) DXNNMN DN MNYYI MAVNN NRNIND DOYIMN
165 144 139 TO9M NN MTA NDIINN DY DON
33.3% 30.1% 28.7% YVPIN DN NV

77



12792 9Y9) DINILY

L
o:rm(.ue'i: ‘

OY1NINDN DD MM DI9INA

(qUnn) NOINN YY 0Y0M - 35 NINa

(7M2NNNA) 0023 DINYIN DINTIN BY0NN 199D 35.10
oMM»Y oMY
o0'ona (1)) PO°p 0'ona (1)) POrp
=Masth! MNYINA [~Masth! MNYINA
31 09Y N 19PIVY N1 DOON 31 099 N apIY N1 DYON 1099 N
2015 930873 PY MY 7097 N2 2014 920873 NY MY 1091 N2 2014 9N»0a
:1°)2 DONTI DOON
13 - 8 5 - (3) 8 DOPNDHN MAINS NYIMN
12 - - 12 - 2 10 NN NYIHND YN
11 (10 (6) 27 11 - 16 DN IND D) DITON
6 1 - 5 - (2) 7 Tayn T2 HO0N DD PH1 DXTIYY MALVN
- - (1) 1 (1) 1 1 NI MNNNN
8 - 7 15 (1) (3) 19 DINX DINT DOV
(211) 7 (19 (199) (3) (5) (191) MINTI MR NN YOI MNP VIO
7 - - 7 (2) 6 3 TNTH MINRPOY
N2 MI2NA NYPYNN DOYINN DIWION
(32) - (16) (16) - (9 (7) RN ONYN NVOW 9D MPINMNT NN
(186) (2) (41) (143) 4 (13) (134)
9%-43% 9%-43% 9%-43%

78



12792 9193 DINILY

e S
orrmﬂe ' DYTMINDD B2DN MMTY DYINA

19399 991119 Y9202 NN - 36 N2

NP 257 TOI MM NMINN YA DAY NN DY DDINN 2015 929XT2 31 OPY 7PINY YOY02N NN DIWIN
AVINNT,MDMNIN NPIND 190N DY HOPIVNT YNNI PINK (NHINRNNI NPY NP 234 -1 235 :2013 -) 2014) DY
1 N2 19N

:MZMNIN NN 90N DY SOPIVN YSINN

2013 2014 2015
7Y 239951
107.2 107.5 107.9 N 1 0P NN
0.2 0.1 0.2 NNPNI MIIPIVH NN IWNINY NN NIDINA
(0.9) (0.9) (0.9) ININD NN NN
TNXY WNIVY MMM NPINT 190N DY H5PIvWN Y8 NN
106.5 106.7 107.2 920872 31 DYY INY XD NI 1WN

MMM NPIND DY ONPHN NNIN DY DOINN 2013 -) 2014 ,2015 92HNT2 31 OV NMIND D91 THN NNIN IWIN
95 1)2 NHRNN INND ,ITNNIY MDD NPIND 190N DY HHPIWNN YNNI PINKY ,1MINY Y0020 NHYIN YNNI
: NID I9IND AYINKN ,MODTIRN NPHNINIVID MDD NINN

: (O9Y10) MDMNIN NPIND 190N DY HOPIVN YNNI

43215873 31 D2 NNINDNY NMIYY

2013 2014 2015
7Y 239951
TNXY WNIUY MMM NPINT 190N DY 557IvN YNINN
106.5 106.7 107.2 715 5002 NI 1WN
0.8 0.8 0.5 NPIND NPININ NYIVN
TNXY WNIVY MNIN NPINT 190N YW 55PN YXINN
107.3 107.5 107.7 N5 59N NN 2IWN

PIV NN DY DDIANN ,NMIND NPXNIND DY NODTNRN NYOIVNN 2N TNND 172NN NN DY YNINND PIVN ONY
NTNNI MNP PN NPINNN NIV NNPNN TONNI DOVVINND

AN AON 275 ) TPNOIN AN 290N 1,580 : 2013 -y 2014 DIWI) TPNON AN YN 2,633 ,2015 120872 31 OP2
SVIN DNYIVNIY INRMD L(OD110) MIDININ NPIND 1900 DY S9N YXINNN 2IWINL 1993 XD (MINNND ,MNIIN
Babpgia

79



W
orrm(.ue'ﬂ ‘

12792 9193 DINILY

OYNINDN DD MNTY DI9INA

099V X718 1993y YJ¥a DY MNPOY MM - 37 9N

DINYP DIT1YY 193y d5¥a MDY
™MNAN 0NN NY2N Y DNWP OTTY ,DND NIIN DN 772NN YW DNWUPN OXTTSM POy Moya
DNINN NP2 19NN MM DXNOPIT 191 (12 NN TIN) NINHDN MNYN NV 399 MINVH MPINN

.1I2NN YW D9HI1NNIN NNOND FWIN NN

1199932 NYNIN 93N DY MNPOY

430873 31 D12 NNINVNIY NIYY

sy aapp N f99n W 90n
Y DOUIN N’y DOVIN n”y DOVIN
28 9 21 9 20 8 I8P ITY Mavn
2 9 1 8 1 8 NPOYN DPD PIa MIVN
11 9 10 8 9 8 NI DDA DVYN
41 32 30

43215873 31 D2 NNINDNY NIYY

2013 2014 2015
5395951 5901 MO 190N 99159913 9901
Y DOWUIN N’y OIVIN N’y OIVIN
3 11 3 11 3 11 DPOVIN DPNY DINVPIT
4 1 q 1 3 1 DPONN PNY YA
7 12 7 12 6 12

37.1

37.2
Y1)0 DXV .NNANN YV NPNNIND NN OANNVH NI2N NYMNN 1IN ,MNOWM DY qona 37.2.1

:YAPYTI I N792 NYMIN MIAND MAVN .23 TN NN ,2015 MV DIDNINID NN NNRNPN

SPIPYTO N YPNVPITN MANY MAvN  37.2.2

2015 920XT2 31 OPY TOON NN MTA NP NONIN NIRXIN 1993 PNVPITN MIAND ML I MR
.2014 920%72 31 OPY NNYTL,02VPPT IOV X2 NYY IPHIN 1 -5 DY 702 MOT NN NHMP

Y 24.1.3.1 ©’1INA XY ,NIVN IR D NOPIT MV DO NIVND IRV NVWH MIMNNN AND 1271 37.2.3

80

.24.4.2



W
ol rm(.ue'i: ‘

12792 9193 DINILY

OYNINDN DD MNTY DI9INA

(TUNN) DINUP DIT1 1Y S9¥a Y MNPO MINS - 37 9INA

DINYUP DITIY 1Y dHya DY MNPOYI MIn>  37.3

MM MIaN
99 MYIVNN oNnN NN
MYN NLVIY QINYP OITT8
2% MINNN nbv
/Y 210
12015 9353872 31 0V
35 35 - 025N MNIPYA DNXINN PRY YHYIN DXV DIDI)
" " PO NN MM MYPYNL DANIND 1Y YN TR JITY DO
TN
(11) (7) (4) DYNOT) DYPADA NNXIND PNY YIYAT MOVIY NMNNN
:2014 921873 31 DY
34 34 - D270 MNP ONXIND 1Y ODYAN DOVIVY DYDI)
0 0 PITD NN NN MYPYN DNIXIND 1Y OD¥AN TN 19D DD
TN
(39) (34) (5) DONOTY DYPADI NMNXIND 1Y ODYAY MOVIY MNIAPNNN
MPINM Man
99 MY2IVNN DN NN
MVYN NVYY DINYP OIT18
2’79 NINNN (1) nov
/Y 2919
+2015 931872 31 D12 NNPNDNIVY NIVY
14 14 - non
9 9 - nmp
29 46 (17) MAOOIY NYTIN NN (MNXIN) MDION
4 4 - O, YD MDION
+2014 921874 31 02 NNMNOVAY NIYY
37 35 2 non
(50) (34) (16) nmp
17 38 (21) NMPOYOY NYTN NN (MNXIN) MDION
5 5 - 103,110 MVION
$2013 921874 31 02 NNMNONY NIYY
52 18 34 non
(54) (35) (19) nmp
11 37 (26) PO NHTIN NI (MNXIN) MDION
6 6 - ), )M MDION
MOY 0HYYN 1Py K515 2015 MWL .DXYNPN DMINDN DINXINT DOYAPI IV 1O DY MYNIANT MNPODYN PITINIYRD INIM D7 PNHNN (1)

12 792 H7¥2 N NYI NIINHD DIDI YW NYIIT (N7 2P 5 :2013 ,N7W NP 5 :2014) N7Y MNP 5 702 H7Ya PN 27 NH1aNY
MNPN 18 : 2013) N7Y MNP 16 TOA 191N NN MIATNNN MNP 1DH5) 2014 MIVA (MY NIVPN 22 : 2013 ,N7Y NP 16 : 2014) N'Y VPN

NPY P 29 TOINY DIRIVY NITHI NIIND DY) >IN MM 1995 2013 MW (N



12792 9193 DINILY

e
ol lnGe” DYTMINDD B2DN MMTY DYINA

909N 28NN HY MTH TPIND INNRD DIMIN - 38 NIN2

.24.1.2 7IN2 NI 29057 ANNN DY MITH PIND INKD TN NYYAN 01VIVYNN DXIDNN OPD 2)0 DP9 38.1

121NN AWN NPINT IOYAY NN NNNON DY TIT2 THITT NOP DIRIVY , NN NN NPYN 2016 XIS WTINA 38.2
.VYYY NP PR TUR NPT DYDY O N7Y NP 22 -5 DY TO

NN 971922 MINDN ONWN NVIW 29 nvmvnn npyn n1an ,Trés Coragbes nwoa 2016 ©n wnna 38.3
NN 9915 Mann 2 ooonn .Cia lguacu nopn NN Sw o»RNYNPN NOPN HMNY NONPHN MDD

o712 Cia Iguacu Sv o om0 (Igacu, Cruseiro, Amigo) o»xNynpn NOPN NN NI
.271922 NPNVIIIN NMYIN DY NYINR NYV DODNN D192 NNG HHIY NPT INN

82



of k’)(ﬁf“

7191 '90) YT'n
2015 nanyTa 31 o'y




12792 9193 DINILY

N
mfm{]e’ﬂ ‘

2015 931893 31 019 1993 %905 Y151 - /2 NAD)

Y 9991, 023391 199N
1 DMIP2AN PNAVNN IR DY TNPH N T
2 172NN YW %9057 230N Yy DX
4 192NN DY TO9 NN N
5 172NN W 55157 NNIN DY 0N
6 172NN DY DMIMIVIN DN DY D)IN)

7 q0M YN



KPMG

03 684 8000 [19'70 I'i7**n Anio
03 684 8444 %Yo KPMG nim'ymn Tan
www.kpmg.co.il VIMVI'R 609 T &N ,17 nyaarn 2N

6100601 2ax '7n

79259

N7Y A1) DINIVY HY NN YHYa
49 ©>2>0N 'M

PN NN PV NOIP

,O.N

INYT) T9¥ 11929 MNIPNY 219 NIPN 39Y 1993 390 ¥ HY 09P2NPN PAYND NI DY THN MT N1
1970 - 57UnNn (119 DINANPN

LD DONMPN MINYIT) TIY IO ANPND X9 MPN 29 RN TN Y9057 YHN NN NIPA
2014-y 2015 920%72 31 OMY ,(NI2AND — 19N9) YANN PIPY2 NI DINIVY NN DY 1970 - H7vnn

11N TINN 905N YTHRN L2015 1NNTA 31 DY NNMNDN JNAY ININNNIY DIYN YIDUND NNNX 900
5¥ DDANNA TINN DI YNNI DY NYT NNNY NN NNPINN .NIANN DY NN 1PNVPITH NPINKA

2NNP

172NN DY NPONYY MYPYNN DY OIINNDN MNYD DXONPNNM TIN Y9050 YN DIYIN OINNIN
D90 NINYT YY DYDDIN ITRNDN MNYN NVIY 195 MOV MPINH MIAN DY (DTDH) DNNIA
LDMINN PNIAYN NI ST HY P12 DPONY

NN POND NIPND YITY NONR DNIPN 29 DY IV DDAIPHN NP MNPNY ONNNA NNNPI NN NI
JPIINKD DOYVIN THNN TIND Y9DIN YT PRY PINVI HY N0 DTN NPYND NIVHNI NYNID NNPIIAN
NMNMPIA . TIMNN 905N YN DXDIDON Y TN DINDIDDI MOMIND NPXRI DY TPRITH NPT NN NP2
DOTOIND YWY TI9)N d0ON YNN NI MNYPY DYRNIVNN DMYON DY N»Na D) N5
YDON YN DY MINNN MNMINI NOIYN 1) 112NN DY NN YPNOPPTN YT DY WY DOPMYHRYNN

JNYT NNND NMINY DD OIPADN DYINKD PIAYNT X MNTI NNNPPAY DXNIAD DN .TINN

M»NIAN D1, TNIY TINN YI0IN YTHN ,DXINN PNIAYN NI DY NINYITA DY NNNPIA DY DOIANNA ,NNYTH
21970 — 57wnin (D) TN DPNMPN NMINT) TIY MM NIPND A9 MPN MNXNNY ONNN ,NPMNNN

PP»N 7D
Mawn NN

2016 ©101 20

mnya Yw KPMG nwia niam noriw mamv ,pp»n Jno
,KPMG International Cooperative -1 mTnrnn nyRNYY
e mw (“KPMG International ™)

1



W
orrmﬂe”: ‘

12792 9193 DINILY

193NN YY Y9050 281N YY 0INM

9210873 31
2014 2015
7Y 2995
090V D0
374 232 DM NI DINNN
79 30 NMTPIN T MM
149 180 mNnpo
18 4 NN DN
39 28 12N MMM 0732»N
119 330 MPINM MH2N — D*X2"N
142 142 NN
36 62 N1 DYPIN DIDI)
956 1,008 090V 0Y09) 5700
090V DINY D09 MYPYN
2,012 1,565 MPINM NN MYpPYN
633 618 IR IITY NN NN MINK MYPYN
851 959 IP WD
60 56 D»YNIN N1 OX0I)
23 - nYPYNY o1
3,579 3,198 DOVIY DINRY DIV MYPYN 5710
4,535 4,206 009 5710
X299 INY DINILY NIAY

D90 "IN

PNOPPTN Y

2016 902 20

Y9021 YTIN NYIN TINND
799N

3017 TI9) N2 PON INNN TIN 29DIN Y1NIY §NNNN GONN YN



W
orrm(.ue'ﬂ ‘

12792 9193 DINILY

(TUnN) 793NN HY K957 28NN Y DINN)

93598473 31

2014 2015 YN
VY 23990 900
179 178 6
30 37 6

203 203

205 202

145 115

5 6

767 741
1,020 834 6
847 812 6

22 32

21 23
35 59 8

1,945 1,760

1,823 1,705

4,535 4,206

MALIY MNAINHNN

21N MIDN DY MaAvIVY MMYN

SY MAvIV NINTNT NP YITD INTUN
TVIN IO MINK NNAPNNM MINNIIN
a}{plalv

MO MINN DINDY

MPINIH MIAN — DINIY

MmN

MOVIY MNANND 571D

MAVIY JIINY MNANND

2N MMN

TVIN IO MINK NIMIPNNT MIRNIN
TN JIIY MO NN OINOY

), 0>TAIYY MV

DN DXOHN MANNN

MAVIV JINY MNIPNND 9710
19201 YY 7NN Yo¥ad onNdRn PN

INY MY MNAINHNN 27N

NN TI93 N2 PN NN TN Y9051 Y130 GNNNNI GONN Y 1NN

3



W
mfm(;e'ﬂ ‘

12792 9193 DINILY

19201 YY 109N NNY INM

930873 31 013 NNINVIVY MIYY

2013

2014

2015

7Y 23990

y1N
901

831 828 904
461 484 555
370 344 349
219 207 226

44 34 36
263 241 262
107 103 87

- 2 5

(23) (40) (18)
(23) (38) (13)

84 65 74

39 45 36

(141) (92) (99)

(102) (47) (63)
(18) 18 11
(27) (37) (28)
(45) (19) (17)
279 254 274
234 235 257

mon
moNn MY

M N9

PIPYI NI MINIIN

NYHIY NHIN MINNIN

SHINN MNRYIN 239Y *uan NN
MINK NMDION

MINK NINNIN

I, NMINN MINNIN

YNYan NN

PRI MOIdN

PO MINSIN

YOI DM MINSIN

170901 Yy 0201 2aY (T991) MMM
8 NDIONN YY DION NINNIN
170390 Yy 02019 INNY 109N

MPINM MNINN NN

192NN YY NN Y¥AY ONPNRN NIYY NNY

3017 TI9) YN PON INNN TIN 29DIN YTNIY GNNNN GONN YN



W
ol rm(.ue'i: ‘

12792 9193 DINILY

192NN YY K951 NN DY DI

431871 31 012 NNINUNY NIYY

2013 2014 2015
Y PN

234 235 257

(204) (169) (289)
(204) (169) (289)

(1) (5) -

(1) (5) -

29 61 (32)

19201 YY NN Yo¥ab NN NIYY NI

$1097) ANIY MAMY MAPNI 193PY INNX Y15 199N V9

MPINM NIANN INNX YD 10N

01991 103 ,17091) NNIY 192¥PY INNR K15 109N Y199 10

AN MAPIY MDPNA 19391 XIY INN YD1 1991 Y0999
1709

) ,DYTIYY MV NPV

D159 90,1990 NNIY 192 XY NN 9919 7090 Y0999 70

193010 YWY HINN SH¥aY ON1HRN NIV 915 (T097) N4

0N TI9) PN PON AN TIAN YD1 YTID GNNNN GONN Y10



L
o:rm(.ue'i: ‘

12792 9193 DINILY

192NN DY DIIINNN 1IN HY DINM

430873 31 012 NNINVIY MIYY

2013

2015

7Y 23990

234 235 257
37 37 46
15 16 18

4 14 (4)
13 16 12
(279) (254) (274)

102 47 63
27 37 28

(24) 4 12
(4) 20 24
(4) (38) (118)
18 (37) (7)
33 9 (51)

(81) (80) (30)
- (1) 1

(77 (81) (89)
10 20 20

(13) (41) 16
11 (77) (76)

(33) 125 49
- 38 4

(221) (249) (90)
(11) (13) (13)
7 4 5

(5) (3) (3)

362 303 340
54 55 35

(81) (63) (82)
72 197 245

(191) (245) (211)
- 1 -
247 237 -
(157) - (100)
(48) (64) -
(149) (71) (311)

(66) 49 (142)

391 325 374

325 374 232

NAVIV MY OIININ 999N

792NN DY NN HODYID ONPHN NIYD NN
:MNNNN

nno

MNTI MNXIM DPYNI YN DD DY NNNAN
I ,MINKN (MDIDN) NINNIN

N DDIAN DIVYN )2 NMINNIN

MPINM MI2NK NN

YOI I MINNIN

NDIONN YY DXON MINNIN

NN NPV

DYINN 02N MMPYA MY
MPINN NHAN DX2MNA MY
TN IITY NN MNP DY
DYINN DINOY) DYPIDI NV
MPINN NN DINITL NPY
DYT2YD MAVN NNV

NOYY Y
NY2APNNY NI
) ,(INDVY) 1LIAPNNY NDIDN DY DION

NOVIY (MY IWNIYY) M990 1323Y VI DI

AYPYN MY DN 9D

I, MINTPIN DX PND TIY MM (YD) NN

NN YIDN AP VIO NN NNNN

AP VIO DYDY

MNTI NINSIM OPYNIN XY DX0 NYPYN

TN PITD NIIY MINNOM MNTP DYV

TN PO MRNDD NN

MPINM MIAND DI TITT

MPINH MIIN DY NYPYN MDY )2 193PNNY DM
MPIN NN OY NYPYN MY P2 VAW DO

NYPYN MIPPYN IPAIV 10) DN

N2 MTIYON DI 129N

TVIN AT MNNOM 2IN MNPV
NPIND NPNNIN YINMNN NN

AN NPANNI NN

WMWY DYTITAYT

NONVYN NVYYYA NIAN DINITL NPY

19150 MHIYAY IYRIYY VI DI

D313 YWY DIV IV (POIP) 9179)
AN 1 OPY DININ MNWI DINNN

923872 31 09 02211 NI DI

3017 TI9) YN PON INNN TIN 29DIN YTNIY GNNNN GONN YN



127792 9193 DINILY

L F
ollroe” ™ 901 ¥10

NI NNT Y9 — 1 9INa
Yy 1.1

31 OYY ("N1aNN” 19ND) N7V M) DINIVY DY DXTNINNDN DIDIN MINTN TINND 0M9DD 0NN oD
L1993 2905 YR 9NY) NNXY NIAND DXONPHN (DY TNIND DMADD MMT” :39ND) 2015 920872
1970-57wNN (D¥T»NY DOPNNPN NMIMT) TIY M NNPNY NPPYYN NIDINM X9 MPNY DNNNA DIXIN

SPARNN DY T79) Y90 YN0 1Iya

LDYTNINHD MNYTN DY T2 TINN 290N YHN NN NIPY W
MAMVYN NMNPOYI NN MOIN - MPINNI MNIN - DT T79) >901 Y7101
SORMAVN NPT 1.2

,DYTMINNDT 09057 NINTA NVPNY THIRNIYNN NP THY ONNNA TIY 112NN DY TI9)N Y9057 Y 1NN
912 NNXNN DXAONNND DMWY ,NTINN DY DYTNINRNDN DMIDIN NINTL DMINN NND 12 19IND MY

ON 19305 NNYY N3N DITNIN DITMINDN MMNTA B9IVIN MNIPNNNI YD) 1.2.1

,ON 119200 NNSY NIIND DXONPHN Y9DIN ANNND 5Y MINTA D050 NIMIAMNNNM DXON MDD
MDD VYNY IDOTN AN DY DXTMINNDT DMADIN NMINYITA DXNTIN NMIPNNNN DIDNN NN DXAPYN
PVIAY NPNIIN-PA TN DY 11PN 19D 1592 IN NIDINT ,MPINID MIIN PX2 NIMNDPNNNN DI0IN

DYTNMINDD NMMTN NNONI

70 Y¥ ,N12NN YV DXHYAY DNPHN 90O ANNN DY DIXTMINNDN MNYTN DY DDINN VI DIDD ININ ,90N2
NN X2 Y90 YN 909N 2NN HY OXTNIRNDT NMMTL OINNNN ,NMIAPNNIN TO NN ,DX0IIN
UMM MY, MPINN

10 ,D>TMNKBA DMODIN MMTN D02 Yy ,N712NN YV DY9YIY DNPHRN MHNYN PINY ToY NN 1N MISH
79937 Y9097 YTHRNN NV 293 NN HY II8YN PRY N

ON 19305 NNYY N3N MTNHN DITMINDN MNTA MDITIN NINKINI MDD 1.2.2

DXONYPNHN ,INK 51D NN TOOM NN P2 M, 090N MNITL DINYIN NINKIND MDIONN D10
DYTMINNDT TOOMN NNIN NMINT2 MNYIN NMINNINM MDIONN NN DOPYN ,ON NIIND NNNY N11aNd
21922 IX NADINA,MIPINII NN 1PH2 NINNIM MDIDN MDD LYND 55101 NNIN DY DI TNIRNDN MMTI)

.DYTMINHDN DI MNYITN NNDHNIIVVIAY NPNIIN-PI NINM MDION YW ,PNIY0 ONNNI

TO SV ,N72NN Y NPINN YYD DNPHN ,DXTNIRNDN DMIDIN MMTN YY DDINNI V) DIID I 90N
IPINN MIIN 12X2 MDOYI MIRSIN DX TNINNDT O1IDIN MINITA DIPNNND ,MINNINN TO 22 MOIdIN
NN 9915 NI P TOON IN NN P2 M TIN DI NIN OMNINI .NZIVXIIN POMN TIY DT> MID

NN NNDNA NN NOY MPIN MINAND NI2NN P2 MXRPOYN DOWIANN VNI DIVY DITOIM DN
MPINM MIIN P2 NNIN NINDNIY MPIMN MHIN P2

MIYO Y5151 NN DD TOY NIANN DY NPINN DYDY ONPHIN NMPNY NNIN DI TOY T NNMAN T MIND
YHyab ONPHPN YD NNIN DI TOD NN INN ,DXTMNNDN MMTH OO DY ,N712NN DY NPINN oYY ONYHN
DTNV 19D, INNNNA ,NIANN DY NMIND YDYIAY ONYHN MWD 15N NN DD TOY NIaNN DY MMNN

STI9)N 99051 YTHRIN

ON N3N NNKY NN DIONHN DXTHINDN MINYTA DITNHIN 0INND D 1.2.3

DAY, DX N3N NNNY N712NY DXONPHN ,DXTNINHDN DMODIN MNITA DN DINNNN MDNN DX
MM 1LY INRD DIMDDN TN 1ONT) DIINHN MDORN YY DITMRDD MMTH NN OMpY
MYYaNn DMNRN ,NOVIY MY DX NN 299 MDA (DTN MMTH NNHDNI DONIIN-PI DIINN
YNNND NMOYONN NN 95 NN 90N DM VYV TIM NI MPYON DN NYPYn

ALY DPNIAN-PAN DIVIIHN MDIIN TI02 DIKIND

MIMIN MNDD LYNY ,OITNINNDN OMIDIN MNYTA DOIDIN ONIMIHN MDA NN DIPYN YN OO0
MPINM MAIN PH2 OINDNNDN

NINN MYITO DNNND G0N dXMNND YNY YN DM Q0N DY) 1INY INIPY DINININ NNON2
MNYTA 9953 XY MNND YRV YO MY Y0 NININD 9I952) NODINT VNN X9 MHPNI MNNNN
DN 172N NNSY NI2IND YNNI DNMNND NN DITNINDD



L
o:rm(.ue'ﬂ ‘

127792 9193 DINILY

900 1N

NITH NAIPNI ©PMNN DIWIPN — 2 9N

oY 17¥2 570 P NIAN DY NN DY DIONN MWD NIINM H7Y2 30 PIN NIIN WD 2014 12087 31 D2
21961 — NOWNN (VTN ND) NDION DN NTIPAY 21 PON MIXINY OXNN 2PN XYY NINRD 17200 NN

.172NN DY N7V IV NI NIAN NI 2015 )2 30 D2

: DONAN 021001 NIHANN NIDN,NPOYN MAPYI

MO P
NN
Ny YN
RZARVARM Pl
64
90
(52)
(7)
95
95
9250873 31
2014 2015
7Y 23999591
9 25
365 207
374 232
2014 9258493 31 2015 43873 31
7Y 2399591 72290 NV 7Y 939991
20 1.49% 14
28 10
31 6
59 16
79 30

DV OY02)

D90V DNV DX0D)
mMavIv NMIA»NnNnN
MOVIV IIRY MMNIMNNN

0, 0XMTI NMIMNNN D>0D)

MY NPINI NN NYPYN

0231299 WY 291N — 3 IN2

D322 MM DINNRN
MNP

PINIPID T9Y M) — 4 N2

- DN KXY TV MO NMTPD
YA NP9

- DYPNO TIY M)
NPNOWNN 1IN MDN
NMINXNP 2N MDN



‘\’f 12792 9193 DINVOY
ollrGe” 909 Y711

YN 1D NN MIN MINK MYPYN — 5 9INA

9a87a 31
2014 2015
7Y 93990

276 276 NPIMN 192N YV NNDI NPIN
9.2% - 6.5% 12 NMINYY NPT 219 231 MPINM MIINT MNNON
N MNXWD NI MTINS XD 3 24 MPINM MH2NT )N MLV
P IRV XY MIDVT 89 94 MPIMH MH2NT )N MLV
6% 1257 NNV NTINS N 54 90 MPIMN MH2NT )N MLV
(4.31% -2014) 4.07% 12> NNV 3 4 D12 MNNON
7 9 NN
651 728
18 110 MOV NIDN NN
633 618




12792 9Y9) DINILY

L
o:rmf]e’ﬂ ‘

900 1N

MHINR MNIPNNNI MNNIN — 6 N2

:PMNN MNNDN 9293 0OV

2015 Yans47a 31

10

79 INTUNN 012D
09902 P T Y Y29 "IPNRN
n7Y 239991 19790 MY % 18N 002 yavn n7Y 93990 INTYNN NIV TN »no
534 446 2016-2018 4.1 TINN N’y 770 2007 INN29 2 NIT0 NN
478 465 2017-2023 4.5 TINN N N’y 465 201493172013 XY T NYTO NN
102 100 2019-2022 3.95 TN n"y 100 2011 92DVYD P MNNON
100 100 2019-2022 6.3 TN N n"y 100 2011 921V90 D3N MNNYN
250 250 2016-2022 5.82 TN N n"y 300 2011 N DINNND MNNDN
369 361 2016-2022 3.55 TN Y 372 2012 919N DINNHD MNNDN
2014 925843 31
79 INTUNN 012D
09904 27y 79 MY 17209 NPNRn
7Y 239990 19190 MY % 1980 OO yavn TR LA INIYUNN NIV TN »no
719 595 2015-2018 4.1 TN Ny 770 2007 INY729 2 N3T0 NN
480 465 2017-2023 4.5 TINS N Ny 465 2014 931/2013 N T NATO NN
103 100 2019-2022 3.95 TN n"y 100 2011 921V90 D)2 MNNON
100 100 2019-2022 6.3 TN N Ny 100 2011 921V9D DYP)2N MXNIN
261 261 2015-2022 5.82 TINS N Ny 300 2011 9N DINND MNXNIN
375 364 2015-2022 3.55 TN Ny 372 2012 919N DYINND MNNIN



‘\'f 12792 9193 DINVOY
oll~6e” 909 Y711

0013°9 /2NN D2DI) 9272 D9V DIVY2 — 7 NINA

SV DMDDN NP NVPTH PRYYY 01D DYPYINI VINIWN DIVIANN ,NIIND NHVYN DNY DMNDDN NINONY
DYTMINAN OIS MNTY 28 1IN NI ,172NN

MNNO PHN 'Y 7.1
LDYTNINNDN OMADIN MNTY 28.3 1IN NN 11D INPP — MIIND NN MDY NHYN 1271 DOVIY

N yavn v 7.2
NTINN NN 7.2.1

S YIPYTI N ,021902 TIY DY DDIANN ,NI2NN DY YAV NID
2015 42873 31

2’90 arint NS N NY TN N’y
7Y 9399959

178 - - 178 2N NN TY MAVIV NN
37 22 11 4 NP YOI IONIYUNY MNNON
834 - 478 356 2N MDN
812 - 345 467 IR MY MNNON
1,861 22 834 1,005 a1y
2014 4any7a 31
21 M1 TNIY Y N7Y TNY NY

7Y 939995

179 - - 179 2IN MNDN DY MOV NN
30 15 11 4 NP YA OINIYNRY MINNON
1,020 - 480 540 N MDNX
847 22 346 479 TN PIRD MINNON
2,076 37 837 1,202 Ia1v)

11



127792 9193 DINILY

\f
ollroe” ™ 901 ¥10

(Twnn) 093359 MN2NNDI DD 9272 DD BPVH2 — 7 NN
(JUnn) N Yavn Mo 7.2
02039290 (MNANNNN) 0I0Y DN MYNI MY 7.2.2

2015 920872 31 0»Y 712NN YY 0»MNHN (OTC — NN Yyavn) DAINN DIXPYWIND DN MY MM onY
(POPN) DTN N 729X TA 31 PIRNY OMIPOYN MYV DY PONT YV NPV 2014 91210871 31 DY)
1Y MNP ONY ONXNINN OMNODA NMPNY NNIN NN (NN DY NPINN HYa 535 DNPHN PN PN NN

DN MYaUnn BHYNNI , D3NP IRY DINWNN INY DOY NN DY)

2015 Yana847a 31

197 nYY
PO 10% PO 5% o990a 999 5% 99193 10%

DI RAN )

35118 3.7069 3.902 4.0971 4.2922 AVT/NATY NIYY
(5) (2) 3 2 4 NI PN NYIVN
2014 9352813 31
T/ YV
PV 10% PO 5% 01904 5153 5% 5153 10%

7Y 93999

3.5001 3.6945 3.889 4.0835 4.2779 A9YT/NIY NIYY
(5.5) (2.8) 5.3 2.4 4.5 N7Y MNPINI NYaVN

T M»0 7.3
.DYTAINNDN DD MNYTY 28.5 1IN AR, TT0 1120 71271 DOV
DINYN H%259 5NPYWA DPYWIN ¥0Y DIWNMMIN DTN MY M) NINUN MDY INPD 7.4

MPYH MMVN ()N MIXRXIN) NPIDIN TPNINNIN 1D DY MNWN NI (NPIDIT) IXNOM NMYTP NHaND
Bapbal

YI¥25 DNYHN NNN AR (POLPY) DXTH MPTN TN DY MNIPNNNM DXDIIN HY NN NYWI N»Y
INRY DY NNINA NYYY DT MINY .91 DNONIND D102 NIAPIYN NMPND NNIN NINY NHANN DY NPINN
DN MYSYNN DOYNNI DONAP INY DINYHN

2015 93108472 31

133 (ANRSIN) "IN
PO 2% MO 1% MNYN 1229 91 1% N1 2%

N7Y 2399910

1 0 (1) 2 3 (NRNXIN) NDIDN "N
2014 4any1a 31
1723 (ANR¥IN) "IN
PO 2% PO 1% MNYN N2 99193 1% 9919 2%

N7Y 2399990

7 @) 0.1 4 7 (NRXYN) NDION 971D

12



12792 9Y9) OINIVY

N
mfm{]e’ﬂ ‘

900 1N

(wnn) 0°933°9 MNA1NND DD 9272 D220 DIVH9 — 7 NINa
MY MNN 7.5

DA WOV N7ON DY NIYY S TTH 1N 1NN TINND NN OXTTA DY DDINND 1T MM HIVP MIO01N NYIVND VI, 1127 PMHVN HID,NPDIVI MNPNNN YW OIOIND IV YT NN oD

2015 930873 31
9N 7999
799N 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 MM 02NN 09992
- - - - - 203 203 203 Dpav
- - - - 24 11 35 35 oD
- - - - - 160 160 191 DINN DINOY
- - - - - 115 115 115 MPINMN MI2N— DINRIY
- - - 182 189 197 568 534 2 N770 NN
358 77 46 47 39 21 588 478 T NITO NN
- - - - - 22 22 22 PN MINT INNON
55 54 109 10 11 11 250 202 PN NPHPY MNNDN
347 166 126 40 42 43 764 619 OMINKRND NPOPY MNNDN
7 1 1 - - - 9 6 M NN
767 298 282 279 305 783 2,714 2,405
2014 4258732 31
[=kalr)} 7999
79°N) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 MM 02NN 0’9992
- - - - - 203 203 203 [n)iplaiv]
- - - - - 5 5 5 0
- - - - - 200 200 200 DINN DINODY
- - - - - 145 145 145 MPIMN MI2IN— DINRIY
- - 184 191 198 206 779 719 2 NIT0 NN
435 46 47 39 21 21 609 480 T NITO NN
- - - - 22 16 38 38 O30 NINT INNIN
112 110 10 10 10 10 262 203 PN NPHPY MNNYN
516 127 41 42 42 43 811 636 DOINND NPIPY MNNIN
1,063 283 282 282 293 849 3,052 2,629

13



‘\f 1277¥2 9Y9) DINYLY
ollroe” ™

900 1N

(Tunn) ©013°9 MNA1NNNI BDI) 9272 ©22DN DIVH99 — 7 NINa

0019 DYPYIN HY NNV 7.6

LDYTNINDT D905 MNTY 28.7.1 NN NN ,DDINS DY PWIN DY 1N MV 2200 DYDY

N0 bY DDN 9272 DIVHD — § INA

14

Hhs 8.1
PIN MNY MIVN 1272 NI2ANN HY DIDNN DNHN PNV 1272 .99 DN NP DN MAMN NIANN MDION
19N ,2016 TIVYA I9PIND DI TWN DN NIOY MDY I DX TMIXRNDN DMODIN MNITY 35.1 1IN DN TYTY
2015 120872 31 DYDY DMIDIN MMTN DY NPWN ,2015 12NNTI 31 OPY TY NYYNID NNOWVIN NN NPPPNN
DY0N MDION THD N'Y NP 5 -5 HY Toa ONTHN DXONN NMNIPNNN MINA NVIPA NRVIANND NNMN
DN
N DN MY 8.2
.2010 MYV Y9191 TY NPV DN NIV INNIN NIANY
nPSNNA oNn MY 8.3
NY NP 40 -5 DY TO DOWO NWAT NN 11790 2011-2013 DMWY DN MMV NIANN NP MTH NOPNI
DYMPYNN NINDNI 5HIYW DION Yyn (2016 AN 15 DY TY AW NTHSD SV NY M)
INYP MYSNNI NON NIMIY DY TV DY DHRN MNVOY NYOYIT IR INYT NIANN 9N DNV )X DIOVIVN
NPAYN NN NH2NN 119D NHMPN NYISNN ,NIANN NOIYNYD .NDY DNN
M MANN 1379271 Mon 8.4
DN MNXIN NIANN NNPYI XY MNNIND TITDT MDION )2 ,97IN0 NN MI2NND TITAT HAPNN NMITN NIva
702 PYIN DIVY DYTITT PH2 OINTI DXDNY NTINY DIND OINTI DIDN NINIIN NIAND NPYI MTNH MY
AN 9 :2014) NIY NIV 16 DY
09NN YY DYON MNNN 2990 8.5
928442 31 DY2 NNMNDIY NIvY
2013 2014 2015
7Y 9PN
(23) (30) (8) D9V DYDN NINSIN
(3) (7) (20) YOI, DXNTI DIDN MINXIN
(1) - - DNNHOINYYI MY I MINNIN
(27) (37) (28) YOI ,NDIINN DY DO NMINNIN
(MAa°NNN12) 0209 0ONYIN BINTIN DIONN 299N 8.6
(1Y) YOIP (1Y) YOrP
0Y0N3 NPV 001N MNNINA 001 MNINA
31 09 N 12PNV DINTIN Y92 DN 31 099 N NN OINTY 1099 "
2015 920871 Y90 1 N0 nny 109 2014 420872 109 2014 9N
112 DN DON
mMaNd NI
4 - - 1 3 (3) 6 DPNUN
6 1 - (2) vé 1 6 TINIINDY YNNI NYION
(32) - - (16) (16) (9) (7)  Mpmn mMHana nypvn
YNY VIO NP WD
(43) (6) - (3) (34) 4 (38) YWMN
6 - 1 - 5 - 5 DYT2Y MIvVN
(59) (5) 1 (20) (35) (7) (28)
26.5% 26.5% 26.5%



ka 12793 973 DINTLY
ollaGe” ™ qO0 YN0

(7unn) NDI19N Y 0PN 9273 IV — 8 MINA

PYOY DNNNA ,NIINN DY H7Y2 M0 NN DINIVY NAN NIAND YW NN NYTIN 112NN NWHN 2014 mwa 8.7
NNOYN TNEY DOWITIN DIINNN DININN NDNPNN DIV ,MTN DIDID TYINY 1123 .NDDN DN NTIPY 12103
51192 NVVLVLON NN

MPINM M92N QY MM NN MNPOY MNIYPNN ,0°9VP 9272 ©V99 — 9 9INa
PN MHaNN 0rNPYT 9.1
NI 340 -5 HY OIDDI MPINID NMIINN DITITAT NIANN NYDYP NTH NNPN2

ANY ,MPINN MNIND NIIIY DMWY MY MPINn MIIN2 772NN DYPYN 1271 DaDN V1Y 9.2
DYTRINDN DMODIN MMMTY 24.3 -1 12,6 DN

LN MNNNN Man — 10 INa
.DYTMNNN D901 MMNTY 24.1 7N IRT,TNINK IMZN NMI1NNM 1IN THI IWNIY MYIN 1271 DV

0>1ayY — 11 99N
DYTNINDN D0 MMTY 24.2.4 -1 24.2.3 DN NIND DITIIYY 1272 DOV

NINTN TPIND NN DIWPN — 12 9IN2
LDYTNINNDN DMADIN MMTD 38 1IN NN NPT TINN INNRD DWNPN 1272 DXV

15



n"ya 9111 OIXVY

TIANNN 7V 0'9011 D'019



0'"Iyann 77100 ninn % nineT n'ynn '%10 2agn

2"no 4 pyan 3 wan 2 1yan 1 pyvan
n"v 21'rn

5,183 1,302 1,365 1,208 1,308
3,228 791 888 700 849
1,955 511 477 508 459
1,198 306 285 323 284
329 92 75 79 83
198 64 51 34 49
626 177 168 140 141
16 6 2 5 3
(57) (27) (16) (8) (6)
(41) (21) (14) (3) (3)
585 156 154 137 138
21 12 5 5 24
(122) (35) (30) (47) (35)
(101) (23) (25) (42) (11)
484 133 129 95 127
(139) (45) (39) (19) (36)
345 88 90 76 91
257 65 68 52 72
88 23 22 24 19
345 88 90 76 91

. TO9nI NN

ninnmn

NN NIy

m9ia NN

PI'YIE NN NIRXIN

N1 07NN NIXXIN

NL'Y 9% NI791VNA NIFTRIN NNAN 'NINA 77N

NTRNN 'NYN

NINNX (NIXXIN) N1012N 197 "1Y9N NN

NINNKX NI01dN
NINNK NIRXIN

101 , NINNK NIXRXIN

21y9n NN

[N NIio1dN

MM NIRXIN

1IU] ,[1N'M NIXRXIN

no1dn 7y n'o'n 1197 NN

N01ON 7V D'OM NIXXIN

n917N? NN
7 oni'n
mMann 7w nirnn "

NO™Y NIREN I'RY DT 7Y

n91;7N? NN

1 5w 01 mgnn NxIND Mwn 7N DI YD DINAD NNT PN DTN DMNYIIN DI DY )IDIN PYD NN

OIS NMMANNNN TNIVYN MODIDN/NMINNIN



NISIFNA NAYI'Y INX 7712 (TO9A) NIN 'uMD

ITo9nI NINY NIy

(387) (95) (93) (48) (151) YIN yaun DOn 'wIon
D'T D'011'D 0'0D) 7Y [AINN YA DY
3 (2) 1 (2) 6 onn 101 ,NMDnY
(384) (97) (92) (50) (145) MaI'Y Mw7Inx 771> (T097) NN 09 Y0
onn 101 ,T09nI NINY
(39) 9) ) 26 (54) noIEnY Y4913 (Toon) NIN
7 oni'n
(32) (12) 8 (37) nann ¢ nirnn "2
(7) 3 (10) 17 17) NU™MY NN I'RY NI'DT 292
(39) 9) (2) 26 (54) noIEnY Y4913 (To9n) NIN

VN DN MiIinna win'y (210 nagn

AN NNAaX 271 1w Ny 245,000,000 12rx? nnann ny'xn 119 7y 9 nyxn NiT nnann nno1o 2014 1 10 nim
AINN NNAX 22 NANN T 72V 272NN 10N DTN NINNN DNt ANT0 NaNTn 7w 0T ,nann 7w (T n1T0)

.("omaw nnoa" ;|7n7) n"w 1'rm 241->1 nndnon mxd (T NTo)

(o7t 2015 *aim 2015 i ,2014 2 y'on “Tyima RIN W MDIPN [IV1'97 Nwnwnl ATYIF ng91nn NImn
Toin 0'aw npon .2015 voiaixi 2015 AxN2o ,2014 VoK IY'9N TTYVINA NMANN 7w ANl (A N1T0) 2N NNAaR

AINKD JIVAoN Tym? TV 7xwn 0'\7122



ni'21'5 nMNanal na-nNana nypwa nntwa 111 dapn

NNX 722 NITh Tvinma nR'TNN NN2ANAY A71N |"HYIE NIMNN 190N |i'xa ,(nnnn Y |"YY™Mma m,‘zrnmn) nNann 7w nirminnn nNnivpn ninanal nifninnn ninan ninan 1011o! |'7n'7
1(1) |N'RIN M 'YIL [N NNANN 7¢ NINNX nypwn 0IN'SI1 MK NN2N7 NNann NIRIZA DN ,NN2ANN M901 NINIYA N 1AW 'Nnn ,|]'II'7_U ,2JNNannn

Y
nypwnn
NnIXI7A Y '90d0 NITA
nnanYy ¢ T9In
31 o'y man o7 nann My
7anyTa 7anxTa 31 npTNN ny
2015 2015 nIdNoA ny Wy'w  apTRn vy
ninY npTNN npTNN MM nIpTRma nrna Ina e 151"y
n"w ' DMILVPY'T  AYaxNa 1Nl apl'h) amana My Y911 Po1Inn niI'ain 190n n'n 210 nMann v
"7 10MD  OIXLVY
- 52 50 50 50 50 n"w 14,387,927 n"w 28,775,854 28,775,854 n"w 1.00 ni7an n"va
- 1,320 74.9 74.9 74.9 74.9 EUR 142,759.4 EUR 190,600 190,600 EURO 1 ni7an Strauss Coffee BV
105 202 100 100 100 100 Uss 1 Uss1 1,000  US$ 0.001 ni'7an SE USA Inc.
NIk OIXLY
- 137 80 80 80 80 n"w 5,200,000 n"v 6,500,000 6,500,000 n"w 1.00 ni7an n"ya
366 (163) 88 88 100 100 n"w 7,000 n"w 7,000 700,014 n"w 0.01 'x "p2 n"va om oIxVY
95.7 95.7 n"v 36,964 n"w 38,640 3,864,042 n"w0.01 2 nmm
10.3 10.3 n"w 505 n"w 4,900 490,000 n"w 0.01 ni7an
64.3 64.3 n"v 595 n"v 926 92,566 n"w 0.01 'k nian

.D"TNIRNN D"'900N NINIT? 6.1 1K IXY NN T 7Y '9'7V2 IX ['IWMA NIPTRIAN NI90N N2 NNAN 12T N7 (1)



ni17175 NNanal Na-NNana MYpwnla 0y 12 qagn

D' OIXYLVY 'Y IYYIY NIYYUNM D'"I'Y  .X

n"w 21''7'n2a ni7y %2 v "1'YUN INN 'N'Yn Ninn nnann oY
nanan-tr Strauss Water Hong
4 - 2015 [IN NNATH Kong trading company
Itd

Strauss Water Hong
30 34% 2015 ar n717> Man nuo Kong trading company
Itd

Pepsico Strauss Fresh Dips & Spreads International GMBH "y iwyaw niypwna n"n'y .2

n"w 21''7'na ni7y %2 'y "'YUN 'INN 'N'YUn Ninn nMann v

Pepsico Strauss Fresh
72nvLo- I

9 - 2015 [IN AT Dips & Spreads Mexico
S.de R.L df C.V



(n"¥ 21"71'n) |TXND 1IRNY AN N1012nI NI NiNani N2 ninan v nioda 13 npgn

(78 MNan % DrTNIRAN DIMIN 0N (TOSN) NINN 2IMN2) NNANN T 72V YN NIPTRINN ,NN2ANN 7Y NIMnNN NI701 Nnan DNann 7w on NNRi 1197 (To9N) NiN 10119 7Y
2015 nanxTa 31 017 7ap'? N'ROT XY I NNANN N72RPY 7100 T NNn M7

(Toon) niN (Toon) niN N NIRXID NIXRXIN ATND (Toon) niN (Toon) niN
771 anx 7710 n'amn @ Avnan M on "InX on 19% MY anan / naa nnan v
16 - - 2 33 16 22 n"ya "7 10M9 oIKLVY
(190) (389) - 28 126 199 245 Strauss Coffee B.V.
63 2 (18) - - 61 90 SE USA Inc.
129 3 - 41 180 126 171 n"ya nixM1a oIvY
(18) 2 (4) - - (20) (15) n"ya o'm oIxVY

(M2ann 77n) N"w ' 63 -3 YW 02 901 TITAT 1.1 1O OINIVW NN npy'n 2016 AxNao wTina !

S mT 99 @



nINI'7D DN (14 hagn

.NMN2NN 7w DMPWn NI0'wn TR DR NIRIZD |NN

N01112 Ynon :20 nagn

nnd winm 22 ,2"y n"w 1 ni7an nimn 239,565 n"va arax 7na 0y NNt nonina anon? mynl Nimn Noipna
.NN2N2 DDA D'TAIYY [RIVIN WK NXOINR

.nMann v TVN NNMAa NoNn PosIn X7 nIrTn nolpna



D12 NYN 'RWIRYI Y YA omiteun 21 napn
NI ooian Di7wn X477 - "W 19782 (NI7y 'MIN2) D'NIN'Y 112V D72INAN 0'2ann "pn 'v1o
5"70 jlayn
: - 1v1'7v )] nETRA Y'Y
N'71% mT / 'nan T
197 ANT DIDO .. DY? NI T'ANNN [IN2
oion |/ a'my [/ yn DY O"ho MY 10N DY YN 9p'n TpPoNn ov
NI () X' '
ooian N
[27mann (x)
ni'n
()
3,229 - 749 2,480 660 1,820 - 100% | IMMOPT ) oAby M Al
nNann (1)
N'm rm o 7"mi N'W) ['0'7 *Tan
3,875 -- 1,137 2,738 904 1,834 0.49% 100% N, 2)
N'm v o " VTN XN
2,729 -- 607 2,122 666 1,456 0.22% 100% 7"511'7 mwn 3)
N'm 27rm o oLVY  7"n o' |y n
2,637 - 485 2,152 782 1,370 0.23% 100% S (4)
N'm rm o oIVY "IN 7930 NN N
2,597 - - 2,597 949 1,648 0.24% 100% nop (5)
N'm rm o . " Y2179 Y In
2,647 - 465 2,182 912 1,270 0.35% 100% 0'90> 7"21no (6)
2718 _ _ 2718 _ _ _ _ DIV TN INY
()
n"v 'o7xa (NI7V 'N1INA) D'NIN'Y 1Y D7INAN 0'2mann "72ajpn '
n17wn 77 DY 1"ho ni"In oolan ni7vn "
7DV NIy >"ho Tpon (:]J]
NI"In 00IaNn (1)
3,229 -- 3,229 NN NI T A" OINILY NI9IY "2
5,482 1,607 3,875 nann 7"l xen |'0% "Ta n
3,890 1,161 2,729 2"271'"7 mwn AYT N X1 N
3,922 1,285 2,637 XYW oIXVY 71N o7 |I'x n
4,533 1,936 2,597 N9 OINLVY 701N O MNIN N
3,483 836 2,647 D0's0> 7"21no0 YNI79 N n




‘N'7207 Ninyn

[I121) 'R WINMY7 DININ 0N DAY [N noIx and 3,883,152 Y X' wimm 7w nnina - X' 71T
ININ7 DXNNL 70192 D L, WATEE .NIMIm NN 7200121 ,nnann 7w nizaa nimn 3,883,152 -7 (2016 ona 20 o'y
NN NN 71 K7X ,0NN NIYANN NIMNN R DWXI7 IXPIF X7 DY9IND AND winm Nya ,NNann 7w NIYSIND
TVIND NNANN 7Y D70 NN Y WU AW waonn 1YNT L,NYOIRD 'AND] DI7AN '90dN NAVNN DIDO NX NOPYNN
['A2 TINPINN NINN NIMD 70191 ,)2'9% . TTAT NRIZN A2 DXINNI AYOIRD W NIgnn wimmn NN 2% winmnn

.7'Wh7 N1'¥Nn NINdNAN N3Nl NINYSIXD WINM

ni7A" 7102 2N 0PoN - (ML "I 7710) NNaN2 0'PoYINNI N7102 D'VIISAN D'7INANN 72PN 27 - 1YY NI
700, Mo T "I nNann 7" X'wa7 ont wKd) (201 970 7713) 207 NpTRN a0 107 017 0'Ran 7710 "Mdwh
D'NINI TIA L1970 (MR DI7a Y 19K Mwn 'Rwin 7w amd? oxnna ,on% 100 e n7ian X7 ,1.7.2015 oim
D'"7N17 OXNNQ NIRXIN TNN N7277 D'RIT ,N2 MYAN 'RYN 077021 MNann Tay LD 'I¥' .0'7217n0 DNIY'Ya DY9RXI0

.nNana n'alpnn

['22 2015 v 1702 M7IwY vn mino 7710 ') 2015 nw 1aa 7avnn 0no 120 "zayn” 7102 21730 DPoN - payn
D'7vn 21 ,NI7aN0N NOIPN/NYNAS j72yn DA AT 1102 2PN DPOoN 7713, T'PSNN NYNO 7w npna ,qoma .2014 mv
MY NNTIY 770 7710 "Nan2 nwn 'RWN7 7;avnn D0 L7mann NNt kNN 7930 .NNo DR 0TV NAwn aa
qOoN 'NIN D"PNN NAPIVN NMIYAY Ta7a1 "Nounn ynn' yiapn NNDYNN D00 7Y 071y yNNNn DID0 QUKD ,NApIvn
nNaM MYNN 'RYNYT 7Mann NI IXY NNANd NNYNn 'KWNY 07ynn NROINY MY NNING Mvn yannn n'7apy
2014 " 17 orar (2014-01-074055 :xnmdnox 190n) 2014 'xna 27 nia nNann NNO1SY D'T'A D'NIMT IX)

.((2014-01-092841 :xn>nox 190n)

|7 97 2015 nawa Mann NNWIY ARXINN DX XV2N "Nin ooian nDi?wN" 1102 212N DIDON - NN 00IAN DIZYN
JIng NxoIRn ', IFRS-2 ik nixaawn

()

@)

@)

(M)

-0'S0I11 0D1IN)

npoym ok VY 1an .2001 21 wTinn 7N nnann 7w 7w 1IN0 T "D NINdN 0INNVY 1) - OIXIVY NIBIY A
V2 9w NN N9IONA WWIK TWKR OIXIVY AN W "DTYN Nzoynn Dd0N7 DRNNA 'YX Nj7OYN DO0N7 DNNNA
AWK ,2014 21 1 orm 7nn ,wROn naixp ‘M7 noipn? ' npovinn ndon ,2014 i 2 nira mann YW ninn
AWKRY Q190 0T DO0N W IDFIN JWNN ,NRT DY L[N0 T "D 0IKIVY N9y 1A 7w nnaind DI'o oy D'Non
T Y 7107 [N A NoyNN DdON .NY7 Nyn 1N0I7 DXNNA NNANN 2IN NIXIN 97 NNANN 7¢ 0DNoIMN DPAIRD
NUITY U NNTRIN VTN NN 91901, TN INI0T NU7ZNN NIYXARY NNAND T 1 TRR TN Mo TN e
NN X7 OIXI0YW 22N D DA 7mann NI NIRKIINY DRNNAL (NNN20N2 I NN2ANN NATIRL JIX'R? NINIY) D'UTIN

NI7an0on NoIpn? N'RoT

7¥ NLIVORN NHNNY [IMNIVPITN NTIAY NNA0NAL [INIVPATA 71017 0IKIVYW AN NI'RINK ,7'WD NIV T "I
oixuw 1an .(GMT- Group Management Team) niann 7w nDan n'7nannl 7"21nn 'TEon yixa 7y nip'o1 nnann
7"21%7 N7x ,n"7R 019D IX N7 DN DI'R 75107 0'9190N DY7NINNT,MANN 7Y MM QUIYA 71N NP0V MK
7¥ N2 DNaN 7Y DAIMI0PYTA NN VYNT NNANA 0'90N DTSN NXMN MR OIKIVY AN L2 1D .NNaNn

.N02NN NIV NIMNX D' NN2ANN 711 IR TR Y"1 9N 2 DINM NN'MY 7V Mizan .nnann

NNI'NY 19D I7I'N NIDOIMNYT NTIMY N1'NY ,1vNA N"w 151,674 7w 102 n'wTIN MPWN 771 0IXNLY a0 7w 1dwN AN
niAa o1 ;1.7.2015 nra pax? ornnn TMY 1DWN DTRYN 7V NN NIRpYa DRTE DANN X7 DRNNA pwnn 770]
L7 (Q) nvna vlIENd 1YY

,JNTI7R MY D " Ny T 1'wa ynn K77 1272 01011'9 0TV 7Y 001NN AYINA MY YNINN7 NROT OIKNVY AN
2manin N2 vNIeNd

ANX 'NIV1A M0 7D IX NNANA NWN 'RWIT DNIVPY'T NIMNX NIV DNA0NA NIV 0™ 7277 N'RIT NI T "
DMIVPYT? 19'WT7 NIAYNNNN 2AND NONA L'I9'WY7 NIAYNANN 2AND NN 72P7 N'ROT ,NN2N] NWNN 'Kui v 71N WX
'‘on) 2014 "2 2 nimi 2014 'ra 17 oirn ,2014 '®kna 27 nim DT DOIFT 1K) NN2N2 0'Pn Mwnn 'Runy
n'RoT I ;(nnknina ,2014-01-105546 :xnonox 'oni 2014-01-092841 :xnonox 'on ,2014-01-074055 :xnonox
21 9 DI 0T DINIMT IRY) DN N0Y7UN 7u2 7Y DIN] DI'RY NN2ND NWNN 'RYIYT DT NOIA 1IVD aND 7277
2015- :xndnox 'on) 2015 "2 14 nimi (2015-01-043824 :xndnox 'on -1 2015-01-043815 :xndnox 'on) 2015

.((01-072546

2014-01- :xndnok 190n) 2014 'xna 27 ni'n NN2aNn 7w 0T NINCT IX IAKRD NZOYNN DD0N 12T 0'9011 0'V19Y7
.(2014-01-092841 :xndnox 190n) 2014 '2112 17 nirmi (074055

'y .1.98 7w 'va %1 0"01'9 DTV nTNY a2 N'w 97X 749 -5 1'n 2015 nmaw 2 oIV a7 7aynn Do
101 "2IyoN NN ,TYNn 2 Y axtan ,N"y ' 7,642 -> w102 710 NNDnn 1T 0Y011'9N DTV NTvn
nINKNN2) 7101 ' nin ,wnn 1.1 ey axran ,n'Y e 677 -3 Yw o702 (7mann NiMcTna 01I%nd NINKNNA)

(1)



10

ot T 2.1 iy axmn ,n"w ' 306 -3 7w 102 ,nnisno ,nnann 7w ninn w27 (7mann nirta vlIsnd
LTy 2.8 iy axrnin ,n"w 217 507 -5 7w 102 71N Nduiv NI'von nnit

INKY7 11N02 ,7MANN NI NIKAINT DXNNAY N0 L2015 MY 'Mmavn yannn n7ap7 qon 'Rana nTmyn IR D |y
.N"y 199 83-1 7w 102 ,2014 miw 22 nnTan j7avnn oIkMVY 127 0w ,2015 nwh ormwn 09000 NINITN

,2007 "anvoo wTINn 7nn L0 N1 Tvim 01v) 2009 Y wTina 7nn nNann 9"ami X'wad [non |'07 n - '0Y7 Ta In
NINSY7 7w ANd1 NnTIN NYTINA OI'0'7 NINY X'NI NAIXP 'M72 N9IPN7 N1 '07 M 7w mpoyn (7R oIxLVY 7"1nd
NYTINN NOIPN DI'0 INXY? .(NNNJ0N2 IXN NMNANN NATI N9IPNN DX XpP7 NNYONR M) awn 17 wxn or 90
7913) 07N D'RAINNE MIPDYWNN DX ['07 N 07YY 1'wnn ANannt ,Tayn Taw 'ont 7In7 1D'wn' 7'w% 011513 NnTRinn
vyn? ,NNVSNN ¥ NMPN 0'D0N DO'WTIN 6 WAl [NIV'D W NN 0'90N D'WUTIN 12 quna (NIR'XI0 NIYI5N

.0NIV'D XD 719 'T '9 7Y N1 N2 N0

7951 nn1My '93 ApIfd NIBOINYT NTIMX NN 10N N"w 152,868 7w 102 N'wTIN NP 771D '07 1 W dDWN Ao
1YWY N a1 ;1.7.2015 o pax? onrnnn T DWN DTN 72V M NIRpya NRTE NN X7 okNN punn
MW7 (2) nvna v11oNd

nTn 22 ,n"Y 99 755 -3 n'n avinnn ynnn 770 2w ,n"w 9% 1,137 -3 11'n 2015 mw a2 7avnn 0o
e (1) 2"oa 09N 0011'D DTV NTYN

INKY7 1N02 ,7MANn NI NIKAINT DXNNAY 10,2015 myY 'Mmavn yannn n7ap? qon 'Rana nTmyn IR D Iy
.N"y 199N 386 -3 7w 101 ,2014 mv a2 nnTIn jaavnn 'o? Y 07w ,2015 mwy nrniwn 0v90dn NINIMN

1'N DN7Y YIn'mn 'NNY ,NnNann Y (0MNo X7) n'xoIx and 545,595 7w o1 '07 Y TN ,nimn Tvin Jmoa
NY2ANN N'YOIND AN N7AP7 '07 dn Yy InINOT KD ,2012 volik wTING DX? onrnnn TMmY? Tmy ,n"w 35.86
15 o171V 17 TMyn ninnn DNR 722 wmmY '07 W % minot ,2017-1 2016 ,2015 ,2014 nnawa nian 190na

.2020 Nanvv02

.(N72x 7"1> |0 A Twim 01v) 2014 volik wTINA 7NN NNann 72117 nwnd [ndn YT 02 N - AYT IA KM N
D'TTNA TR 72 7' 2y DI'07 NINY X' MNP 'M72 N9IPN7 NN NNann 7"m7 mwnd nyT 72 n Y Injpoyn
NYTINN N9IPN DI'0 INK7 .(NNNJ0NA IX NN NNTI XYY NINIY) Twn TX7 D'UTIN NYIY 99 NnTpim ayTina
D7WY7 'wnn nNannl L, Taynl T 'on' 71N D'wNn' 010 NN 7177 T ' 7y N1 N2 Nia'oia vyn?l ,NTInn
NU'Y quNn (1N 7mani My ynnn oyn?i w191 nTay7 0'Wwann 17K vynt) 0Ui 0N NRYARN DX QYT 12 Ny

.0'901 D'UTIN

NNI'NY '9D PI'N NISOIMY? NTIiNY M'nw 1N n"w 121,339 v 102 n'wTin Mpwn 7710 nyT 72 0 7w dwn Ao
niAa p1;1.7.2015 o pax? 0NN 7MY 1DWN DTAXD 7Y AN NIREYA DRTE DANN X7 DRNNA punn 7o)
MW7 (2) nvna vIENd 1YY

NTyN NTA A2 ,n"w 'R 583 -1 11'n awinnn ynnn 770 wRd ,N"w YR 607 -3 1'n 2015 miw a1 jravnin Do
11 9'voa nulIdNN NNon DRNNA ,0"7ArxpAS 0TYA 2.87 |'ya nTnyn a1 ,7v7 (1) #"oa vlnd o' Dy
.NN2aNN 7w 7mmann Nt

INKXY7 11N021 ,7ann NIt NIKINYG oxNNaY 10,2015 mwh mawn yannn n727 9on 'RKana nTnyn IR D iy
.n"w 99X 36 -1 7w 102 ,2014 miw A2 nnTan j7avnn nyT N2 7 07w ,2015 mw? otnmwn 019050 NINM

12'N DN7Y WIN'MN 1'NAY ,NNANN 7w D'No X7 nnyoIx and 240,000 7w 102 nyT N2 Jn 2'Thn NN TvinY Jinoa
NN 7D nryoix 'and 80,000 v ,nnw nin witwa waaAnN A'NOIRN "ANd N7aP7 avT 12 n 7w kot .n"'w 70.13
.19.8.2018 -1 19.8.2017 ,19.8.2016 :0'xan n*TviNa

7"511> ,2004 mawn 7nn 0D At Tvm 0hw) 2009 ar wTinn 7nn 78w oIkN0VW 7"211) [ndn 072 n - 0'7a iy n
7w AN NNTRIN NYTINA DI'07 NINY XNl NAXP 'M72 N9I7N? N1'n 072 N 7w mpoyn .(NxIapn 7w NN na'on
NYTINN N9IZN DI'0 WNKY? .(NNNJ20N2 IX NNANN NATI ,NDIPNN DX X7 NNWOKR JiN) 2win T¥7 wxn or 90 nins?
7713) D7 D'RINI NNRWNN DX 072 7 D7WY 'wnn nnanni ,Taynl Tay 'ont 7N p'wn' 7' 0119nd NnTinn

.DMIU'D "X 717W7 T ' 7V N1 [N NIQ'01 LYNYT ,0'O01 D'YTIN NYW'W (W (NI'7X'XI0 NIWION

77072 NNI'MY '90 I'n NIDOINYT NTINX NN 10N N"w 114,142 5w 102 n'wTIN DWW 7710 072 0 7w 1Dwn 2D
1DW? N pr;1.7.2015 o pax? onnnn TR DWR NTAND 7V N NIApYa DIRTE NANTN CNIX? ORNN punn
Mwh (2) mvina vleNd

NTN 22 ,n"w 9% 369 -3 11'n awinnn ynnn 770 AWK ,N"Y 998 485 -3 11'n 2015 nav a2 072 % 7avnn nino
7w nron'on o'tv'nn 50% -1 nTay aar,7we (1) #"oa vldNd ,Nann 7w ovo1'on orvn 50% -2 nTnyn
'y ax'n ,n"w ' 3,515 9w 102 nnnnn AT PR 0IKNVY 7w 0U01'9N DTV DTV |I'Y) 7RI OIKNLY
ot T 0 iy axmmn ,n"w e 257 Yw 02 (7mann NirTna 019N NIMRNNA) "IN NN LTy 1.8
NINRLA v NN Ty 0 ey avnn ,n"w 21 179 5w 702 (7ann NifrTna 019N NINKNNA) NDVIY NI7'YON
nay'nn ,38.4% 7w (7Mann NIrTNa vNISNd NIMKNNL) N7 Nrnin TV 1.2 iy axn 31.72% 9w nroannm
2¢ 7mann N4 11 9'woa nu1Inn NNON? DXNNA ,0Y1Y7119 0TV 2.77 |I'xa nTnyn 2 P 1von 1.8 iy

.nNann

()

®)

(4)



11

n'y¥oIx 'and 55,000 (1) :17n%7 V19N> NanNn 7w D'NO X7 N'¥9IX 1and 255,000 7w 102 072 N 'Thn ,NITN TVINY
N'YOIN AND N72P NIYAINNY? 072 W 7w MIXOT .2012 air wTing Dx7 o'nnn TmY? Tmy n"w 39.2 % winm 'nna
NIYaann? 072 m v MINOT .N"w 67.14 Yw winm 'nna nxoix 1and 200,000 (2) .15.7.2015 oira nwaann 19X

.25.3.2018 -125.3.2017 ,25.3.2016 :0'xan o*1vima 33.33% -3 7w niin wi7wa n1'n 17X N'Y9IX 1ANd

11”1 7"1n05,2010 2 7nn 0D AT T oaoi) 2014 arm Ynn n9pn NNan 7"51nd [ndn 7910 N - 1970 Ninh N
.("9pn Nan 7w 't 9"1d na 2014 xim nntl nNann 7Y N1A0IVOKI D'POY NIN'DY

AWND ,DIYN IRITA NATRIA NYTINA DI'07 NINYI X1 NAIXP N7 N9IFNYT7 N1'D NOPN 1NN 7"11d 7910 N 7w IMpoyn
.0'yUTIN 8 7w NnTzm nYTING N2INN N9 OIXLVYI D'YUTIN 4 7w NNTEIA NYTIN N9IPNY 21NN 7930 N

,(n"w 133,074-3) n'x 30,833 7w 102 n'wTin npwn 775 2015 mwa nozn n1an 7"md ™10 n Y dwn Ao
n' ,NINMA NIV ,N'019) NOP OIXIVWA MDA NIWA 'RWIAYT 72171D DW7R!XI0 D'RINI NP7 7970 1N 'ROT LD 1D 1N
Taly 227 Nopn NNan v MIna Apoyvnn NIYTA7 DXNNQ 0'901 D'RINYIE (NIRXIN TN D1 ,nYSIN ,n7Nn
7¢ TIn'7 7dW 1w tnn ,2014 nwa 7apnnw "Nk 2T 7,500 Yoo (jwtipi?) Navn pavn Dl expatriates
D'YUTIN NYY NI NI7aN0N NOIPNI D'WTIN 12 T NT2m nwoin oiwn ,mw? nir 15,000 Tv Y 102 5 72 TV 017

(DTN DWW Yy 17y X7 NIanonn N9IN oY TN NATRIA NYTIN N9IPNY T2'711)

.N"Y 199N 52 -1 YW 101 ,NMNaN2 INPOYN OI'0 12 DMIV'D MIX'S 7970 N7 IN7Iw 2015 nawa o iy
JXNINNDYA TV 7 D120 22yn 7910 N7 WWKYT 1YY NP OIXI0Y |INI0YT D ,anar

-7 wimmY% NN WX N9 OIXLY W DMNo X7 NX9IX and 1,912 %w 102 ™10 TN pThn NITD TV mnoa
Tyl 17'wan 20%-> .n'x 4,489 7w winm 'nna (o oixuw 7w ninnn 1nn 1%-3) nop oixvw 7w nin1,912
Ny Y 0ton npna D 1yt .2016-2019 nawa NI wTINA 0IY 07N nyaXa 7'wan aani (2015 ) npavnn
N'1DIN 12T D'VI97 - NNANN W WY NIY NIYOIR 72NN NIMYY 17'wan DI0Y NIYOIX a2 ,mann T v TPG
'TNNn NI Tvm? ,q90n2a .2015 nanxta 31 o7 nnann ¢ 079050 NINT? 23.4 11X IXY N9j7 OIXIVY 7w NI'YOINN
D'7OY NIN'S7 1D 7"1N0d MIIND 22 17 1IPWIN WK ,NNaNN 7w 0no X7 nxoIx 'and 300,000 7w 702 190 n
NIT TWINT 1121 YK ,n"w 39.2 9w winm 'nna n'yoix 'and 100,000 (1) ' v DXNNA NNANN 7W NAVIVOKI
,25.3.2016 n1*n DNIW2ANN Tvm WWKRD ,N"Y 67.14 Yw winm 'nna nxoix 'and 200,000 (2) ,oxi7na iwaann Nt

.(Tyin " whwd) 25.3.2018-1 25.3.2017

Y1179 W 7w mjpoyin .2008 1anana 1 o 7nn 0IXNVW NXAR 7Y 0'90d0 71103 [N Y7o N - Y1i'e 1w n
nIr'o WNX7 .wxn or 90 niN9? 7w D'TTYNN M YW ANd1 NATRIA NYTINA OI'07 NIN X1 NAIXP 'M72 N9IpN7 NN
D171 O'RINT NPDYNN DX YNI79 107 D7WY 1'wnnh nnanni Tayni Taw 'on' 72In7 pD'wn' NTpinn AyTInn N9Izn

.0MI0'D "IX'D 717W7 T 'O 7y N1 |02 NIR'01 LYNY ,0'901 D'WTIN 6 YWNA (NI'ZR'YI0 NIWI9N 771D)

NNI'NY '9D 1IN NIDOIMNYT NTINY M'nw ,1oNa N"w 105,849 7w Yo n'wTin Mpwn 77D Y7o m 7w dwin Ao
niAa 1 ;1.7.2015 nira px? 0NN 7Y DWN NTNRXD 7Y NN NIy DT NANIN NIX7 DRNNA gwnn 7o)
M7 (2) nvna vIENd YWY

nTn 2ar,7v7 (1) 7'o2 vISNd ,0"011'S DTV NTMYN DTN A2 ,N"Y '97x 465-1 1'n 2015 mw a2 7avnin DIpo
.NN2NN 7w 7mann NI 11 9'woa nuionn NNon? oxkNNA ,0"7Arypae oy 3.89 jrva nTnvn

INKY7 11N021 ,7ann NIt NIKIINYG oxkNNaw 10,2015 mwh mawn yannn n7a7 9on 'RKana nTnyn IR D iy
.N"y 199K 225-3 7w 102 ,2014 maw a2 nnTn pavnn ynite b o7iw' ,2015 mwy nrnwn 0v90dn NN

110,000 (1) :J7n'7 VUSDN> NManNN 7w D'NO X7 NxoIx 'and 392,350 7w 102 Y179 N P'Thn ,NITN TvM? 1noa
Y279 m 2w mikotr L2011 axNae wTin? px? ovnnn Tm7 Tmy n'w 54.52 9w wmm 'nna ntesIix and
winm 1'nna oIk and 82,350 (2) .11.4.2014nx17n2 nwaann 0T NIT TNk 123 17X N'X9IX 'ANd D72 NIvaannY?
.16.9.2015 -1 16.9.2014 nrra nwaann on7 nixotnw ,2012 volIX wTINY |pIx7? ornnn TTMY? Tiny ,n"w 35.86 7w
wI7w1 NN 7R DYOIN 'AND NIYAANNYT Y179 n 7w Mot .n"w 61.68 7w win'm 'nna nxoix and 200,000 (3)

22.3.2019 -122.3.2018 ,22.3.2017 :0'xan 0'1vina 33.33%-3> 7w nin

.OINIUW NIBIY "2aN VYNY? ,NNAN2 DNIVEA'TA 73 172'PYW DMIPWUNN 10 NX 07710 DMIVTN IRYYT DMITYNN

MIPn 21 ,IRA7 4.2-1 1.2.1 0'9'wo ,0"90d0 NINIT? 24 1IXA IXY NN2N] NWN 'RYITE DNI0YT? NIV I9'Y 11097
707 '829

©®)

(6)

7)
(8)

TANKNA NLV'7YA 'K21 nagn

NpTNNI ("NIPTRR oIxVY" ([7n7) N"Va NIPTNXK OINIVWA I'MIFPTNN NIYYNAKL OIXIUW 7X0'N 1N DI'N NNANd NU™7wn "]
7172 0'V197 .NNANN 7Y NN MY TN NR'TAND NAWNIN OIXNILVY NNBIY A 21 NNann 7w Ni7an nin 21,882 -2 nwe
STARNN 'POY IR NIT? 1.3 W0 IXN NIPTAR OIXIVWA NIPTNNN



12

nL™MY 2va Y NIRPOY 22 napn

NN NPOY '73) MIW'RA 'W'N MY W' N0™WN 7Wa7w IN NU™WN Va2 DY NOY 75 12T ,NNann NY'T 20'A7 0N 7Y
TN Wi NIt MY anikn wina 1k 2015 mwa . nupnaw (07 TX [0 279 MY 02N IXK N7Y N2 02N I 2NN
[1¥* .2015 "anyma 31 o7 nann 7w 09000 NINIT? 37 1IKA DA IXKY .0T NIT DI0ND TYINA 7N [TV K'Y IX T NIT NYan

.NN2NN N¥A'RY 70107 DXNN MY TR NN2NN 7Y MIRAN NTYIET Y DNYIRNA 1IMKRD NIRPOY D

nNnana 7in%? (4) 270 9'yoa niflann NINPOY

.NT 7197 21 Mpn 1KY 0'019Y - INIVEYTN "I ,0IKNIVY MBIV NPOYN 00N

N D YK NITENN RPN DXNN2 ,NN2NN N0 T 07NN 2014 '8na 26 0 - OINMVY TV N - DNI0RA'T DY
NNENY N'WYHIYRE NMYN NO0INY OXNN MYWONN 2NN DID07 DXNNA NXTI DNIVRA'T 737 'ROT 'Y OIRIVY TV
D'9011 0'VI97 .NNaNN W NNATT2 Awnnna NrT 2000-0"wnn L (I¥'n M0PYT? NIRNINE 71M2 1272 0'773) NNann
NIANNN 2N OIXLVY TV M7 7win ,qom .(201-01-074040 :xnonox 'on) 2014 'xna 27 oi'n *T' NIFT IXD
ni' ,2014 'xn2 27 DI 07" O'NIFT IND) NN2N2 070 NNWN 'R DNIVRAT? 19'W7 NIATNNN 2ANd NoM 19y
:XNONoX 'oni 2014-01-092841 :xnonox 'on ,2014-01-074055 :xndnox 'on) 2014 7ra 2 nimi 2014 i 17
NIFT IN1) NN2N2 NWA 'RYIIEONI0RY'T NIMNXR NIVAY7 NRYEn N0''7191 201d 7791 KN ;(Nnxnna ,2014-01-105546
nNamn NMYnn 'RYNY NNT Nona NIvS and 17 il ;(2014-01-074040 :xndnox 'on) 2014 'xna 27 oim T
‘on -1 2015-01-043815 :xndnox 'on) 2015 11 9 orrm o m o'NIFT IXD DNANPZE NVYWN Ya 7V DN DI'RY

.(2015-01-072546 :xnd>nox 'on) 2015 2111 14 nimi (2015-01-043824 :xndnox

197 26.1 9o IX1 D'0197 - OIKIVW DY ATMN NPOY7 DXNNA "0IXIVY" DYWA WIN'WY NIDT NNl 19'W7 DI nnn
"oIxVY" AN WNRNWN? K71 N1ana NNNNNY K7W 12NNN 0INNVY NNSWN 111,07 §'Y01 MINKD . TARNN 70V JIRM
OIXIUY NNSYN 11 D' TAY ,NMANN W' T 207 .7"10 q'woa vI19Nd 7dN1 ,NIN'IoN NISIPN )7NNaI 0'AYIoN D'AINNA

JNMRN NIfRrNnn

.N

A

nnann 7in%? (4) 270 9'yoa NI'N [3'KY NINZOY

IX ,NN2NN 7¥ Noy 7w naro'7 07231 o'nan o' 1va ,2011 AxNaoa 21 nim nann [MIvY T NV7Nn? orkNNA
D"'902 NINIT) 7Y nNM NRpn? (X)(6)(%)41 Npna yviapd ,nNa7 npoyd N "1y 7ba 0y ,n7w NTNINA NNan v
178 D'NIN D'IRI 0970 ' ,¥a7d .NNANN 71N NNNTAND NN NPOY NI'RINNAT nI'Rw npoydl 2010 - y"wnin (o mw
TARN ,NN2NN W npoy 127 (TN NIXN NN NIANY7) 0'9'PYNal MOIPNN NI 1720 9'n N1'N17 DA YNy
NIFT NN'ONA IXN NI'NAYT L D1 ;MIYIND "W MY W' 07N 7Wa7w IR N0'Y7w v DY ,n7w NI NNan IX nNLVYwA
TN [N PRY A0 INIKN NIRPZOY 227 NIFNIN NN 2 07710 D'NINN DR .NNANN 7Y MK Ngoy A T

QMY 21 NIRPOYI ITA IT NININA IX NIITY NIXRPOY ,N9IZN TN ITINE VTN [DIXA NIYXANNN

SUN MY [N W' N0TYUn 'wa7w Ik UMW 5 DY NIRZOY ,NT NIT TVINYT 121 9ima 'R 21,01 X7 2015 mwa
707 MvNIdNN NIXZOYN LYN7 ,NINAT NIXFOY [I'RWI NNANN 7IN7 (4) 270 g'voa nirnn 'Ry

NMYUN NIYIN PIN 97 70 N'1voT "NwA"a DI0ND AT AT NNAN NIYXAKY NWIIN NXIAPN - DIONY (AT DY)
=21 720XN] |'9'7YA DTN INT [A W a1 0IXIVY 7R0M N NNaNn Ny T 207w ,1990 - |"wnn i oy
AT NWDN 27001, PIY I'NNAL D7AIEN O'RINA L7100 D0YN 170N N'wyl DIoNoN T nwoY Laminn inn 16%
LNXAPN 7Y DURIPYD 0DIXT1 210 w7 orkNn L (24 ywi 10 ynw "nwe" 122) DN DTINON VIT'Y 19131 DIOND

DXNNA NINYTY NNANN T 2V NIRNoNN 'WUR MY [N W' D0™MYUN Wa% IR DO™MYUN ¥ DY NIRPOY LI0NI9! 707
YIX2 QNI N9 NIT'WO Nyl pwnl NI7ZImann NMMUWYN N1N2Nd NNaNN ¢ n'DIX? 17 D'wa NRTIE 79T no7nnk
2V mavynn Myswn NTAYL,NT 7Y NIYYANNN NIXPOYN 'OIX7 ,NNann NI (111a7 ,NNann 'od1 9 ?Minal

XNMIRXINT NN2NN NI7'YD

|'2 NNDY DD0N7 DXNNA NN NN N¥9NN TN NDWA NITIX D'019Y7 - DIPN NN9) IX9NN 7971 NIDWN A
D12 D"NON WK ,(NN2N2 DLW YA T 7Y NV7YI NNANN NY'T 207 TWKR) N"Ya MANK 117 7I'Y 0IRIVY
31 or'7 nann 7w 0050 NINIT? 37.3 NN IXY D'NINN X7 0MIoa NNHDY MT? nmna ,2015 nanyTa 31

.2015 nanxm

,0'71M PIY 'NINQI 7270 0'70YN 170N ,NY7 Nyn NYdIN NN2NN - OFTY NXIAZA NITyonY (It XM N1on 2
.NN2N2 NU7WN Y W DNNE 7Y N0MYA NI ,NN2NN NYIT 207 AWK 0TV NXIAPN NNANY |ITn XN

,0'1M PIY 'NINQI 7270 D'70YN 170N N7 Nyn N2 NN2aNn -n"ya NIYRWN 0INMVYY (ITA Mvin 1on 3
.NNaN2 NV 7wWN N7Ya N"Ya NIPTANR OIXTVY NNANY [ITA XN

D'l PIY 'NINAI 7200 DPoYN 17NN . Ny7 Nyn NNIXA NNANN -_0'TY NXIAEA NITyon? NN'R Di7wn 4
.NMN2N2 NO™MYN YY1 W DNNE 7Y D0 DD L,NNANN YT 207 YUK 01TV NvIapn NITyona

0'D5011 0'VI97 NNINNN 72PNY7 WP W' DNANE IR NO™MY Y29 198D NIDYY 0NN IR 09117 NN NXRPEN NY? Dyn
707 "2 7m M0 NI NIMNN 90 IR

.X



13

D12 DIWN 'RYRI My "ya NnipTNN

124 napn

2015- :xnd>nox 190n) 2015 07102 5 oI NN 7w T NIT IR LN DY C'RYIL MY 75 NIPTRN NAXN 12T 010197

.(01-044800

:N"ITN JIXNYT 11N02 NN 2'7TNn |2V 7V2 70w DMNK W NNMIENMNA 2T ,NN2NN 7Y NNyT 20 9% N 707

ANy AY'Y
npTNAN npTNN
[kt nyaxna ANy Y'Y ao0n
27112 271712 npTNN npTND 'on "N /miInT 'on
N'm N'm N nyayna n"ax/nim nolna nnan '"wan 2ya nw
62.32%  62.32%  64.57%  64.57% 69,300,492 746016 510039829 TN °'"g..‘;“1’
0.02% 0.02% 0.02% 0.02% 21,882 746016 9144767 8O oIXLVY
0% 0% 0% 0%  *867,940 746016 520003781 oM °'“;..‘;“;
0.49% 0.49% 0% 0% 545595 7460165 022848352 07 M
NIPTAN 7Tan
3.91% 3.91% 4.05% 4.05% 4,350,811 746016 520029984 R'oN'SINIoA
qnnwn - n"ya
D'niNna
NIPTNX 7Tan
o o o 0 D'022'91 NIV
0% 0% 0% 0% 4,739,672 7460140 520029984 Snmwn -A"ya
o'niNnAa
NIPTNX 7Tan
2.93% 2.93% 3.03% 3.03% 3,257,215 746016 520029984 0'022'01 NIV
“nal n'019 -n"va
NIPTNX 7Tan
0% 0% 0% 0% 409,091 7460140 520029984 0'011'01 NIV
021 N'019 -n"ya
NIPTAR 7Tan
0.23% 0.23% 0.24% 0.24% 206,074 746016 520029984 ['oN'orNIoa
nmy -n"va
1IN 'PIYIE NINK]
NIPTAR 7Tan
0% 0% 0% 0% 4,140,135 7460140 520029984 0'0IT'S1 NIY'a
nmy -n"va
[N 'PIYIE NINK]
NIPTAR 7Tan
0% 0% 0% 0% 12,216,234 7460363 520029984 IONOT NILT2
nmy -n"va
[N 'PIYIE NINK]
NIPTAR 7Tan
0.19% 0.19% 0.20% 0.20% 209,352 746016 520029984 0'012'91 NIV

nvon -n"va



0%

0.22%
0.22%
0.27%
0.35%
0.23%
0.09%
0.24%

0.02%

71.73%

0%

0.22%
0.22%
0.27%
0.35%
0.23%
0.09%
0.24%

0.02%

71.73%

0%

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

0%

72.11%

0%

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

0%

72.11%

14

2,740,444

250,000
240,000
305,000
392,350
255,000
100,000
268,709

17,500

7460140

7460165

7460165

7460165

7460165

7460165

7460165

7460165

7460165

520029984

65261398

51921195

058786245

059764407

059167858

058102138

25257304

055430821

NIPTNX 7Tan
D'011'91 NIV
novon -n"ya
712X 780N
NY'T-11 KM
Y 70 NN
Y179 WnY
o7 |In¥

ANIT AN

7N NN

L [N 1Y)]

*

nmiT ni'm

2 nim T NIFT IR 0'9011 0'0197 Mann v (2 NNT0) N"aR W RN T nnann vy 2016 axnaoa 1 o o e
.(2016-01-021358 :nonox 'on) 2016 W'xN192

DM )Y NN 9N I ,DIYA I '824 dagn

21 mpna X'm 721771 nmani 2015 hanyTa 31 oir'? nann 7w nv90o3n niniT? ,23 ,26.2 ,26.1.2 ,26.1.1 pMixa I 00197

St

ni"n '7va owin 224 napgn

2016-01- :xmdnox 19on) 2016 WwN2oa 3 nrrm NMaNn 7w T NIT IXY ,NNANN 7w Nifnn *72py2 0wan 12T 0'019Y

(022756

DIYN jyn :'k25 nagn

49517 nipn nno ,49 nra'on AN NAIMD
03-6752279 :0p79 ,03-6752499 :j1970

mike.avner@strauss-group.com :'1NVZ7XN INITN NAIND



15

T2AXNN 7W DNIVPTN 126 Dagn

INITN TYINY 121 0NdNN NN2ANN 7w DIV '0D 7Y

22X '10om Y"T

,OIRT0Y N1DIY

A'TAIY 2N '9N9 y'am'n nain I'm OINTLVY 'TY " NVPTN DY
(ra1x'n Y10p1T) oY Y1

78284338 01136563 56417843 023831837 022889323 56616584 NINT NTIVN

1948 nanxTa 25 1939 i 13 1960 'xna 12 1968 "7 15 1967 "xNnaoa 27 1960 voiaixa 22 NT7 )1INN

,X11 iwn “n 4 1vox am X"n ,3 117x% n'on 3wvan Ymn 'm ,

, -1 ,31 o'xaynn 'mM N ANd NR¥NNY? [yn

N1 69362 2'ax 21X - | aTn 2,37 orman 'm 1ax T

n'7Rw n7Rw n7Nw N7 n'7xe n'7xe nin'm

1997 nn 2008 1 2003 vonix 2004 nanan 2011 vonix 1996 1xN1D MINdN N'7'NN TVIN

NV'OMNIN - NP7 "T
,N"127'019) 1011

ninna MBA ;(2"nx

- NIXIAYNI D'011'D

N79'701 IUXY NN A
NM2YN NV'0NANIRDN -
N1 noin ;n'7wnna
,NNI7I7 NV'ONANIN —
NMAN NIXIR LI 1)

[IWUXI ININ NI
[1"D0 - 71011 '’
- 07275 T nonomi

Y717 IR XM
NV'0NIIX - N'T'H7VI
2R M

'ATMaNa NYAIR TN
D70V 7NN ;n'72IN
T7'OW NV'ONAMIIN

[IUX ININ NN
NV'0NIX — D'UOSVYNI
21X M

n'7Hwn

S - [IN'N2 MVPZITINMI [0V 722N
17 ,N12ni7IE NV'0NIIR
NN DIXR
70V yyI! . o
Nx¥IN ;nNany nhan Mo onf‘ww n'2n nmana 7o 7nn . nann T A" DIYN wnn1l 210'y
7n1mY7 n7on nay n'va (1993) nwpwn n"ya MIxzon) D0y 7mn 2001 am NNNNKRN
780 7w 1NN ;0IXVY 780" 7w M ;0IRTVY 780 7w 1N
[A N 7w N ,0IkuY NIoIY 7Y [N'NKR OIXVY TV 7V DNINK
. N . J7T 729w PR DT | 0IRN0W NMIWIELOIKI0Y | NIYNR GOIRIVY NI | "My 7wa7 nnodwn naay
N9 7w DITITE | ,NT 2 AWY 7w NtnX m aNTR A Y INKR
OIXILVY "TY ,0INVY 71 T N v DTIT 2 220 M N Y DNTIT
.OINOW NI [T ['Tn
MIYP NNan 7w N1y
nu7UN Nl Y OINILYA VYT .
n"7"n - TAKN2 1MV T ;N"Y2 NIPTNR " man i Tion
I'N I'N ['R nann i T A" IX MY N1an ,na

nivjpwn (1993) oixow
NI T ;N"ya
n"ya NIPTNX 0INILYWA

Q0T ;AN ON2a
NIXM2 OIXKNLYWA

n7an My 2yaa




16

;"Y1 DNyI YauR
Vo7 PIP'T M — "1
;n"va nna;;n"ya

n"va MIwpn  101e
oI n"va "aax
n"va T nnin jn"va

;n"Va NIPTAN  OIXVY
N21 NYO ;n"va Nanx 1N

Avn nwn n"ya
anwn n"va nipTtnn
L1nnl VAL ,N7VN
v ,n"va nivpwn

DIT" NPX ;n"ya NN
NPOX NpPR n"va |
NEX ,n"va 9D qniv
n"va D'oP'nND  LN.Y
NPX n"va WRWIpN

;n"Ya NIPTAX OINNLVY
;n"va Npwn o'y
;n"ya 'moo 97 o'y
;n"ya NIrorvam o'ty
“XIN0 V2N 0TV

D"V D'7YON " Nnp n"va Dnrmon o o
o nwdN TNty a"nY o DYn TNX 0TV ;n"va ;n"V2 NIPTAN OINILY
1007 ;n"ya X YD qniw -pvan | oixow n"yva nRponm |, . DN 0'901 D' TANN
. D YN nvoMaaIk  7Inma N o ;n"va nny 0Ty ;n"yva | NNIYRI NIRTRim nNan
aronip ;n"va nivpwn i NINN X ,n"va ;n"va NIPTNN o N0 T n/aindn
o o OpX X "7 ;2N . " [TV ;n"va n1mn o'y .nMann v
;m"va NNy N Alaska Advisors ,n"va "
n"ya ] .0 N1 n"va nnn
NINLPXR A'YWYN [NYX " S.A; ot
N n"va omi? o'y ,;n"ya ' 71nn
YL Red Canyon NNX 0TV ;n"ya D'od)
Industries Ltd; ’ .
Perl Properties ’
Holding Inc.;
Emanate Technology
& Trade Ltd.
Deep Blue Yachting
LTD; Ocean Blue
Holdings LTD; Ocean
Blue Yachting LTD;
NV DI N A"
NINIT N'NA7 NTYI | ;07902 NINIT  N1'N1AY7
7Man NTYI1;0"90d | ANwnl 7man Nl PIN-TR DTV
; . JIVPWUNT 21I0-TR NTVI v NITvi/ 2TVIA nnan
TR DTV WOR ARWNIL | PIn-TR DTV WIR . ['R ['R NIYnDY  NIvpwny S
NIYD ,NIYpUnT pin | Niwo) JNIypwny DTNl I e
DnAITAIl DnAITAl
NNIX NXN NN2NN DRN
nI'rnnin n'7y1d
p) ) b) N7 N7 X7 | X7 nron'ol n'xawN

MYTAN 190N2 NT'NY
[IMI0ZY' TN VAW




17

qINN N2 oTin XAty A ERETL BIT e Y 'NN nvin 1T NVPTN DY
' (19n 'n'a) (n*1x'n nLET) ?(nn9n-mta) Y e
01154780 006255046 50172667 007555337 8409732 007130271 NINT NTIVN
1943 2xinaoa 11 1947 Ax1nao1 22 1950 vonixa 22 1947 vonixa 2 1945 1anvo0a 8 1946 "1 26 NT7 KRN
1+ nm 10 noon Yn 17 119k 0'on 'm nmMp L4 jron aim -n ,16 nwn 12 AN o ,28 qnn 'mn | 2ar-m 3 wno IRaT A AN IRYNAY Wn
| ' ! hlatY 76568 niaina ,n1ann 62308 2ax 56540 64731 Nl
5242550 [T
NN NN NN NN nuRWY nuRWY nnma
2013 'xn 2008 1 2008 2008 1997 nanuvo 1977 ~anyT MINdN N7'NN TN
-o'Poy  7nina MBA | 097021 lwRY NN Na IR AXIN AR NINIAYNL NN | 27701 [IWRY ININ 1
nu'oNaIN — N'7HD'HMA
nMavn NU'0NAIIXN — N1rmn i NMAYN NU'0NANIND | NV'ONAIIN- NIXIIAWNALI
s NdNoIN ;21X N . ) [IUXI IXIN N2
n»n'oma BA  phwney NMN2YN NU'0NANINRND nonoin ;n'7wina Y ININ QAN TN
. —7mmi RPN n'Hd’a N0'0NAMIIXN - D'VOYN] n'7Hwn
- np'voruvol | 7N1'Na nomn ;n'7wna ) NU'0NAIIX — D'VOYNI - 0'poy 71N
;NMAYN N0'0NANIND . . nMavn
n"Mavn NU'0NAIINN NU'0N11INA — D'70Y -ISMP ;'7x M2 AN 7N NU'0NIIX
- N7 N0IT RN
Dwny D'7wN1 NNAvN TIXINN NV'0NNIIX nom awn RN

NnMayn NU'o0NA1INRA

12 N7 oI ')
;IR mINY
Chairperson Leumi
Private Bank
Switzerland

2T A Mo T 2
7"5n n'"va 09y
;n"va W oo
nnann a2
QY Al NIMAND
;NTAY? RN TN
2 niIX7pnn T e
Uan! Iy 12X
nXVIN NN miN?an
X' X 7w nnann
;(IFA) mix7man jwmn
mmn TT nnmy "
N1 "npnio”  'XI’N
nana nan Vv
NU'0MIIX 7W DINKIN

ninana NI T
n',H»d  nyyr nnv
nnan - WX N0y
Jporn 'l e
;o'oY 7mam%? npinnin
o'xm" ™ nbnan
Jrorn it nimr
w'y  71In1%  noupon
T TI9712
MIA -2 NU'o0NNIIN
NMIX7ZN DXV n"an
JNITX NIN'DY1 ynn?
,0NAN AN nMan
nan NN N7'7on

NTIAY NXIap v nTVIn

Jipun-nya
S el |
27U  Danxan nnan
M A NL'oMIIN
2aN-7N NV'oN1NINI

NN2aN NIV

'NNXy

1019 TIWN |'T -1V

DIYN ynna pio'y
nnNnNKRN

.1999-0">wnn ,NNaNN PIN2 INNTAND NN M7 NNV NN'WIN RN Q7 07T 'aan a7 omepnn D 1o nNann
.1999-0">wnn ,NNaNN PIN2 IMNTAND 17N 'M72 10T NNWIN 'RIN 0TI K'Y 1N a7 0NN D A1Iao NNann 3




18

71N VAW AN1] |IMi A

JNOININD TINRD 7Y

7¥  panxan nam | "policy relevant - xwina
nmnik? 0" "jpw" | research on
nxvmn  "an - ;aixwi | entrepreneurship and
N'M"YYnn nxy'mn SME's"
nYpnn %Y nmTpN
ny  NN1d - NMITPERD
NTVIN "an T
2V npon%?  nyxymn
D'WAN D"V D'7IAN
NINj1 'P0VY
N N i N N N ["y 72va7 nnswn Nap
NN
72N ,NMana T'poN
I'N I'N ['N ['N ['N ['N IX DY N1an ,na
nNana fay vl
2012 710 tm mapo
nypwn Tn W.X ;n"ya
faax ,m"va 2012
. 7nmn T "an ,n"ya
,Equity One Inc. . man ™ ;n"va 77 | 1w ;n"ya 0110701'R 1o
22X 7N nvoMIR v " o
NI'0IXNIS NI'YYN Yau " oAl T2 ;n"va von | ;n"va nwpwn N - DN 0'901 D'T'ANN
o e NI'YYN 01097 ,n"ya ;n"va n'wion ma ['R
;n"ya LA i'inox ;n"ya " [IUXIN mix12n | 797 ,Nrmnown nnan N/ T n/indn
" 'V mia nrwyn n"va " ! " :
n"vaa e | ’ n"ya xw 719 ,n"va |0
n"wax mnv
Advisory council ,n"ya
for Trilantic Capital
Partners Europe
axwnl 72man NI A" | NN n1'nY - Nl NINIT N1'NAY7 NTVI
JIVpwUn? pIin-TR NI JIVPWUn? ZIin-TR DTV [ A" DR NTYE WK | DI DTyl ;DU90D 7IN-TX NTYI ;D"90D P — 7w niTvi / Ry nnan
DAITNI NIYD) DAITAINIYDY | DINT - NI'NA7 - ATVIN | L DWpwn? gin TR NI nIYDY  NIYpwn? ! [IMI0 T
D'"90D DAITNAI NIYD) DTNl
NIX NXN NN2NN DRD
T'XIAWN NI'NNIM 7y21)
> > > b} b} N NTMY IX7 N'011'ol
7 7no

VAW MytTan 1oona
[NV T




19

N1 NYUN 'RV

'826 napn

:NITA TVINY |12 0'2NDNN 0D MY 'RU '01D |'7ﬂ'7

o iy Yo "Ny v 70 NN 712X 780N nYT 72 XM 251 ,|'0"%7 'Ta :NYUNN XY DY
59167858 059764407 058786245 65261398 51921195 022848352 NINT NTIVN
1964 nanana 28 1965 vonixa 20 1964 voiaix 5 1955 7anx1a 6 1953 'nma 4 1967 '7oxa 19 NT7 1NN
2009 2008 nanan 2007 ~iopIN 1994 71on 2011 e 2009 MINdN N7'NN TN
" 2w 0'90 "0 | 7w Wik arwn 7">mo YVr A2 7'1n0 " "
72X OIXVY 7" 2'D™I UK '0OUN "m7 mwn nXpEn 7" X NN ToON
nxnpn XN
nann
opn  MmwolpTper " 72N ,NMana T'poN
2¢ N2-nNaN VYT | 7w NA-NNANA VYT | NA-NNAN NNI0T 7¢ N2-NNaN2 IVPYT | W NA-NNANA 0T
nnann nlann nnann v 7N ;T nnann nann Ik MYz an ,na
N3 NN n7an My 7vaa

NOTIN noINIi M
(120 - 71011 WY
nom

[IUXT ININ N2
- N7 niIKAInvNa
21X 7N nuronanIx

[IWUXI ININ NI
NN NAI7ID109

- nnNio

NMAYN NU'0NANIND
'y Ndnom ;0N
NN 1100 - NIANINNN

- D'VOVNI [IWNRI IXIN
21X YN NuroNanIX

TN IWKI IRIN N2
7N NU'0M1IIN - NN
NN M ;2N
Advanced ) n'"7nn
Management

n1a Program (AMP -
7w 0oy 7nn% 190N
,TIIRIN NV'ONAMIIN

- D'POY '7N1N1 Jnoin
[IM12 |2 NV'ONQIIN
7n1na 72 yaw N2
70?7 n7onn ooy
1ax m

n'Hwn

BRI
72U wir axwn 7">71mo

7w 09000 7"71mMo I" 21 7"Ino
- W' 0INVY 701N 3 o 7nm ' avmgn | 1B 7N - avign Tl’:m wx oown | 2011 N ¥om |- axapn 7' ke DIYN wnna 10'y
2009 11 15 o 7nn 20(l)8 Wlnrn:nln 2007 Mavxa N 2014 | 2009 72 1 nim 7nn nRNNXN

1 1
2v2% nnown My

I'N I'N I'R I'R I'N I'N

AN "My




20

Y v (narT 70) " 70 WNIN .
In'Y -2 nnYy 0w AT N Jaxa ane :NYUNN XWUN DY
12308789 055430821 56216013 024216160 25257304 NINT NTIVN
1956 "1 2 1959 7moxa 17 1960 'xMNao1 9 1969 wia 30 1973 "xnao1 28 NT7 1NN
1999 2014 vonixa 1 2015 9oxa 1 2015~ 06 2010 "1 19 NINdN N7'NN TVIN
21'9'T NN20 NN " "
N9 I7an - D'n OIXIVY "IN awn BV nojp oixow 7" Mana T'PoN
i
5 72N ,NMana T'poN
Y  Na-NNan o
I'N ['N ['N ['R IX MY 12N ,na
mann

nNana |y vl

N72'701 IUXY IRIN

— NINIAWNI

;2N 7N NU'0N11IIN
N9 ANl [IAYN XN
(CIA) Jnoin

A'YYN  NoTMn MMl
YN noonanik Nl
N'2I017'91 NOIN ;2N

21X 7N NV'0NIIN

N0'0N2MINN NI
[ITAN 'YT7 NNavn

¥ D'jpoy 7n1n Nan
707 n7onn

LLB in 2varnan
,0'09wNY NVYIPON
University of East Anglia-
nnI79T 2va1 Norwich
D'7oy 7n1na
(Postgraduate Diploma in
,Business Administration)
(T ,Hull nu'oNanixn
n'72IR

n'Hwn

n"N Twnl gniv
[nua -Deloitte

n'7">1mo 2013-2014
21'9'T N120 PI'Y

nTIo N¥1n7 awn 2013
,0M0o0

nin' 7">1n0 2010-2014
7¥ N1ALIVONI D70y

DIYN ynna pio'y

\ nonip nN20 7">m ! N{kirh]
NIV INT NAN7X A" 2009-2013 nwl:'; 2010-2013 Re:Bar 2" 2006-2014 NNNKRN
"7109 OIKVY 0179101 ¥R
2v2% nnown My
I'N I'R I'R I'R I'R

ANX "MV




.DYNNXY AN'NN 'YAIN 'K NN - T'AXKN 0''XNYY an'nn '‘viin 1226 npgn

.64739 2'ar-n ,01M7'n 7Tan 17 NYaaRn ‘NN N0 - TIARNDD Y jIawna RN 227 papn

NI'TY MY QWYY PN IR DTN 'N'Y :28 ngn

7Vun7 N'kwN Nnann Xnn on'e? 171 -1 170 o'o'wo 17 1901M'y 9182 NNann AN [7in 2015 mwa
X7 , |71y 9001 OX ,[N"'Y 1I0V9NY TA711 .0N2NN 970 NINFITH NAIN NN9N A2 1109 'ANd ,NYN 'RYNY
MW7 Mun Xwn IX N0MUN 02%1 1T 7Y MYIRY Doy 7V IN Mwn XY 72w nonn v 2ine
2015-01- :xndnox 'on) 2015 12 9 nim 0T D'AIMT IXD D'O01 D'VID7 .NMIY'NA 'W'R "IV NN2N]
-1 2015-01-072546 :xndnow 'on) 2015 "2 14 oimi (2015-01-043824 :xndnox 'on -1 043815

.(2015-01-072549

N'7790 190NN NYIN NNIYV |I'RY DIV TY DIVZNDI NIX'INN .N :29 napn

257 n"w 0.93 -> 7w 102 MITNA TITAT 7N7 NN NIV T V7NN 2015 1anana 23 o
nanyTa 10 o P2in mTarTa 0" e 100 9w 970 npoar ;X" W n"w 1 na a7 nan
(2015-01-171099 :xmdnox 'on) 2015 NanxTa 2 orm T NIFT IXY 0'901 0'019Y7 .2015
.2015 nanxTa 31 o017 nann Yw 09000 NINIT? 26.3 NNl

nTnI'm N'7%5 No'OX NIL7NA a

[DPD [1I7'N DX NN 2 ,NN2aNN 7w nimnn v 7w n'on nororn nwr 2015 i 14 nim
NIWN KWL DNI0PYTT? N9'WY NIATNNNT NIMNKA 10D AND NN IWON'Y D NNaNn
7N ("M and " it mpna |7n%) onfanpl NNana nV'7wn *72va 177n NIDYY ,NNaNa 0NoNN
NIMNXA JIUD AN NP DI IMKRD 110D AN NZIN TWOXR'Y D NNaNN W 72mann ninrmn
DNNPZI NVYYN 7V 1PN NI2Y7 ,NNANA DINdNN NYA 'RWIE DNI0RYT? 197 nirnnnl
9 DI NTNIMI N'MIY N'77) N9'ON [IN'T 12T T NIFT IR 0'9011 D'V1DY .NNaNN 721 NI
2015-01- :xndnox 190n) 2015 72 14 pirm n9'oxN NIRXIN 72T ' Nkl 2015 am

.(hnxnna,2015-01-072546 -1 043824

Dana Nivnan :'’x29 nagn

NIWUN XwWNY '19'W7 NIATNNN IX NIV’ ,IVD

DXNNAI ' DNONI §7INA D' NNANA DINdNN DIV 7727 19'W'7 NIANNN 1and ,AT NIT TVINY [ID]
iyt .(2011-01-177714 :xnonox 1oon) 2011 11 6 nim nann 7w nTNMNE 1770 n9'oxn Nu'7NnY
19'W7 NATNNNN AND 7N Jwnn DX DN [YNR7 DNYKRN NNANN DI T 79 wTnn M nya »
N9 N"N%7 Mwn 'RWIE DNIVEITT NIV IV 19'WY NIATNNN JATA 0'019Y7 L7"n nu7nn? oxknna

MW7 22 napn IRD OINVY TYI OIRNVY

,O'ROT I'N' NN2N2 MWD ‘KW 07 DXNNY ,M2nn 7w 2mann ninm nwik 2013 7anvooa 9 nia
N7 ,Nwn 'KYI NIMNR NIV MNA0MA 'NIVA 10D N7AF7 ,NN2aNN [RPNY7I NNANN 2IN NIXINT 91922
MYnn 'Rwn 7w 7Nt QWR NR N 1o 7D Ir L"Run Off" aion niva ["Claims Made" aion niva
NN20N2 1WA NNNRYY7? DXNNA D VA7) 002 .NN2NN 7 0'DNomMN 0AIRD NIV7NNY DXNNA ,NNana
Mwnn 'Rwn? 'nivan 1omn 71aa ,([7n7 vond) 2012 i 17 nirm nnann 7w 770 n9roxn nu'7nin
q7x (0'wmn omxn) 250 7y nyn X7 nMawn n'n1oni 2N YT 7 (ovnxn) 200 7y by X7 nnana
7 ninn " %Y NN N9'oRN YW kNN 7NN Yaptw 7301 DX INK DIDO 7D IX) AN T
190n) 2014 'xna 27 DA nNann nNOSY DUT'A DNIFT IXY NNANN 7w 7mann nirrmY) .(nnann

.((2014-01-092841 :xmdonox 190n) 2014 212 17 nirar (2014-01-074055 :xnonox



-22-

2012 112 24 om'n nann 'nirma veNd) 2012 i 17 nim nnann YW NY7750 N9'oORN NV'7NN NAoNA
190n7 ,wxIn NWIR ,(nnxknina ,2012-01-187101 -1 2012-01-164121 mixnonox 'on ,2012 " 17 -i
NIMNX NIV NOYIS2 NY7 Nyn Mann W nIrnupnn ,2017 "anvosoa 30 o7 TV NXTI NIV NISIEN
(0NN I NUUN YA 7Y DNl DI'RY) N7W NDAN NN2ANAI NN2N2 009N DY C'RYIE DNI0YT
BV nop oixquw 1y n'oroa no'1oa ,(BV nop oixquw X N'Y71D N1'RYW) NNaNn 1Ay N'0'oa no'oa
N9193 MK NNYPENN MK NIOYMIDN MY 7¢ NIMNKN NI71227 12yn 27NN N9 TIY N0 NoMIsa |3 1ndl
250 %y n%yn X7 nMwn nMmMIon "R AT 1" (ovnkn) 200 v nbur XY 'niotan t1onn 7w Pt
TYW NOIPNYT NYIN QWK NO'™7I5N NNIY? NNYRNNN 'KIN2 D'NINA 07720 'RYI"NIR 2T 99X (D'DRn)
75 7w 0"O'¥90N O'NINNI D'APON D Va1 L, nd (7'W7 nnann 'nirTa med) 2013 nanvooa 30 o
7w 19000 NIT? 24.4.2 N2 DA IXY .NNANN 7"DM T 7V NYIR' 1YAp" MK WM QYR NIV NOYID

L7 "2 79na 2015 nanxTa 31 o' nnann

L7 29 Mapn X0 nN2N2 NN 'RWRT 1109 'and Njzavn 12T 0'019Y

:DT'79NI D'ANIND NINY
n"ya 9121 oIXVY

[IMI0ZITN "I ,0INVY NBIY
mMann 7" ,ro7 M

2016 0na 20 :4Rn



Lgrarn Sunn PINY

YPNOVPITN NINNDNY

1993 N 193

\/ SN IR DMYNNN DNVPIT NY TINND NP M TH MY 52 R

9IKI D3> 90 DY NI NN DPNNN DINVPT MY VMO KD N2 YITN NAPN ON /NI MNYY 17 1T NHNYA
7P XY N2 (D2972) 1ITN NMPN PINN (NI NO/NII) NONY NIWN 952 DIINY,MI12NND 7INY (10)(2).8363 Pyoa
P2 NTIO TIN,TAVTA NIYIRY INND NPN D) NT HHI2)) MIPTN NIV TN IN DMNNN DINOPIT NIV TINNI
:(DMVN DNXNN DINVPIPTN

NMY MAT AN R NVPPT

.16.3.2014 D2 MMTN NYY NPIPN MYNN NNDNI DDND !



INNONN T A NPT

.2 : 71 NINY DIDID THNY 123 THXNT DNINNN DPNYINT ONVPITN 1901

4712 7 NIORY DIDID TIND NI THNRN OIN50N $om5n >nvan DNVPPTN 2w 2

- - . 2 annn PN yapaw oYM dnban oINPT MOV

LMPNI NNNN NYAPI KDY POINDT KD X

YA 1P DN 2D RN (DHN FN5AN DINVPITM) OPNNNN DINVPITN DY NPT NIWI MPTN MHVI 3
(D51 >XNY2M) DMNNNN DINVPITN DY NPT ITN PNYD MIIND PINY (1)) (2)240 PYD NN NN MITN
.01915NY2 1) MMININ NVPITI NNNDY DIWITIN DININN DN DIIOPNN 121 TINN DNNONN

LYNY) POPYI IN PIVNI 999N SN (D919 OPN ,NITH MV ToNNT PINNT VD IWN D NVPITN 9 4
(DYTIY0 MPX) TINNL NHMP ON,DITAW PN NINY NOPPT

.3/8 YTV 5 .91 TON TINN DNON 1900 -NWY” DT )ORYA 2

MAINN PINT DNITHND 7OPNPN DNOPPT MY >

(D>PI2N HY NPANN MNIN - ANPIT TINNI NDITY) TIRNN 5 NINN TPBND PT NN 3 5y MY MMIPNY - 11 "R Py *
T PYD Yy MIYY NI NP DN MAPK NN

NVLHVIY PINIHN PIRN TIY IR/ (NMOPPT LYAY) TN RYNI NN TIKNT NOPPT NN, TPRN /M7 2WN XY, PIRNN NOHWA XYDIN PIMH TINN NPT NN DY - 1§ Y Py °
AT NORY PIYDY MDA AWN TINNN



YTRY NOY DMNOPITN MY I - (MNND 999N DIND P19 NVPITN ,IP) ¥ R NN DINIWVN ON
:1IND NYNI

NDY T2 IND0) KD ,NDYOIN DY NNY TT0 DYY NPOY NN DNV OYIN PIY DY IN1P DY WY DINOPPTN 5
£ (MNINN PIND (2)278 PYD 95 MPPNNT M2 NYANT IN 11T VYD) MND NYIANNINNYN

- 19 XY NN DONAIVN ON
;119D (K)278 PYD MNNNY ONNN VT DY DNDN RYN NINN OV N 7PN ORN
(MORNND N¥awna xpoow) N O yp O

1N P02 9NN ML LYNY NYIXNA NN IN/ T2 INI NN DXNVPIT DN MWD MY PN

MDY NI XD, TIRNA INN 717992 NIWN XY IX NOPITINORY ,(1HY0N 23 IN 1P M1AIY) NVOWN Hya
MPTN MV IIPPRNY IPNOPITN

7IWN KYN INA TPNOPT 12N IDRY IDYOLN M0 N 11PN NDDIY HYA 7P) #1193 KD NN DINNIWN DN
MDY G0N DTR I3 MNON 210D DININ DIVINN MY — (NN TPNVPVTN MDA NI THNNA NP3
SO PNVPPTN

MM

: (D1 992) TINNL PPAN



: (1NY NVYOYN HY2 PN NIV PN DNR) NVIIWN HYID NP VIV

(MONANN N¥avna xpod vy &9 10 971 Sy 0101 Xwn MmN DWY M N OXND

mnow, ST HY DNDN XY TI¥N DYDY NIDTA THYI WIPINY P NOPPTH MDY Imnon My

NN

(VYW Yya PN TINNI) PO KO

ADYON D INA MR ,NDIWR SYa A N TIeN TN



OXNVPITN 2IIVWID) MVYD

1993 N9

P32

;AN DNOPPTN Y9 YW DNNND NN NPT DPOY MIYONN NN 1972001 NINIIN NHNMP NI TINNN PPN 7
895230 nawny R 937 172 NP — NY PRYY) DINYIN DINVPIT DPRY

— PIY (MNND 122N NPMP IP) NI KD 1PN DINIWN ON

____TMOPYTINMOY IPNA YIAPIV N P9 N B
_____:DMIVPITN OV DNNND DYDY 1NIPNI YIAPIV V1T 1N A B
___:DMLPYTN OV DNNND DYD DY MYYSN NDOONA PN YIAPIY IPIN PIN 2 B
S IIPNAIX MNNNIIPYO VNN N 1 o
\/ THARNN DY DN PN DINNY TINNN PPOY DINNI ,DOVUTN DINVPITY NIYWIN NPIDIN NIIYY INT TINNN B .8

TPANY ANV P, NONMNA ,D2IN2H DXNOPPT NIWIND TYHN DN NI INT 121 ,D¥NOPPTM
STONNA NODD NOPPTIV

n¥awna x oY W) NI 1 X NITN MWA NOYIIN MIDNN ONN PIY - #1127 11N DINIWN ON

T PYO HY NYY NYITI NPN N MIPN NN 8



(NONRNNN

TNV NPNNIN MY NPNY OMHYY 1PNVPITI DNVPIT DY WITI MY 19010 YIP) TIRNI N .9
0N

.31 y2PIY HOYINN 190NN PINY - )1D)7 NN DINIIWVWN ON

- NPT MY YNNI TINNA NIPIY DINVPITN 190N A
.8 :93'1’033’91 TORNIVN NPNMIN YoYa

.10 - royixpn mrws shya

LYNY) AN TIAN IODHN TV NIN N ,MPTN MWL NHBND DXNVPITN 190N DMIPY PRV NIPNRI
NPT MY NIPOY NO Y10 DMNOPPT OV (MIPWN MIPN DI 60 H¥ 103 NP

N .09 NYN DMIN PNVPITN 2591 KD NN TN NIV D2 N .10
S MNRN OPPNN K 12 (D932) YATN P9 PINY - 71123 XY 1)1 DINDIVN DN

,0° 60 DY N NN DN NIWN DINVPIT NI KD NA JATN NMPN DN #NI NNYY 111N NHYNYA
YN DMNVPIT TINND NI KD N2 (D7) 1A NAPN PINN (1D NO/ND)) NXNIY NAIWN D2 DN
;0N

1Y NIRY DI0TD THNY 11D TIHNNN JPNOPPTL DNIOHN PR Y90 DNVPPTN 90N | .2

5.0 7 :0"2)

.2005 — WOWUNN (MIWNIXPHN MPYI HY2 NPT DI PRNIVN NPNNIA DY NOPITY DNNINI DININ) MIINN NIPN MINIIND DNNNA ,JPNVPPTN NIV INND K
10
RAEORNLS



(71°595 NPON DI Y VPNVPIVTH MY

1993 N 193

SPIDTN TV )IYIT 93 75703 10O PNNY PPNOPITI MDY 1901

1 (2015 W) PUNI YIS

3 IRAIURY V)
.2 WYY YT
4 9939 Y29

MDY IMONNYN TPV PIYY MPTN TV ToNHI THNNI NIPIY D>NVPITN MNWN TN Y T35
TONN2 PRIV (19ND PINNII 1IN NXIN JNA )PNOVPPTN MTYI MDY MIATD - N PrOI) )PNOPITN -2
: (1NN NAPNY DNMNNDY) MPTH THIY

(DMMVPPTN 90N 295 MDD MNY POIND V)

IMANNYN NPV WY WY WY NV MOPYTN DY
MmN MW2 MANNYN | IMONNYN mannwn Mannwn
MaON PNNVPT mwna mwna mwa mwa
TIN) 93n NN N3 a0 1IN Prmmsapryy | PMOPPTH
n»nad

2w 1l
A3 NTYND 12NN NVPPT O 12



(NTN DY Y 4y man nvan )
0905

JMIVIVON NN 10710 | DLW N9
—-Mypwm D90
4/4

IVIVON N 10710 DINIOY 1Y
—-Mypwm D90
3/4

5/10 PO

JIVIVON DT 9710 | 2m»N M
—-Mypym D90
3/4

4/4 10710 NV PRN

3/4 9/10 Yavm T

N ATYN2 IR0 NOPPT O B

N ATYN2 30 NopPT OB M



12712 4/4 4/4 10/10 SNN DN

12/12 4/4 4/4 10/10 XMWY T

,IVILON T 4/4 3/4 10/10 a5 YT
—Mypwm D>
4/4

,IVILON T 10/10 NN NRDPY
—Mypwm D>
4/4

NN 11/12 3/4 9/10 T2 MIN
DY9VONMIVIVON
3/4 —MYpYm

,VIVON NN 9/10 NN )
—Mypwm  DMD>
4/4

NIYNN ORI 955N H7INN YT TIARNN YPOY DI PRYY MINSY TN 11T 1PNVPITN OO MPTH VA

LDNTHY IR YIND ANNTIN ONY MNP DN XD ,1D DIN9ON

12




VNOPITN YR AV 1DDO1 HNMIND STPON 1A NTINN

1993 N9 193

APNVPT Y TIANN P MPTN MY 592 13

60 9y NYW NN JPNVPIT 7P THRNA JI KDY N I NNPN ON 7N MIYY 1IN NYNYA
PN NPN PINN (1193 XH/)19)) RONW NIVN Y2 BIINY,(MIINN PIND (2).KX363 YD NNND O
SNIND YPNOPIT I THIRN 1P XD N2 (DM02)

25995 5N THRNA 1D NPT MY HI2 14

IS 0 90 DY NDIY NN D730 THRNA J1D KD N2 I3 NNMPN ON 7N NMIYY 11 1T NYNYA
M2 (D%5°2) Y9IN NNPN PINN (NI XD/NDI) XONYW NIWN Y32 DYINY ,NIAND PIND (6).8363 PyDI
DRI YOI TINNL O ND

AVIN NNNON D93 ,PIMNOND NN DIYAN IR/ TINNN D723 D) \PNOPPTN 971 1191 12 TINNI

15
2 Imann pind (9121 Yo mxMNY OXNNA 15

MM2NN PINY (T)121 PYDY DXNNI NN — 1IN MIPN Mana

10



L(NND NNND DD TINNT DPPNN NIY 553) YOI NY X

JPNMOPPTN 7P DY AP IR D19I0N

.16
— (YPMVPPTN Y DY 2P NN 97NN P NI NP 1N DONNIWN DN

:DYTTNN P2 TPNNOWHN NAPN P8 | N

16
2 MNAND PIND (121 9YO5 ORNNA NIYVIN NNNDN
P
N9 [

(VPNNDT NYIVPI X 00T 1)

17
SNOVPPTI VYNY ,TINNT N2 NIYN XYNI IN 975395 1193 1N 1P IN NVOW Hya

(NVYOY HYA PN TIRNI) YOIMDTI N [

2NN PINY (1121 PYDY DRNM MR — 1IN PR H7ana e

11



NMNP22N DTN

1993 N 193
- NI MY 1D NI NNPPAN NI 18
N 21PN VYYD Hya N
(NVYYY HYA PR TINNT) YOINDI N [
~ APNOPVTN VY A
\/ ANVYYA TINN YT IN TIRN NVIOYN DY YT HY IN TIRNN T DY POVINN NOPIT 2
~ AP 71T MY INDOWA TIRN IN TINNI NVIOVUN D¥27 IN TIRND 10NN NOPT T
\/ .NVYIVN HYA DY INDIND POV MOPT .
(NVYOY HYA PN TINND) YOIMDTI ND [
MY MPTN VA NI KD AP IR NVDW HY NT DD NP NTYN 12N NPND INYIIPRY N .19
.MN2NN PINY (M)115 PYD NMINIIND DNNNA LYY, NNPYAN DT
12N YV 217 7PN NPT MV INDOPNNY NNPYAN NTYI MW 552 MOLYNN NYIPIY 1PTY YN PIn .20
SNNN NVPIT N NMINAD ONN TANY DMON SN DNIVPIT PN DXNINT 217 IR DTN

12




2 AN NYIITN NNMPPNN K2 1N MW NYOY PIX> - 7)1D) KD N7 DNV ON

N XD IPANN PNAYNN DRI DN IP20N NMININL MNSY NNX NIYWS MPTN MY NNMP NNPIIAN DTN
STOINDN DY OPOYN DI OMNMPOD 1YY, NTYNN 71N DIRY TINRN NIV OIRY) HY

NYPAZ INA ITYIN Y NYINRI DT 7PN ,NTNN 920 NPNY ORYIIPRY A1 NI NI NNPIAN NTY MW Y52
029 IN VDY DY IOIRY THRNN TIID) Y0IWNN NYPN 223D) DTN

IWUPA TINNN YT HY MNTNA DIV JNIN Y2)D NNPXAN NIV NYAPY DX1TON GPINA PN NN MIva
SNIND IMONNY DXTAYY JN1NV NNNN DI PPDY DINMN OMPHD

9PN PAYNN ININ DY INTIAY P> ¥ INYT DX IN2IN (D907 MMNTN NPXNIAS NTNN INA) NNPXAN TN
DN PO NP NTIAY NI DWY DMNI PR ,ANTN MV D901 MNYTY DNY2 1NNV 1OV

13

21

22

23

.24



0909570 NINYTN NYIND NNITPND NNTIAYA (NTYIN - 19N) DM9DIN NINYTN NIPNAY DTN X TPAN

1993 XY

193

TR ARIPY DTN MNYNN NIIYND P20 PRI PPNVPVT YIP NN (D1D>2) Y230 P9 PIY
.DOPDY 1 2 : DNADIN MMTN MRS PNOPTA

YINRD PPINVPPTL DTN TNNID YPNVPITI MXLNNN NN TN P2 HYIDIASNY D17 719010
: DMADIN MNTN

.6 (2015 MVY) NYNI WA MT

1 $IYIYITMT
.3 VOV VI NT
4 DMV M7

.25

PWNVPITA TN TYIND DINVPIPTY BODIN MNYITN NVPV NIAYN TN P2 I19ONY DI 190N
: DAVIN MNTN NYINY

120 (2015 MW PRI WA MT
.10 2V Y1 M7

.8 DVOY VI NT

14




.11 DOMY MT

TINNN DY 0D MNTN T NA,)PNVPPTM DTN MY 52 GNNYN TIRND DY 1PN NIYND NN .26
PIPTN MY MOHIN MNPND DXONONNN
SIMANNVYN NWY PId 71123 XD N7 DINNWA DN
1919 DXVNVNN DININN I PMVN NITH DIDIDY T MPTN NIV D51 INM»PNN NTNI

27

(NI MINYTA NN DTN TN TYIN) NVIZYN NND XD 71>72N 190N N
A
(NP2 NTYY 2N NNND PIYD) MIANN PIND (-1 (2)115 YO DYIAPN OONINM 52 N2 INOPNN
INNN NVPIT NN DTN VY 2
.DMHYN YNYA DNVPIT MIIN 1N DNVPIT MMIIN DD 1
5ya NN OMPN YNYAN DNLVPPTNN TAXR MNIYY DMODD MMT PN XIPY NN 1IN DO )
DD THPNNIVN NN

15




.DNNY Y NINNN NI DTYND 1IN B

YNYA DMIVPIPT PN DXNONN Y T152) 132N 27 PN NTYNT MOVYNN NPAPDY T2 >IN 1IN
NINAS TAN MNKN NVPIT DN OMHYN 3

(2W29/°N97P1) NIT DR DN PIY 1T NYRY S MIVHN YDY0N N1 IN THN Y20 71D XY )N DONIWN ON
: DYPNN NOYOININD 121 NNHND ININD DIPNN N

16




910N DTN

2P INNVOYN bya N

(N5 Hya PR TIRNI) PV NS [

191 RY g
TN TYINI) T N2 D DPNPNN DNVPIPTM OMIN NYHYY MINAD ,MPTH THVI NI DTN .28
Ny
()T DPPNN ND) VI KD ]
9272 ©X9H5) MIINN MIPNY DXNNA 0PN NN YA DININ NI 112N U5 HY DNPOYN DNNND ININ .29
.2000-07WNN ,(NNN NVPITI MR DI
- NPT MY I XY 1NN NN .30

APNOPPTN Y | A

17




ANVOIYA TINN T IN TINNL NVIOYN DY T DY IN TIRNN > DY POYINN MOPIT P

VAP THT DOMPYINDLYI TIRN IN TINNL NVIOWN HYI7 IX TIRND 1NN NOPPT N

NVYYN HYI HY INDIND WPV NVPT n

(NVY5Y Sya PR THIRNI) oM NS [

31
DN M0 NTYIN 7P YaAP ON VLYNY DIMNNN NTYI MDY MPTN NIV IND) NI 1P IX NVDY Hya
LDNDN XY MIND OWY WA

IN NPOY MRS (N(1)(12)272-1 (3)()272 ,(0)N267 DIDOYD 29D DMOND VDY WY KD )PINVPIPT DIINN NN .32

5557 NYOPONN YW NIMTINN MO 213N NN
— DI 7119) KD 7N DIMIVN O
S MNNI NIYVIRY NPOYN DD

:MNTN MY DMINOI VIV NYY) 102 DIY9N 1901

18




D9 IpPan

1993 N 193

STOIINDA 29391 AP9N DY INININD TININN NXIN TINNN D7D N YPNVPIT D

-MPTN MY NTIAYN NIDON DX IIWIN NNP2IN DTN IR PNOVPIPTN 7P

:MMNTN MY D291 IP2NN POY DN NNPAAN IRV IVND qON]

,192NN MDY TIXDNID NPN NN DN 000N DTN MY DORYD 1NN 1YY 7NN NNPPAN INWUD)
,NTI2Y2 MNPV ,D%2IDH DXIINY N0 MDN,MPTN MV YW TPMNND NYPYN IN DY HY NIRPDY
TP1I9N NNIPAY TPV 27 NTIAY NN N2I2D DMNDD TP NIMY ,0MMOYM WIIN TIVHD AN MIPON TIvH
LONIY DINTLY [, NXIAPN NVH I NIAPN AN DID WY MNPXAN .DNNPXAN MDD DWW APYN 1N

97921 7171973 ,71P0YY,1N370,1PDI9 NHNTI LIV MNY MITHI NIND NP DINIVLY) DI DINIVY

YW 7,000 : MPTH MW TIRNI 9N 1PN NPOYN 9PN

2192397 AP2NN IRNNNA (PNVPIITI IR NNP2AN NTYIN) PT O»PNN NHNTN MVA

19

.33

.34

.35



DY DPMNN OPPOY DAIYP DMPN ION 1Y IYOH M IN AP NPT NANIP ,PIRNT PIY S 1IN MO0N I7ann
.DNVIYY DITIND N INIP N2 NIV DY, TIRNN

.36

173y YHYa DY NINPOY

1993 N

NED

DVIOITMPYIT NN IN TIRNN OT-DY POYIN PN (INVLIYYIY NN MDY 1P IN NVOWN Hya
— PIY (2IPIOMPY T I IN TIANNN YT DY POIN 1P IN VYWD DY IP) 71123 XY 1N DONIWN DN

MYNYNN IR DNVIHYIY MNAN M) TIRNN YT-DY DIPOMNNN (NVIYYN DY M) DXNIPN 190N -
.1: (0w mHan

P72 DNAPN DIONNIND YT YIWIR NN DIIN OV IN/A NPOYN Y000 DN -
P X
~No [

(MRNNVN N¥IVNI X YIDY W)

. (NVYW YY1 PR TINNL) VM N [

.37

20




\/ .38

(AN IN TAN DINNL) TIRNN DY IMDNWH DINNA DD DOPOY PR NVIIWN HYIAD , TINRNN NYT 200D
12 NVOOYN HYY PIANNN P2 MMV OINNY TTON YAP) DNRD PINY — /NI XD 7 N7 DINDIVN DN

» O
N O
(NYIYNXNNN N¥IVNI X JHOY V)

(NVYSW Sya PR TIANNI) PV &Y [

XNV N30T /9199 : 0990310 MMTN NN NTNN 9779 DN UNDMD 9774 1 NPOAN NI 97790 DINIVY NI :)NVPITN 979

21



N N90)

7Y N'™190 DIgan NIMAYPOX 1ATA NIT
1910 Y1 '9020 nIrTN



03 684 8000 |19%70 I'i7"'N \NnIo

03 684 8444 n“rmopo KPMG nim'7mnn 71an
www.kpmg.co.il 0V1NVI'R 609 WIT XN ,17 NY2IRN 2N

61006 aax n

72211 127y 9N OIXNVY NNAN 7¥ NI *2p2% DNPaAND [1AYNA 'RIN NIT
190D NI'T 7Y NN AYA 'ADY Y MR 11T
1970-7"wnn ,(0"TmI 0" NOIPN NINIT) 7Y NN DREna (2) 29 glvo? nxnaa

oI'7 ("nhann" TN |70%) N NN n"ya 9N 0IKIVY 7Y 'D0D NIFT 7V NN NPA AT NP
ManNn 7w D7NINN1 INI0PYTA .AKAN NP0'9] 110INd 1A AR Mipza o1 2015 nanyTa 31
N'N1I9 NP2 AT 7Y NIMRORN IR DNDWNTI 'D0D NIFT 7V NM'VPZON N9 NP2 DI'P? D'RINN
2V ' N2 Ao YT DN R0 ONIMNKR .20 IRNY Moipnn N7 N9IXNN 90 NIFT 7y

Jampa lw 002NN NN2aNN 7W '90d NIIrT

awn 'xN ndw? 7w 104 naipa PR oRNNQ 1271 T 7Y NI 1900 NI 7Y 1o npa Ao
(1) :01'n N7 020N L("104 D [EN" 707) "190d NPT Y N'N1D NYra A ' M kv
NIDWN U NI NNl 'e0d NIFT 7Y 110N NdYWN 17NN Y NNpa NIdY L jnRn hnd NN
2V wama won 17N v nnpa (3) ;NiMnwn NXRXYIN 72V waTa nnonn )'7n W nnpa (2) v
Mjpzan oY 707 0P TN AR ) NN TN Y wam Rmn 'nn (4) n'psob(nnlm'wnn

.("onpnann

NY¥271 MIERAN DX DN7 DN'RN WAT AT [N 9-7v 104 Mg [pn'? okNN DN DR DY
[DINQ N7 N7X N2 "2 DX [INV 7W N0 TN A'Wn?1 DNPIANN NPAN 2D DX NINT? nnona
17 AT L1900 NIFT 7Y N1M19 Mza 2% N1an Mawn 077D M2 .DIMInnn Ni‘nan 751 1'ojpox
7w >N NN P1L,DNRIANND NPAN 2D DIINA AY7IN DNYRY (12'0N N2V ,0NRIANN Npan
17 DNIX Q27 ,1IMIPA . WINY [12'0N 7Y 001NN NNj72 2D DNIX 7Y 71y9Nn1 [11ONN NI'OPON
12277 1 NON"NN MNP .NIQ'017 DXNN DO'XINID NAYNY 078D DNNX 0701 YIXA DA 0770 ,mMja
72'9'71 ,'902N NIFTN DY WA D'NINAN 070NN 79D 7y N'nio mnpan 71an? ,0Mpiann npan
['2 DIFTTA NYOWANZ NONMN X7 DN LD 11D .TA%72 DIZIANN N1PaN a7 NON'™A NYT NN
NIYSWN QYN NIXAN MR DNYT NN ,)9'971 DMZian DI'RY N7XRD 27 DN Njpan am)

S7'W7 AININNN WWEN2 INYT NN NIX] 0'02 NP90N NNMIZAY DNIA0 DX .N7RD NIMWON

NI7A%7 IX Y7 X7 D"iwy 0191 NDINA 01,7902 '900 NIFT 7Y N'N'19 Nza ,Niam Nizaan 7wa

[12'07 N9IUN 'NWT7D NN NIM'UPOX NN 0'01 7V TNYN a7 NRZoN NPon ,[2 nd NN Nax¥n

NINWN 07010 IX NINYTNN 7W DIFPN DTNV IR NIQ'01 DYII'Y 7721 NIN'RNN 'M727 N1dI9NN nnpnu;
.

1 1 1 ) 1 1 1 y 1 1 1 y
31 pI'7 ppIANN NPan Y DX NIMINAN NIRNAN 700 ,'0POK DI NNt ANann L RNYT?
.2015 Nanxm

31 om™ mann 7w DrTNIRAN D000 NINITA NX ,7RIWRA 0'721PNn M2 1PNY7 DRNNA ,DA D072
17w il 2015 nanyTa 31 o nntnonw n9ipna pwn wiwn nnr 7271 2014-1 2015 CanyTa
NINIT 2V1 NI 7V 002NN 0"'90D NINIT DNIX 72V Naon ' nyT nin 79,2015 oana 20 nim

.DMNKRN DNPANN AYNN 'RN

['/?"'N nIo

[1AwnN 'XN

2016 00na 20



NIFN '97 17'an 701 '9030 NIFTA 7V N'NN'A9N ANFZAN NIMA'VFZON 1T MY NIT
()29

M2 7¢ NNMPNNENNYIPE? N'RINK ,N"Y2 92 0IXIVY 7Y INIVPTN NIR'DY N7ninNn
CTARND 1720 701'9000 NPT 2V NNIKI N9

:0N N7010N Nan ,nT Myt

7' 7nm L'07 M

2% 70 nwn ,nyT 12 X1

nX¥17n 7w 0'90d 7"110 Y1179 "nY

NN2NN D™ 'YK '0OWN YYIME DA 7"1n0 NN i
WX AXwN7 121 7"1mo amw 70 nnin

orwivo

T N1DIN WK, TARN DNMPD D701 DDA D770 1720 791'9000 DMt 72V N'n1s N
YXINW M T IR ,DNIR'S NNN IX D'900N DINNA NI DN "wnn XWi 770 7nmn

W N0 NTM 907 YN WK, TARNN [INI0T NIR'OY ,0NINKD D'T'RONN DX 7V191
yTm D N'anTI LT NIKIINY DXNNA DINTA N22071'9000 NPT NN oN'nNna Inva
NITAI DJI0N ,TAIYN ,§O0K1 |'TN NIXIIN 'S 7V DON9N XKINY NINITA NI7A7 WIT TARNNY
.J'T2 D'WIEN NIDNNAI TviNA

MI727 UIT TARNNY YT'A D N'0ANT7 NDINY D*7011 NP ,IRYA 12,1770 1150 N1jpzan
DINNA NI DIAN NWNN XKWIRTZE 7790 70N N7, TaRNN N'7NINYT 1aving 1axa ,msd
TVIN NIV7NN NYAR TWOKR? *TO NRTI,DNMKN DT'RPONN NN V191 y¥anw M7 IX 0'90dN
19000 NIFTN 72V ' NI72 ,n7W NIMann Ni7aann 7w 17490 nwnT? oN'Nina ,0'RNNN
IX YIN'N NINITA YT'N NONYN IX N'YOIN NAXNY 07NIN [INVA 7907 NTVIM NI'R 1730 Wi
.N7ann

V1 '9050 NIFTN 7Y N'MI5N NIZAN 7Y NDWNL NRPTA NYX L[N0 NR'9A L,N7NINN
17'201 '9000 NIFTN 7V NM1I9N NIPAN NIM'OPOKR NOWN .NTY NIM'YPORNI TARNA 1720
09D IMNI0PATN N2 N7NINN NyXIY

,0D'7NNN NdYN7 17121 '900N NIFTA DNIYEZN D1ID'0 001N 71N '9% 01I3'0 NdWN N
.N2YNY7 NIr0NI7N NIZOYN NIT'N NYAR7 I

NIFTN '9'W01 NTPZANN NNANN N7N1N ,TARNA 17'a01 NIFTA 113'0 X NN1AN 7V 002NN
[15NN DX NIN2I N'MINA NIYVYT INIFNNRA DTNR0 DN DY DIYY QWK 171 '0MID1 'D0dN
78 D1D'07 IR NIYN 0NN 070101 NNPAN 7w N71IY9NN NI'OPONNI

2V1 '900N NIFTAN 7V NINER NIMI9N NNPANE D'Z0YN DDYNNN ITYIN 77NN 0'0a 7y
AN

JIMOPON [NY NIM'R IX? NN IYXA L NIM0POX PN NTANY NNRANY XTI7 N 2y
IDIWINY N'M1I9N NN ann

;(Entity Level Controls) iaaxkn nnia nnjpa

;NINITN N0 DMWY 70N 72V NN

;(ITGC) yTnn ndwn 2y niY'D nna

NNN NN2NN WX DDY0NN 17271 '9000 NIFT? TINA D*NINNA DD'70N 72V NN
TIRXIN 7V WATA ,NNDAN 70N (020 17'2%1'9000 NIFT? TIRN D'NINND DNIX
NN 70N1:0R907 D'MI7YUNN 7Y WAT WO 70N NIRY AR 11N NNnvnn
NINnNEmT ™M Y wam

P

[0 L'WY 019D [INIVPAYTN NIP'9A N7NINN NYXAY NIA'OPZORN NN 7V 001NN
31 017 TaxN2 17N W1 'D0d5N NIFTR 7V N'MMI9N NYPAN D ,N1PoN7 Ivan TARNN N7nni
Jpor X 2015 nanyTa



(1 }(7)29 nagn '©%7 175 7nIn nanxa (X) : 0™70In DNNXN

D'™7nIn NnXn
% Ynan nanxn
21D NN L'07 A AN

2015 mwYh (TaRNN — [707) n"ya oNa 0IXNVY W MOIENN NITA DX 'Mana (1)
(N = [70Y)

AXN DN 0N X271 N'NINN NTAY 7Y 121 X7 a¥n 72 071D DI'R NINTA MY oY (2)
DNIX 17721 [NAY NI2'0IN INYT ,0N2A 1771w D'AYNNY TD YININ NNINN NTay v
;NINITA NOIPN7 ON'NNA D'YLN I'N' K7 ,01xN

,NNIN] [9IXQ 0'OPWN NINITA 71720 INKX '900 YyTNI 0"90dN NINITA Ny T 97 (3)
27U DINITAN '"MNTNI NI7IY9N NIXXIN ,'90DN A¥NN DX ,NIFNINAN NR'NAN 7o
;NINITA D'ON"NN DNYRY NISIPNTZI DDNINNT TARNN

NINTAENIRAN DITYHTINI0PT? ,TARNN 7W pann awnn nkN? M9 (4)
2V N'N190 NNjpaN 127 AN NDTYN MDY 7Y 002NN, TARNN 7W DY90ON
21730 71 9000 NIt

NN7Y9N1 IN NNYIPA NIFMINAN NIY2INNE D' NIvAwAN 0170 72 X (X)
V'OUN7 110 9182 07170 170 79119000 NIFTR 7V N'N1on Npan v
[9INQ '©0D YT 7V NIT? IX D207 ,TAV7 ,qI0K7 TARNN 7w M7 7¥ Ny
DXNNA 0"90dN NINITN NI '902N NIFTA NIRAHNA 790 7'0n7 N W'y
=21 ;TN NIRAING

m IR 7700 70N 211yn nAY  NMINN NIRY A N 12 ,nman ‘D ()
N7 MIynun TPON 0N7 Y'Y DNNXR D'TAIY DRIYA K YN 17 9190Y
21720 701 19000 NI 7V NN

TANNQ DINX DY TN' IX TA7 9K (D)

NNN D771 NNPA 7W DNIFgl DNYAR 'NXT IR 0701 N7 A (K)
NN2aN N7, TARN? oN"Nnn MINN YTNY N'02N7 D TvIMmMN ,'Niz's
—y"wunn ,(0"N1Y 0"90 NINIT) 7Y NN NNPNA NITAND 17U NITNIRA
77nN2 VY92 ,NITNINAN NNANAI TARNA DNX T 2V YT Xam ,2010
-]21;NINITN 7 N1dNN NOIZN

NNN 0771 NN Y DNIfgl DNY2AR MXTI IR ,0™70 NNpa Myap ()
NINITN NI '9020 NIFTN NN DX 1120 [9IKA N'UANYT D' TYIMN ,'NIE'D
;0'721M NIKIAWN 7707 DRNNA N7 L' TN NIKTINYG DXNN2 DY9000N

L1720 201 19000 NIFTA 7W M 9N NN YW NIMOPORN DX MWD (2)
NN 7U NIMOPONRN a7 N7NINNT [INI0ITA NIRZON DX AT NITA 'MaxI
JINITA TN 1K NM1on

T2 '9 7 ,ANK DTR 72 NIMNNRND I NIMNRNI VN7 71 77 2mxa 'R

7" ,r0'7 M 2016 ,00na 20



(2 )(7)29 nagn ' 0'905n DINNA INIFA 122N NIWNA XWX NN ()

D'™7nIn NnXn
D'050 DINNA NI 12N NYNN XWX NNNXN
1D YN LYNI7o NY X

n"ya 921 0INVY 7 NINITA 71790 INK '900 YyTNI 0"90dN NINITA NX 'Mana (1)
(M — 70%) 2015 mwy (Tarnn — 707)

ax¥n 75 0'7'71> DI'R NINITA 71790 AINKRN '900N YT'ANI D*90dN NINITA YT 97 (2)
D'AXNNY TD YININ N'NINA AT 7w 2¥n DN 10N X7 NMINN Ty ¥ 121 X7
N9IPN? ON"NNA D'YUN I'N' X7 ,0¥N DNIX 17721 [D2AW NIA'0IN X7 ,0N 17'701W
;NINITN

,NNIN] [9IXQ 0'OPWN NINITA 71720 INK '902 YyTNI 0"90dN NINITA Ny T 97 (3)
7¢ DINITAN "ML NI7IYON NIXXIN ,'90DN A¥XNN DX ,NIFNINAN NIR'NAN 7o
;NINITN D'ON"NN DNY7RY NIDIPNYTI DDIXNYT TARNN

NINTAENIEAN DITVHTINI0PT? ,TARNN 7W pann avnn nkN? M2 (4)
2V N'N190 NNjpaN A7 AN NDTYN MDY 7Y 002NN, TARNN 7w D'90ON
21730 7p1 9000 NIt

NN7VU5N2 IN NNV NIFNINNAN DIY2INNTE D" NIVAYAN D70 7D DX (K)
NINIT? DON"™NN X'NY 720 1720 7W1 '9000 NIFTA 7V 1M1 N1jpan v
NY17 Y'own 110 91X 021750 ,NINTA 71700 ANRN '900N YTN71 079000
0 W'Y [9IN] '900 VTN 7V NIIT? IX DD07 ,TAV7 ,910K7 TAXNN 7w M7 7V
TNIXIINT OXNN2 09000 NINITA NI2NI1 '90dN NIFTA NINNA 790 7'0nY
-1

m IX 7750 7NN 211vn NV ,N'MINN NIRY A NMInn 1NN 7 ()
Nj722 MIynun TPON DN7 Y'Y DONKR DTAIY DRIYA IR YN 17 9190Y
21720 701 19000 NI 7V NN

TANNQ DINX DY TN' IX TA7 9K (D)

NNN 07N NNPA 7w DNl DNYRAR MRT IR ,0%70 NP Myap (X)
NN2aN N7, TARN? oN"Nnn MINN YTNY N'0an7 0 TvImn ,'Niz's
—y"wnn ,(0"Mw 090> NINIT) 1Y NN" NRPNA [NITAND 17W NITNIRN
X2 ,NINITA 71790 ANX '90> Y171 09050 NINIT? "0 Xinw 725 ,2010
N1DNN NOIZN 170NN U192 ,NITNIXAN NINANAI TARNA DNX T 72V MyrTY
=21 NN v

NNN 0771 NNPA 7W DniFgl DNY2R 'MXRT IR ,0%701 NP Nyvap ()
NINITA NIdAI 'D00N NHFTA NIANA NX 120 [9IXA N'0ANYT7 DTVIMN ,DNIR'D
;0'721M NIKAAWN 7707 DRNNA N7 L' TN NIKAINYG DXNN2 DY9000N

L1720 791 '900N NIHFTR 7V N'N9N NPaN 7W NIM'0PORN DX MWD (1)
TVINT NINITA 71700 WNKN '9000 YyTN71 DU'900N NINT? NoN"Nn X'y 72)
N7N1NN1 IMIVPAYTA 197 INQIN MK MDD Qa7 "NiRpon ;NN

.NT NITA nR7Ivni

T2 '9 7 ,ANK DR 72 NIMNNND IXK MIMNRA YNA7 7D 7' 1mNa 'R

D'90> 7"2110 ,yN179 NY 2016 ,00na 20



n7172 "1an NINIT Iy
nnpnY 44 qapn oy
1970 - 7"wnn 7y nm




Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and
for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014 and independent auditors’ report on
consolidated financial statements

KPDS 137613



Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and

for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

Content

Independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements 3
Consolidated statements of financial position 5
Consolidated statements of income 6
Consolidated statements of comprehensive income 7
Consolidated statements of changes in equity 8
Consolidated statements of cash flows 9
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 10



To Directors and Shareholders of
Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.
Fortaleza - CE

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Trés Coragdes
Alimentos S.A. and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as of 31 December 2015, and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audits in accordance with international and Brazilian auditing
standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material statements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A. as of 31
December 2015, and its financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then
ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Fortaleza, 4 March 2016
KPMG Auditores Independentes

CRC 2SP014428/0-6

Jodo Alberto da Silva Neto
Accountant CRC RS-048980/0-0 T-CE



Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated statements of financial position as of 31 December 2015 and 2014

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Assets Note 2015 2014 Liabilities
Current Current
Cash and cash equivalents 6 159.996 87.775 Short term loans
Deposits 7 3.478 4.529 Trade payables
Trade receivables 8 304.652 287.513 Income tax payables
Inventories 9 277.283 236.803 Employees and other payroll related liabilities
Recoverable taxes 10 18.813 22.318 Proposed dividends
Income tax receivable 6.594 5.215 Payable taxes
Other current assets 11 14.117 14.690 Other current liabilities
784.933 658.843
Non-current Non-current
Judicial deposits 20 15.404 14.390 Long term loans
Other non-current assets 11 10.135 4215 Other non-current liabilities
Deferred tax assets 21 23.324 17.149 Proposed dividends
Fixed assets 13 231.134 211.218 Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assets 14 195.219 192.136 Provision for legal proceedings
475.216 439.108
Equity

Share capital
Translation reserve
Retained earnings

1.260.149 1.097.951

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note

15
16

17
22d
18
19

15
19
22d
21
20

22.a
22.b
22.e

2015 2014
194.222 281.034
101.180 78.991

1.056 1.081
40.481 39.886
100.001 69.096
16.371 16.139
23.239 27.828
476.550 514.055
184.567 81.820
- 3.023

34.548 -
11.424 16.288
20.688 17.308
251.227 118.439
272.370 271.669
(105.500) (68.574)
365.502 262.362
532.372 465.457
1.260.149 1.097.951




Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A.
Consolidated statements of income

Years ended 31 December 2015 e 2014

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Note 2015 2014
(Reclassified)
Revenue 23 2.540.123 2.352.499
Cost of sales 24 (1.800.565) (1.638.231)
Gross profit 739.558 714.268
Selling and marketing expenses 25 (437.813) (431.387)
General and administrative expenses 26 (82.127) (67.041)
Other income (expenses), net (1.007) (380)
Operating profit 218.611 215.460
Finance income 27 8.320 7.124
Finance expenses 27 (40.896) (22.682)
Profit before income tax 186.035 199.902
Income tax expenses 21 (14.015) (17.789)
Profit for the year 172.020 182.113

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Trés Coracoes Alimentos S.A.
Consolidated statements of comprehensive income

Years ended 31 December 2015 e 2014

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Note 2015 2014

Profit for the year 172.020 182.113
Foreign currency translation differences 22.b (36.926) (18.186)
Comprehensive income for the year 135.094 163.927

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated statements of changes in equity

Years ended 31 December 2015 e 2014

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Balance as of 31 December 2013
Dividends distributed relative to 2013
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation differences

Total other comprehensive loss:

Internal equity changes
State VAT and Federal tax incentives

Profit destination:
Legal reserve

Dividends proposed

Reserve for profit to be distributed

Balance as of 31 December 2014
Dividends distributed relative to 2014
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation differences

Total other comprehensive loss:

Internal equity changes
Capitalization of tax incentive

State VAT and Federal tax incentives

Profit destination:
Legal reserve

Dividends proposed

Reserve for profit to be distributed

Balance as of 31 December 2015

Retained earnings

Share Legal Tax Profit to Translation Accumulated

capital reserve incentives distribute adjustments Dividends profit Total
271.669 14.862 75.346 61.928 (50.388) - - 373.417
- - - (2.791) - - - (2.791)

- - - - - - 182.113 182.113
- - - - (18.186) - - (18.186)

- - - - (18.186) - 182.113 163.927

- - 40.321 - - - (40.321) -

- 9.164 - - - - (9.164) -
- - - - - - (69.096) (69.096)

- - - 63.532 - - (63.532) -
- 9.164 40.321 63.532 - - (182.113) (69.096)
271.669 24.026 115.667 122.669 (68.574) - - 465.457
- - - (2.726) - - - (2.726)

- - - - - - 172.020 172.020
- - - - (36.926) - - (36.926)

- - - - (36.926) - 172.020 135.094

701 - (701) - - - - -

- - 42.816 - - - (42.816) -

- 8.690 - - - - (8.690) -
- - - - - - (65.453) (65.453)

- - - 55.061 - - (55.061) -
701 8.690 42.115 55.061 - - (172.020) (65.453)
272.370 32.716 157.782 175.004 (105.500) - - 532.372

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Trés Coracgoes Alimentos S.A.
Consolidated statements of cash flows

Years ended 31 December 2015 e 2014
(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)
2015 2014

(Reclassified)
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 172.020 182.113

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 25.962 21.333
Provision for legal proceedings 3.380 2.217
Other expenses, net 1.007 380
Financing expenses, net 32.576 15.558
Income tax expenses 14.015 17.789
Interest paid, net (15.952) (13.296)
Income tax paid (26.458) (28.989)
206.550 197.105

Change in:

Trade receivables (4.921) (27.553)
Inventories (41.740) (22.206)
Recoverable and payable taxes, net 3.727 6.777
Derivatives, net - (10.998)
Judicial deposits (1.014) 2.668
Trade payables 27.325 21.788
Employees and other payroll related liabilities 588 8.383
Other current and non-current assets and liabilities (12.283) 19
Net cash flows provided by operating activities 178.232 175.983

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in deposits 1.796 17.141
Payment for acquisition of operations (1.980) (26.703)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 5.647 2.562
Acquisition of fixed assets (44.029) (49.907)
Investments in intangible assets (6.151) (5.220)
Long-term loans to related parties - 379
Net cash flows used in investing activities (44.717) (61.748)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from loans 314.957 513.693
Repayment of loans (373.525) (512.391)
Dividend paid (2.726) (64.714)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (61.294) (63.412)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 72.221 50.823

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of year 87.775 36.952
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of year 159.996 87.775
72.221 50.823

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and

for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

General information

Trés Coracgdes Alimentos S.A. and its controlled entities are an industrial and commercial group
of companies, which operates in Brazil, in producing and selling branded coffee products,
multibeverage single portion capsules and machines, powdered juices, chocolate drinks and corn
meal products. The Group is also active in green coffee exports and operation of cafeterias.

The Company controls the entities Cafeterias Trés Coracdes Ltda., 3Caffi Industria e Comércio
de Cépsulas S.A. and Café Trés Coragdes S.A., which controls the entities 3Corac¢oes Sul
Comércio Atacadista de Produtos Alimenticios Ltda. (former Polo Participac¢fes Ltda.) and
Principal Comércio e Industria de Café Ltda., all together referred to as “the Group”.

The Company is located at Rua Santa Clara, 100, Parque Santa Clara, Eusébio, Ceard, Brazil.

The Group is currently the largest group in roasted and ground coffee business in Brazil, and
owns the coffee and other food brands of Santa Clara, Kimimo, Trés Coracdes, Pimpinela,
Principal, Fino Gréo, Café Doutor, Café Opcdo, Café Divindpolis, Café Geronymo, Estrada
Real, Café Leticia, Itamaraty, Londrina, Claralate, Dona Clara, Claramil, Frisco, Tornado and
Tres.

The Group’s industrial facilities are located in the states of Ceara, Rio Grande do Norte, Minas
Gerais and Rio de Janeiro, and its distribution centers are located in all states of Brazil. In
addition to that, the Group owns green coffee processing plants in the states of Minas Gerais and
Bahia. Part of the facilities used by the Group is leased from one of its related parties, Trés
Corac0es Imdveis Armazéns Gerais e Servigos Ltda., which is not consolidated in this report,
since it is not part of the Group structure presented below. Trés Corac¢fes Imdveis Armazéns
Gerais e Servicos Ltda. is owned by Sdo Miguel Holding e Investimentos S.A. (50%) and
Strauss Coffee B.V. (50%).
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Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and

for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

In December 2014 the controlled entity Café Trés CoracGes S.A. acquired the entity Polo
Participagdes Ltda. and in December 2015 the Company acquired the entity now constituted as
Cafeterias Trés Coragdes Ltda. (Note 2). As of 31 December 2015, the Group had the following
structure:

Strauss S&o Miguel
Coffee B.V. Fundo
50% Trés Corag0es 50%
Alimentos S.A.
99.9% | 99%
J 99.9%\/ \
Café Trés Cafeterias Trés 3Caffi
Coracles S.A. Coragdes Ltda. Industria e
Comércio de
Cépsulas S.A.
99.9% 99.9%
Principal Ind. 3Coracdes Sul Comércio
e Com. Ltda. Atacadista de Produtos
Alimenticios Ltda.

Business combination

3Coracdes Sul Comércio Atacadista de Produtos Alimenticios Ltda.

In December 2014, the controlled entity Café Trés CoracGes S.A. obtained control over the
entity 3Coragdes Sul Comércio Atacadista de Produtos Alimenticios Ltda. (“3Coragdes Sul”,
former Polo Participagdes), through the purchase of 99.9% of its shares from third parties.

The entity purchased owns the brands Itamaraty and Londrina, amongst others, and its purchase

will allow the Group to increase its market share, mainly of roasted and ground coffee in South
of Brazil.

Consideration transferred
The acquisition value was R$ 31,631, as follows:

R$ 26,703 paid in December 2014;
R$ 1,928 paid in March 2015, with interest; and
R$ 3,000 to be paid in December 2016, with interest.

The amount to be paid, including interests, is presented as other liabilities (Note 19).
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Consolidated financial statements as of and

for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

Assets transferred and liabilities incurred

There were no liabilities incurred in the business combination and in the opinion of the
Company’s legal advisers there were also no contingent liabilities. All identifiable assets
transferred, already including independent fair value assessment of the purchase price
allocation, are listed below:

Before After
independent Fair value independent
valuation adjusment valuation
Note R$
Fixed assets:
Machinery and equipment 13 751 - 751
Intangible assets:
Brands and trademarks 14 701 1,099 1,800
List of customers 14 - 5,600 5,600
Net identifiable assets 1452 6,699 8,151

Brands and trademarks fair value was assessed based on Relief from Royalty method, according
to which the amount allocated is calculated using a royalty percentage for companies with
similar activities applied to the expected net revenue.

List of customers fair value was calculated based on Multi-period Excess Earning method,
according to which the amount allocated is a result of the estimated cash flows from the list of
existing customers at the acquisition date.

Goodwill
Before After
independent Fair value independent
valuation adjusment valuation
R$

Acquisition cost:
Consideration transferred, paid or to be paid 31,631 - 31,631
Net identifiable assets (1,452) (6,699) (8,151)
Goodwill (Note 13) 30,179 (6,699) 23,480

Cafeterias Trés Corac0es Ltda.

In December 2015, the Company obtained control over the entity Cafeterias Trés Coracdes
Ltda. (“Cafeteria”, former Cafeterias Lima Ltda. - ME), through the purchase of 99.9% of its
shares from third parties.
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Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and

for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

The entity purchased owns two cafeterias in Northeast of Brazil.

Consideration transferred

The acquisition value was R$ 100, to be paid in February 2016. After the acquisition, still in
December 2015, the Company further increased its equity investment, captalizing prior
advances already paid to the Cafeteria, in the amount of R$ 1,187.

The amount to be paid is presented as other liabilities (Note 19).

Assets transferred and liabilities incurred
All identifiable assets transferred and liabilities assumed, are listed below:

Note R$

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 10

Accounts receivable 21

Inventories 38

Other current assets 2
Fixed assets:

Furnishing and other equipment 13 68
Current liabilities:

Employees and other payroll related liabilities @)

Payable taxes (10)

Other current liabilities (29)
Net identifiable assets 93

There is no fair value assessment for the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed, once the
acquisition involves related parties businesses.

Goodwill
R$
Acquisition cost
Consideration transferred, including capitalization of prior advance payments of R$ 1,187 1,287
Net identifiable assets (93)
Goodwill (Note 14) 1,194

Considering the history of past losses accumulated by the Cafeteria, all Goodwill identified as a
result of the acquisition was provisioned and charged to the statement of income as other expenses.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB).
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Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and

for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements were approved by management for issuance on 4 March
2016.

Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the historical cost, except
for derivative financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss.

For further information regarding the measurement of these assets and liabilities, see Note 5
regarding significant accounting policies.

Functional currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”), which,
in accordance with 1AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - is the Brazilian
Real (R$), except for the export business of green coffee, of which the functional currency is the
United States Dollar. The Group presents its financial statements in Brazilian Real, which is the
presentation currency.

Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or both in the period of the revision and in future periods, if the revision
affects both the current and future periods.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, significant judgments made by
management in applying the Group’s accounting policies and the key sources of estimation
uncertainty were the same as those applied to the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of

resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is included in the following notes:

Note 8 - Provision for doubtful accounts;
Note 13 - Usefull life of fixed asset items;

Note 14 - impairment test: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, including the
recoverability of development costs;

Note 20 - recognition and measurement of provisions for legal proceedings: key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.
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for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

Note 21 - recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against which
tax loss carryforwards can be used,;

Note 28 - Financial instrument measurements;
Measurement of fair values

Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the
methods described in Note 28. Where applicable, further information about the assumptions
made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

Derivatives

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their quoted market price, if available.
If a quoted market price is not available, then fair value is estimated by discounting the
difference between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the residual
maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds).

For further information regarding the fair value hierarchy, see Note 28 on financial instruments.

Reclassification

Reclassification of 2014 exchange rate variation gains and losses
Exchange rate variations gains and losses were presented separately in the 2014 statements of
income according to their nature, as finance income and finance expenses, respectively.

When preparing these 2015 consolidated financial statements, Management decided to present
exchange rate variation in its net position, as finance income if positive or finance expense if
negative. Management understands that the net presentation is more understandable and relevant
for the users of financial information. The reclassification effect in the statements of income of
2014 is presented below:

Originally Exchange rate
presented variation Reclassified
2014 reclassification 2014
Finance income 75,859 (68,735) 7,124
Finance expenses (91,417) 68,735 (22,682)
Finance expenses, net (15,558) - (15,558)

Reclassification of fixed assets acquired in 2014 through loans and borrowings
Fixed assets purchased through loans and borrowings were presented in the 2014 financial
statements as a cash outflow in the cash flow from investment activities, while a cash inflow
was presented as cash flow from financing activities, following the new loan or borrowing
contracted.

15



(i)

Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and

for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

When preparing these 2015 consolidated financial statements, Management decided to treat
these acquisitions as non-cash activities, once the funds rased with the loan or borrowing are
directly transferred by the banks to the supplier. The reclassification effect in the statement of
cash flows of 2014 is presented below:

Fixed assets

purchased through
Originally loans and
presented borrowings Reclassified
2014 reclassification 2014
Cash flows from investing activities
Change in deposits 17,141 - 17,141
Payment for acquisition of operations (26,703) - (26,703)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 2,562 - 2,562
Acquisitions of fixed assets (56,235) 6,328 (49,907)
Investments in intangible assets (5,220) - (5,220)
Long-term loans to related parties 379 - 379
Net cash flows used in investing activities (68,076) 6,328 (61,748)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans 524,727 (11,034) 513,693
Repayment of loans (517,097) 4,706 (512,391)
Dividend paid (64,714) - (64,714
Net cash flows used in financing activities (57,084) (6,328) (63,412)

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently within the Group
entities.

Basis of consolidation

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method - i.e. when control is
transferred to the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into
consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
consideration transferred does not include (this means it is net of) amounts related to the settlement
of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with
IAS 39 either in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognized in profit
or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Transactions costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that
the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when
necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Group.

Loss of control

When applicable, upon the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the
subsidiary.

In case of loss of control, the retained interest would be accounted for based on the level of
influence retained by the Company in the relevant entity.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
intra-Group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency of the Group
according to the exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction. Exchange rate differences
arising upon the settlement of monetary items or upon reporting monetary items at exchange
rates different from that by which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in
previous financial statements, are charged to specific income or expense items according to the
nature of the monetary item (exchange rate differences in respect of trade receivables are
recognized in revenues, exchange rate differences in respect of trade payables are recognized in
the cost of sales, exchange rate differences in respect of foreign currency loans are recognized in
financing costs, etc.).

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the statement
of financial position.
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Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities derived from foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, if applicable, are translated to Brazilian reals using the
exchange rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to
Brazilian reals using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in
the foreign currency translation reserve (translation reserve) in equity. When a foreign operation
is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative
amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining control, the relevant proportion of
the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group disposes
only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that includes a foreign operation while
retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount
is reclassified to profit or loss.

When applicable, when the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign currency gains
and losses arising from such item are considered part of the net investment in the foreign
operation and are recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in the translation
reserve in equity.

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments
The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities
category.

Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities - Recognition and derecognition
The Group initially recognizes loans and receivables on the date when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such
derecognized financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognized as a separate
asset or liability.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and
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intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

A financial instrument is recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the Group’s contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the Group transfers the financial
assets to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the
assets. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e., the date
that the Group commits itself to purchase or sell the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognized if
the Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.

Non-derivative financial assets - Measurement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held-for-
trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Directly attributable transaction costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognized in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and deposits that can be withdrawn
immediately. Cash equivalents also include short-term deposits where the deposit period on the
day of deposit does not exceed three months, and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Loans and receivables

Loans and other receivables which are not quoted in an active market are non-derivative
financial instruments, that are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses (see Note 5.9).

Should it become applicable, non-current receivables would be stated at their present value. The
interest rate used in order to calculate the present value is composed of the time value of the
receivable according to the currency of the receivable, plus the specific risk component of each
customer. Income in respect of interest is recorded over the period of the receivable as financial
income.

Non-derivative financial liabilities - Measurement

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

19



c.2

Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and

for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

Derivative financial instruments

The Group routinely uses derivative financial instruments in order to hedge against risks relating
to prices of commodities and against foreign currency risks arising from its operating, financing
and investing activities. The derivative financial instruments are comprised mainly of forward
transactions and options on currencies and of forward transactions and options on commodities.
Nonetheless, derivatives not considered accounting hedges are accounted for as financial
assets/liabilities and are presented at fair value through profit and loss as follows:

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value both initially and subsequent to
initial recognition, and are stated at fair value according to the market value of registered
instruments and the stated market value of forward currency contracts.

Changes in fair value are recognized as income or expense as incurred. Gains and losses on
commodity forward transactions are presented under cost of sales whereas other gains and
losses are presented under financing costs.

Inventories

Inventory is measured at the lower of the weighted average cost and net realizable value. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventory includes certain spare parts and maintenance equipment which will be used up within
one year.

Provision for slow-moving or obsolete inventory is recorded when deemed necessary by
management.

The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labor, other
direct cost and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity).

Fixed assets

Recognition and measurement
Fixed assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation (see below) and impairment
losses (see Note 5.9).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, an estimate of
the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located
(when the Group has an obligation to dismantle and remove the asset or to restore the site), and,
when applicable, capitalized borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of a fixed asset item are determined by comparing the net proceeds

from disposal with the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized net within “other
income” or “other expenses”, if relevant, in profit or loss.
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Subsequent expenditures
Improvements and enhancements are added to the cost of the assets, whereas maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Leasehold improvements
The construction costs on leased property, which will be transferred to the lessor’s ownership at
the end of the rental period, are amortized over the expected rental period on a straight-line basis.

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of each component of an item of fixed assets, other than land that is not depreciated.

The principal depreciation rates for the reporting periods are as follows:

%

Buildings 2-3
Machinery and equipment 7-10
Vehicles 16-20
Furnishing and other equipment 12
Leasehold improvements 10-100 (over the shorter of the expected lease period or the

estimated useful life of the asset)

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed on every balance sheet
date and the rates used for tax purposes may differ from the above rates.

In case of changes in the useful lives as a result of its reassessment, the new useful life is
applied prospectively.

An asset is depreciated from the date it is ready for use, meaning the date it reaches the location
and condition required for it to operate in the manner intended by management.

Intangible assets and Goodwill

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, and is presented
as part of intangible assets. In subsequent periods, goodwill is measured at cost, less
accumulated impairment losses. See also Note 5.g.

Other intangible assets
The intangible assets include brands, trademarks, computer software, distribution networks and
non-competition agreements that were acquired as part of business combination.

Amortization

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are measured at cost net of accumulated amortization
and impairment losses. Amortization is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets from the date they are available for use.
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The annual rates of amortization for the reporting periods are as follows (on a straight-line basis):

%

Computer software 33
Brands and trademarks - specifically those acquired in 3Corag¢des Sul business combination 20
List of customers 10
Other 20

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed on every balance sheet date.

In case of changes in the useful lives as a result of its reassessment, the new useful life is
applied prospectively.

Goodwill and brands, except for those brands acquired in 3Coragdes Sul business combination,
which have useful life of 5 years, have an indefinite useful life, and are not amortized for reporting
purposes. For tax purposes, Goodwill is amortized, according to Brazilian tax legislation.

The Group examines the useful life of an intangible asset that is not periodically amortized, at
least once a year, in order to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support
the decision that the intangible asset has an indefinite useful life.

g. Impairment
Non-financial assets

(i)  Timing of impairment testing
The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred
tax assets - see Notes 5.f and 5.1, respectively) are examined on each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For assets, including intangible assets, that have
indefinite useful lives, the Group estimates the recoverable amounts at least once a year. An
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount.

For the purposes of impairment testing, the goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of income in accordance with the nature of
the item that has been impaired. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating
units (CGU) are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis.
Goodwill impairment losses are classified as other expenses in the statement of income.

(i)  Calculation of the recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its net selling price (fair value less costs to sell). In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
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Reversal of impairment

Impairment losses recognized in previous periods are reexamined every reporting period in
order to determine whether there are any indications that the losses have decreased or no longer
exist. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount, but only if the carrying amount after the reversal of the
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount net of depreciation or amortization, that
would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized. Reversals of
impairment losses are included in the statement of income. Impairment losses in respect of
goodwill are not reversed.

Non-derivative financial assets

The impairment of financial assets, which are not presented at fair value adjusted through profit
and loss, including the trade receivables’ balance, is examined when objective evidence
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows
from such assets.

The financial statements include special provisions in respect of bad debts, which in
management opinion, adequately reflect the loss arising from those debts the collection of
which is doubtful. Management determination of the adequacy of the provision is based, inter
alia, on an evaluation of the risk, by considering the available information on the financial
position of the debtors, the volume of their business and an evaluation of the security received
from them. Bad debts, which according to management opinion are unlikely to be collected, are
written-off from the Group’s books.

An impairment loss in respect to the receivables balance, which is measured at amortized cost,
is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate, and is recognized
as selling and marketing expense in the statement of income.

Individually significant receivable balances are tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining customer balances are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit
risk characteristics.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized, and the reversal is recognized in the statement of
income.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money. The Group considers the present value of the liability,
to be equivalent to the future value, as the differences are not material.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount

cannot be estimated reliably, disclosure is provided of a contingent liability, except when the
possibility of the outflow of economic benefits is considered as remote.
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Government grants

Government grants are recorded in profit or loss when there is reasonable assurance that the
subsidy will be received or compensated and the conditions established for the subsidy will be
achieved by the Group. Afterwards, the revenue recognized in profit or loss is retained in equity.

The types of government grants received by the Group and their respective tax treatment are
described in Note 22.e.

Revenue

Goods sold

Revenue from the sales of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is
recognized by the Group when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is no expected continued
management involvement with the goods and the revenue can be measured reliably.

If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the
discounts are recognized as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognized.

Financial income and expenses

Financial income comprises interest income on deposits invested, financial income from
financial leases, and gains on derivative instruments (other than commodities) that are
recognized in the statement of income.

Financial expenses comprise interest expenses on loans and borrowings and foreign currency
variation gains and losses, net.

In the cash flow reports, interests received and interests paid are presented as part of cash flows
from operating activity. Dividends paid are presented under financing activity.

Income tax expenses
Income tax expenses comprise current and deferred tax. Income tax expenses are recognized in
the statement of income, unless it relates to a transaction or event recognized directly in equity.

Current tax

Current tax (in Brazil: “IRPJ” and “CSLL”) comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on
the taxable income or loss for the year and, when applicable, any adjustment to tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, considering also the effect of government grants as described in
Notes 21.c and 22.e.
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Deferred tax

Deferred taxes are recognized in relation to temporary differences between accounting balances
of assets and liabilities and the corresponding balance amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred
income tax is not recognized for:

temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements to the extent
that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for tax loss caryforwards, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be generated in
the future. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning after 1 January 2016, and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. Those which may be relevant to the Group are set out below.
The Group does not plan to adopt these standards early.

IFRS 9 (2014), Financial instruments (hereinafter - “IFRS 9”)

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
Under IFRS 9, financial assets are classified and measured based on the business model in
which they are held and the characteristics of their contractual cash flows. IFRS 9 introduces
additional changes relating to financial liabilities. The IASB currently has an active project to
make limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 and
add new requirements to address the impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption
permitted. No material impact from the adoption is expected. The Company also considers the
impact of the remaining phases of IFRS 9 when completed by the 1ASB.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (hereinafter - ""IFRS 15™)

IFRS 15 replaces the current guidance regarding recognition of revenues and presents a new
model for recognizing revenue from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 provides two
approaches for recognizing revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model includes five
steps for analyzing transactions so as to determine when to recognize revenue and at what
amount. Furthermore, IFRS 15 provides new and more extensive disclosure requirements than
those that exist under current guidance.
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IFRS 15 is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and earlier
application is permitted. The Company is yet to assess IFRS 15’s impact, and at this time, no
early application is planned.

Amendments to 1AS 1 (2014), Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to IAS 1 address concerns expressed about some of the existing presentation
and disclosure requirements in IAS 1 and ensure that entities are able to use judgement when
applying these requirements. In addition, the amendments clarify the requirements about
information to be presented as other comprehensive income.

Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with early application permitted. No material impact from the adoption is expected.

Cash and cash equivalents

R$

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Bank balances 67,540 36,524

Cash on hand 51 51
Short term deposits:

Deposits in banks (*) 92,405 51,200

159,996 87,775

Refers to short-term deposits, with high liquidity, classified as financial instruments at fair value through profit and
loss, readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These
deposits refer mainly to investments under repurchase agreements, with immediate liquidity, with interest of 93.4% of
the Brazilian Interbank Deposit rate (in 2014, 100.9% of the Brazilian Interbank Deposit rate).

Deposits

R$

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Deposits with brokers (*) 3,478 4,529

3,478 4,529

Refers to deposits made as margin requirements, classified as financial instruments at fair value through profit and
loss, with brokers responsible for derivative financial instrument operations, especially green coffee sell and buy
options.
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R$
31/12/2015  31/12/2014
315,356 287,112
13,829 18,978
1,427 660
330,612 306,750
(20,059) (15,279)
310,553 291,471
(5,901) (3,958)
304,652 287,513

Refers to discounts calculated based on volume rebates.

Provision calculated based on an assessment of past due receivables, adjusted according to an individual analysis of
the main customers with due debts, considering Management knowledge of the market and collection past record.

The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date was

Not past due

Past due 1 to 30 days
Past due 31 to 60 days
Past due 61 to 90 days
Past due 91 to 120 days

More than 120 days

R$
31/12/2015  31/12/2014
288,904 265,440
13,284 17,909
1,652 3,420
540 593
169 108
103 43
304,652 287,513

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debt accounts during the period was

Balance at 1 January

Provision in the year
Write-offs

Balance at 31 December

R$
2015 2014
(3,958) (4,613)
(3,297) (1,873)
1,354 2,528
(5,901) (3,958)
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Management assesses its credit risk exposure as low, once the trade receivables are not
concentrated, and there is a low level of concentration with the biggest customers. The biggest
customer represents 5.67% of 2015 gross revenue (4.80% in 2014).

Inventories
R$
31/12/2015  31/12/2014
Finished goods 175,332 164,619
Work in progress 237 257
Raw material 27,169 25,429
Packaging and other materials 25,590 23,435
Import in progress 12,892 -
Advances to suppliers 22,806 14,964
Other 13,257 8,099
277,283 236,803
Carrying amount of inventory pledged as security for financial liabilities (including
variable lien) 12,322 26,687

In 2015 the write-down of inventory to net realizable value amounted to R$ 1,581 (2014:
R$ 2,305), recorded in the statements of income, as cost of sales

Inventory includes spare parts and maintenance equipment, which will be used up within one
year.

Inventory balances are presented net of provision for obsolescence.

Recoverable taxes

R$

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Tax recoverable:

State VAT - ICMS 10,191 15,035
Federal VAT - PIS and COFINS 8,548 5,713
Other 74 1,570
Total 18,813 22,318
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State VAT recoverable is mainly originated in the factories, where the taxable amount on
outputs has decreased due to reduction in the tax rate, and the Company is allowed to
accumulate state VAT credits on purchases, the tax rate of which remained unchanged. In
addition, there are recoverable state VAT on purchases of fixed assets and imported single-dose
machines and capsules.

State VAT accumulated on purchases is used to compensate payable amounts calculated on
sales. In case the recoverable amounts are higher than payable amounts, the Company requests
restitution or compensations from tax authorities.

Federal VAT recoverable is mainly originated in purchase of green coffee for export activity,
once there is no federal VAT on sales, but there is recoverable federal VAT on purchases.

Other current and non-current assets

R$

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Assets:
Advances to suppliers 1,756 2,285
Advances to employees 2,117 1,886
Prepaid expenses 9,439 8,821
Special Bank Deposit for reinvestment 2,772 2,605
Non-current taxes 6,471 1,608
Sundry 1,697 1,700
24,252 18,905
Current assets (14,117) (14,690)
Non-current assets 10,135 4,215

Non-current taxes have increased mainly due to IPI credits accumulated at the Frisco factory.
Management had suspended their compensation due to the issue disclosed in Note 20.
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Related parties

The Group’s related parties are the parent companies of 50% shareholding each, related parties
of the parent companies, investee companies of both the Group and the parent companies and
members of the Board, senior management and their close family members, of both the Group
and the parent companies.

The prices and credit terms in respect of transactions with related parties are determined
according to customary commercial terms.

R$
31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Current assets
Trade receivables (Note 8)
Strauss Commodities AG 1,427 660
1,427 660
Current liabilities
Trade payables (Note 16)
Trés Coraces Imdveis Arm. Gerais e Serv. Ltda. 4,268 3,514
4,268 3,514
Profit or loss
Revenue
Strauss Commodities AG 5,203 20,985
5,203 20,985
Cost of sales
Strauss Commodities AG 4,439 20,339
4,439 20,339
Cost of sales
Trés Coraces Imdveis Arm. Gerais e Serv. Ltda. 1,777 1,785
1,777 1,785
Sales and general and administrative expenses
Trés Coraces Imdveis Arm. Gerais e Serv. Ltda. 2,844 2,532
2,844 2,532

Trade receivables, trade payables and sales

Trade receivables, trade payables and sales balances with related parties are due to operations of
purchase and sale of goods. Part of the facilities used by the Group is leased from Trés Coracdes
Iméveis Armazéns Gerais e Servicos Ltda.
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13 Fixed assets

R$
Furnishing
Land and Machinery and and other Leasehold

Cost buildings equipment Vehicles equipment improvements Total
Balances as of 1 January 2014 38,486 153,226 31,228 32,902 22,522 278,364
Additions 7,791 14,410 19,668 11,247 3,361 56,477
Itamaraty acquisition (Note 2) - 751 - - - 751
Disposals (120) (2,790) (1,404) (1,262) 777) (6,353)
Transfer between classes of assets (209) 164 ) (95) (73) (214)
Effect of changes in exchange rates 1,656 745 ®) 52 46 2,491
Balances as of 31 December 2014 47,604 166,506 49,483 42,844 25,079 331,516
Additions 3,030 19,254 1,529 11,946 6,573 42,332
Cafeteria acquisition (Note 2) - - - 68 - 68
Disposals (142) (6,146) (714) (2,238) (60) (9,300)
Transfer between classes of assets 33 66 (250) 1,413 54 1,316
Effect of changes in exchange rates 5613 (1,350) (124) (64) 568 4,643
Balances as of 31 December 2015 56,138 178,330 49,924 53,969 32,214 370,575
Accumulated depreciation

Balances as of 1 January 2014 (6,465) (57,750) (20,376) (16,016) (3,078) (103,685)
Additions (693) (9,831) (4,059) (3,707) (748) (19,038)
Disposals 26 1,894 1,277 446 (232) 3,411
Transfer between classes of assets 6 - 1 8 (23) (8)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (344) (537) 9 (42) (64) (978)
Balances as of 31 December 2014 (7,470) (66,224) (23,148) (19,311) (4,145) (120,298)
Additions (722) (11,054) (5,116) (4,734) (930) (22,556)
Disposals 45 2,781 531 450 33 3,840
Transfer between classes of assets 31 (202) (165) 309 (373) (400)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (1,312) 1,362 109 57 (243) (27)
Balances as of 31 December 2015 (9,428) (73,337) (27,789) (23,229) (5,658) (139,441)
Balance net as of

31 December 2014 40,134 100,282 26,335 23,533 20,934 211,218
31 December 2015 46,710 104,993 22,135 30,740 26,556 231,134
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The cost of significant machine overhauls, which prolongs the useful life of the machine, is
capitalized.

Leasehold improvements to leased premises are depreciated over the shorter of the expected
lease period or the estimated useful life of the asset.

Fixed assets purchased on credit - The balance of the trade payables due to fixed assets
purchased as of 31 December 2015 is R$ 2,106 (R$ 7,242 as of 31 December 2014), and the
balance of loans and borrowings due to fixed assets purchased, including interests, as of 31
December 2015 is R$ 30,271 (R$ 26,706 as of 31 December 2014).

In the year ended 31 December 2015, the amount of R$ 1,267, regarding TRES machines lent to
customers, was transferred from inventories to fixed assets.

The Group did not lease any land or buildings as of 31 December 2015 or 31 December 2014,
except for operational leases with Trés CoracOes Imdveis Armazéns Gerais e Servicos Ltda.

14 Intangible assets and goodwill

R$
Brands and Computer
Cost trademarks (*) software Goodwill Other Total
Balances as of 1 January 2014 1,497 8,083 152,087 6,267 167,934
Additions - 5,104 - 116 5,220
Itamaraty acquisition (Note 2) 701 - 30,179 - 30,880
Transfer between classes of assets - (281) - 503 222
Effect of changes in exchange rates - 3 6 9
Balances as of 31 December 2014 2,198 16,245 182,266 6,936 207,645
Additions - 4,279 14 1,858 6,151
Cafeteria acquisition (Note 2) - - 1,194 - 1,194
Provision for impairment (Note 2) - - (1,194) - (1,194)
Transfer between classes of assets 1,099 2 (6,699) 5,600 2

Effect of changes in exchange rates (9 (18) (27)
Balances as of 31 December 2015 3,297 20,517 175,581 14,376 213,771
Accumulated amortization

Balances as of 1 January 2014 - (7,149) - (6,055) (13,204)
Additions - (2,295) - (2,295)
Effect of changes in exchange rates - - (10) (10)
Balances as of 31 December 2014 - (9,444) - (6,065) (15,509)
Additions (300) (2,312) - (794) (3,406)
Transfer between classes of assets - 400 - (51) 349
Effect of changes in exchange rates - - 14 14
Balances as of 31 December 2015 (300) (11,356) N (6.896) (18,552)
Balance net as of

31 December 2014 2,198 6,801 182,266 871 192,136
31 December 2015 2,997 9,161 175,581 7,480 195,219

*) Only brands and trademarks acquired as a result of 3Coracdes Sul acquisition have definite useful life.
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Additions to computer software refer to software acquired by the Company for use in automated
process and software licenses acquired, such as:

in 2015, mainly SAP licenses, SAP business planning and consolidation (BPC), success factors
used for performance evaluation, EGT-I for process of goods import and export, bank
reconciliation and the SAP GRC access control update;

in 2014, mainly SAP and Microsoft licenses, SAP module TRM phase Il implementation, SAP
update to version EHP7 and activation of the Business Object (BO) software.

Impairment testing

As of 31 December 2015 intangible assets include an amount of R$ 177,078 that is attributable to
brands (except for those acquired in 3CoragGes Sul business combination) and goodwill, having an
indefinite useful life (31 December 2014 - R$ 184,464). These assets were assessed as having an
indefinite useful life since according to an analysis of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limitation of the period they are expected to generate positive cash flows for the Group.

The relevant factors that were analyzed included, inter alia, the length of time the brand or
trademark is anticipated to be used; the existence of legal or contractual restrictions on their use;
a review of the typical life cycle of similar branded products; the existence of indicators of
changes in life style, competitive environment, market requirements and industry trends, the
sales history of products of the same brand and the awareness of the market of the brand name
or trademark.

Impairment loss

The Company tests annually the recoverable amounts of goodwill and brands from business
combination transactions. Property, plant and equipment and definite life intangible assets that
are subject to depreciation and amortization are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Management analyses the business and makes decisions based on two different cash generating
units: green coffee and internal market. All goodwill is allocated to the internal market, as there
were no acquisitions associated to the green coffee business.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units are based on the calculation of their value
in use. These calculations use cash flow projections that are based on the most current three-
year strategic operating plans (SOP) of the relevant unit.

The cash flows for remaining periods are calculated using the relevant growth rate, which takes
into account the anticipated growth rates of the category, industry, country and population. The
estimated long-term growth rate was 3.0% in 2015 and of 3.0% in 2014. The projected cash
flows were discounted according to pre-tax discount rates of 9.4% in 2015 and of 7.2% in 2014.
Both 2015 and 2014 projected cash flows were prepared without inflation effects.

These discount rates reflect also the risk of the cash-generating units in each relevant year.

In 2015 and 2014, the Group did not recognize any impairment loss from the operation, except
for the one mentioned in Note 2 as a result of the Cafeteria acquisition.
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15 Short and long term loans

a. Loans schedule

Annual interest rate Index R$
31/12/2015  31/12/2014 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Brazilian reals loans and borrowings
Loans for acquisition of machines and vehicles 5.41 5.03 TILP 30,271 25,926
Incentivized loan for projects in development
regions (FNE) 7.50 750 - 12,298 17,765
Working capital loans 14.68 8.70 CDI 113,374 35,644
Loans for acquisition of green coffee 9.11 642 - 59,744 58,178
215,687 137,513
United States dollar loans and borrowings
Loans for acquisition of inventories (ACC) 1.28 112 - 106,065 101,252
Loans for acquisition of inventories (PPE) 3.15 272 - 39,297 72,001
Working capital loans 3.15 325 - 17,740 51,308
Loans for acquisition of machines - 318 - - 780
163,102 225,341
Total loans and borrowings 378,789 362,854
(-) Current liabilities (194,222) (281,034)
(=) Non-current liabilities 184,567 81,820

There are no debt covenants on the Group’s loans and borrowings contracts with the banks.

b.  Non-current payment schedule

R$

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

13 to 24 months 57,964 31,063
25 to 36 months 111,144 35,974
37 to 48 months 4,407 4,828
49 to 60 months 4,037 3,407
Thereafter 7,015 6,548

184,567 81,820

c. Guarantees
The following liens have been provided as security for the liabilities of the Group:

R$

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Liens registered in favor of the banks 53,506 48,958
Mortgages registered in favor of the banks 29,263 29,263
82,769 78,221
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Trade payables

R$
31/12/2015 31/12/2014
National suppliers 84,460 75,477
Related party suppliers (Note 12) 4,268 3,514
Foreign suppliers 12,452 -
101,180 78,991

Employees and other payroll related liabilities

R$
31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Payroll and related charges 5,861 5,440
Provision for vacation 19,867 17,900
Provision for variable remuneration 7,054 10,597
Other 7,699 5,949
40,481 39,886

The Group Employees benefits' treatment is in accordance with local legal requirements. These
requirements mainly call for and are limited to monthly contributions to Social Security funds
(INSS, FGTS). The Group has no obligations under defined benefits or defined contribution
plans. The Group offers other short-term benefits to its employees, which are expensed when
incurred

Payable taxes

R$
31/12/2015  31/12/2014
Tax payable:
State VAT - ICMS 14,202 14,844
Federal VAT - PIS and COFINS 248 109
Other 1,921 1,186
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19 Other current and non-current liabilities

R$

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Liabilities:
Advances from customers 1,070 812
Accounts payable for acquisition of operations - Polo 3,424 4,965
Accounts payable for acquisition of operations - Fino Gréo 2,498 2,247
Accounts payable for acquisition of operations - Cafeteria 100 -
Other provision - marketing services 10 1,124
Provision for insurance 1,646 192
Payable for acquisition of fixed assets 2,106 7,242
Handling commission 1,632 5,960
Sundry 10,753 8,309
Total 23,239 30,851
Current liabilities (23,239) (27,828)
Non-current liabilities - 3,023

20  Provision for legal proceedings
Based on information from its legal advisors, an analysis of the pending legal proceedings, and
previous experience with regards to amounts claimed, the Group recorded provisions for
amounts considered sufficient to cover probable losses from current legal actions. The amounts
of probable and possible losses with respect to legal and administrative actions against the
Group are as follows:

R$

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Probable Possible Remote Probable Possible Remote
loss loss loss loss loss loss
Labor* 16,541 33,140 76,192 16,262 25,260 63,053
Tax** 3,785 17,727 156,368 253 22,496 133,251
Civil 362 5,720 6,940 793 5,135 5,679
20,688 56,587 239,500 17,308 52,891 201,983

™) The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to a number of labor claims filed by former employees and service
providers challenging, among other things, unpaid overtime, night shift premiums and risk premiums, employment
guarantees, and the reimbursement of withholdings from payroll such as social contributions and trade union charges,
among others.

**) Tax claims details by type are demonstrated in the following table.
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R$

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Probable Possible  Remote Probable Possible Remote
loss loss loss loss loss loss
State VAT - ICMS 29 11,544 5,479 128 10,784 5,036
Federal VAT - PIS/COFINS/IPI 3,645 6,057 119,130 104 5,379 95,837
Income taxes (IRPJ/CSLL) - - 23,817 - - 22,063
Social contribution (INSS) - - 7,426 - 6,229 10,152
Other 111 126 516 21 104 163
3,785 17,727 156,368 253 22,496 133,251

The main legal claims are listed below:

Goodwill amortization - tax authorities claim that the Group does not meet all criteria to deduct
Goodwill amortization for tax purposes. The Group and its tax advisors are of the opinion that
the Group is entitled to the full tax relief of the Goodwill amortization and there is no need to
record any liability. As of 31 December 2015 the amount of the legal claim was R$ 23,817

(R$ 22,063 as of 31 December 2014). The claim amount increased due to interest incurred,;

Investment subsidies - revenues arising from investment subsidies granted by the Government
are not subject to taxation, according to Brazilian tax laws. However, tax authorities claim that
the tax incentives granted to the Group should not be classified as investment subsidies. In May
2013, the Group had favorable outcome in the first administrative instance, but the Government
contested the ruling at the second administrative level, with no final outcome yet. As of 31
December 2015 and as of 31 December, 2014, the amount of legal claim was R$ 12,139;

Federal VAT (PIS/COFINS) credits - tax authorities claim that the Group (together with most
other coffee companies in Brazil) had purchased green coffee from de facto, but not legally
constituted companies in order to receive more PIS and COFINS credits and demand the
difference between the total credit and the presumed credit, which amounted as of 31 December
2015 to R$ 56,518 (R$ 51,190 as of 31 December, 2014). Part of the total amount, R$ 1,622,
had its risk of loss reviewed to probable, and was provisioned in December 2015. Another part
of the total amount, R$ 2,592 was classified as possible loss. For the remaining amount, the
Group and its tax advisors are of the opinion that there is no need to record any liability. The
increase is due to interest incurred.

Federal excise tax (IPI) - tax authorities claim the tax treatment applied, in respect to federal tax
IPI - tax on certain industrialized goods, for powder juice was incorrect. According to the
Company’s understanding of the regulation, powder juice is a product classified as zero IPI tax.
According to tax authorities, the Company should have used tax rates of 27% for the period
from January 2011 to December 2011, 20% for the period from January 2012 to May 2012 and
10% since June 2012. The total updated claim, as of 31 December 2015 is R$ 34,039. The
Group and its tax advisors are of the opinion that there is no need to record any liability.

The legal claims detailed above, except for the mentioned part of the Federal VAT
(PIS/COFINS) claim, are classified as remote loss as of 31 December 2015.
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Changes in provision for legal proceedings during the year

Balance as of 1 January
Provisions made during the year

Legal proceedings closed during the year

Balance as of 31 December

Judicial deposits
The Group has, as of 31 December 2015, the amount of R$ 15,404 of judicial deposits
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R$
2015 2014
17,308 15,001
6,782 6,062
(3,402) (3,845)
20,688 17,308

(R$ 14,390 as of 31 December 2014). These deposits were required by courts associated to

Income taxes and social contribution

Amounts recognized in profit and loss

Current taxes
Deferred taxes

Tax in income statement as of 31 December

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Income before taxes on income
Income tax expenses (34%)

Adjustments to reconcile to effective tax rate:

State VAT incentives

Foreign exchange effects of subsidiary

Benefit of Goodwill amortization for tax purposes

Federal incentive - “Exploration profit”

Federal incentive - “Re-investment”

Benefit of previously unrecognized Carryforward tax losses at subsidiary
Recognition of deferred tax assets on Carryforward tax losses
Incineration of goods and inventory write-offs

Other

Tax in Income Statement

Effective tax rate

38

various open legal proceedings and comprise a number of individual case deposits of smaller
amounts.

R$
31/12/2015 31/12/2014
25,054 30,880
(11,039) (13,091)
14,015 17,789
R$
31/12/2015 31/12/2014
186,035 199,902
63,252 67,967
(17,484) (12,729)
(13,902) (6,707)
(2,959) (2,959)
(10,558) (17,861)
(634) (1,063)
(2,031) (4,004)
(9,915) (5,303)
4477 3,362
3,770 (2,914)
14,016 17,789
7.53% 8.90%
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

R$

Social

Income  contribution
Temporary differences Basis tax (*) (9%0) 31/12/2015  31/12/2014
Provision for legal proceedings 20,688 4,022 1,862 5,884 5,387
Inventory adjustments 3,866 801 348 1,149 2,138
Provision for doubtful debt accounts 5,901 1,060 531 1,591 1,017
Hedging transactions (1,732) (330) (156) (486) 64
Provision for discounts 20,059 3,837 1,805 5,642 4,683
Provision for variable remuneration 7,054 1,238 635 1,873 3,622
Provision for revenue recognition 1,761 342 158 500 827
Fixed assets revaluation (3,997) (999) (360) (1,359) (1,152)
Goodwill amortization (92,263) (12,151) (8,304) (20,455) (20,131)
Carryforward tax losses 44,760 11,190 4,028 15,218 5,303
Other 7,502 1,666 677 2,343 (897)
Total net deferred tax 13,599 10,676 1,224 11,900 861
Non-current assets 23,324 17,149
Non-current liabilities (11,424) (16,288)

Income tax rate (excluding the Social contribution) is 25%, applicable to all Group’s subsidiaries. However, as the
Company has tax incentives (see Note 22.e), the Group’s future average income tax rate expected to be applied when
the deferred tax is realized or settled, is 13.17%. However, Brazilian law applies specific tax rates to each legal entity
within the Group.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management estimates future taxable
income and the timing of reversal of the temporary differences. When it is more likely than not
that a part or all of the deferred tax assets are not recoverable, such a portion is not recorded by
the Company. Under Brazilian tax law, tax loss carry forwards (including those of the Social
contribution) do not expire, however, their use is limited to up to 30% of annual taxable income
and they do not benefit from any interest or monetary correction.

Considering the occurrence of taxable profit in recent years, the Group assessed the future
taxable profits in order to calculate deferred tax asset on accumulated losses. One of the Group
subsidiaries, Café Trés Coracdes S.A., has as of 31 December 2015, R$ 44,760 (31 December
2014, R$ 51,010) of accumulated losses. The Group concluded that it is more probable than not
that the full amount of R$ 44,760 of accumulated losses will be used in the foreseeable future,
which corresponds to a deferred tax asset of R$ 15,218.

Other subsidiaries, 3Cora¢es Sul Comércio Atacadista de Produtos Alimenticios Ltda. and
Principal Comércio e Industria de Café Ltda. have as of 31 December 2015, respectively,

R$ 1,534 and R$ 5,454 of accumulated losses. However, due to history of recent losses, it is
more probable than not that in the foreseeable future the accumulated losses will not be used.

In November 2013, the Provisional Measure (MP) 627 was enacted by the Brazilian Federal

Government, and converted by Congress in May 2014 into Law 12.973/14, introducing changes
in the tax rules and eliminating the Transitional Tax System (RTT).
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This measure determines the tax treatment under the new Brazilian accounting rules, introduced
by Laws 11,638/2007 and 11,941/2008, whose principal purpose was to integrate the existing
Brazilian accounting rules with the international financial reporting standards (IFRS). The
measure brings, among others, modifications to the determination of the basis of corporate
income taxes (IRPJ and CSLL) in relation to goodwill generated on the acquisition of
shareholdings in subsidiaries, as well as treatment of goodwill generated in merger and
acquisition operations, adjustments to the fair valuation of the investee, and pre-operational
expenses and financial leasing.

In accordance with the Law, the new rules were effective for calendar year of 2015, but could be
optionally adopted already for the calendar year of 2014, when the Company has concluded that
there were no material effects to be recorded.

Equity

Share capital
As of 31 December 2015 and 2014, Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.”s share capital is comprised of
the following:

R$
Shareholders 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 %
Strauss Coffee B.V. 136,184.9 135,8345 50%
S30 Miguel Fundo de Investimento em Participagtes 136,184.9 1358345  50%
272,369.8 271,669.0

Share capital as of 31 December 2014 was comprised of 27,166,897,167 shares with a nominal
value of R$ 0,01 (one cent) each. On 29 June 2015, an increase in share capital with resources
from tax incentive of re-investment, in the amount of R$ 701 took place. As a result, 70,088,254
shares with a nominal value of R$ 0.01 (one cent) were issued.

Translation adjustments

Management decided to use two different functional currencies, according to IAS 21 - Effects of
changes in foreign exchange rates. For internal market operations, the functional currency is the
Brazilian real (R$). For the green coffee export activity, the functional currency is the United States
dollar (US$).

Management assessed the Company operations in order to present its green coffee export activity as
a “foreign operation”, as established by IAS 21 - Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates, and,
thereby, could apply separate accounting for the purposes of consolidation.

The main reasons to treat the green coffee export activity as a separated operation were:

The export activity has its own management, which is considered independent in terms of
decisions about green coffee purchases and sales (export entity).
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The exchange rate effects recorded in the translation adjustments arise from the following assets
and liabilities, for the years ended on 31 December 2015 and 2014:

R$
Trés Coragdes Café Trés
31/12/2015 Alimentos Coracoes Total
Inventories - (641) (641)
Fixed assets 3,701 915 4,616
Intangible assets (13) - (13)
Trade receivables - 12,197 12,197
Derivatives 272 473 745
Cost of sales - 610 610
Loans and borrowings - (54,440) (54,440)
Total 3,960 (40,886) (36,926)
R$
Trés Corages Café Trés
31/12/2014 Alimentos Coragdes Total
Inventories - 29 29
Fixed assets 1,513 - 1,513
Intangible assets 1) - (1)
Trade receivables - 9,046 9,046
Derivatives (59) 117 58
Cost of sales - 421 421
Loans and borrowings - (29,252) (29,252)
Total 1,453 (19,639) (18,186)

Revaluation reserve (subsidiary)

Created at the subsidiary Café Trés Coracdes S.A., based upon valuation report issued by
independent specialists. The revaluation reserve is being realized through depreciation or disposal
of the revaluated assets against retained earnings, net of tax effects.

Management decided to maintain the revaluation reserve balance until its full realization, according
to Law 11,638/07.

Dividends

Dividends are calculated in accordance with the terms agreed upon in the Shareholders
Agreement, with rate of 35% over net income, adjusted by financial results. This amount is
provisioned as proposed dividend in the balance sheet, subject to the approval by the General
shareholders meeting.

On 4 May 2015, the dividends related to 2014 profits were approved by the General
shareholders” meeting in the amount of R$ 71,822, which represents additional R$ 2,726 when
compared to the original provision, made in December of 2014 based upon Management’s
proposal at the time. Part of the approved dividends was paid in two installments, in the amount
of R$ 1,363 each, in May and June 2015. The remaining amount, R$ 69,096, is expected to be
paid, in accordance with the Board recommendation, in two equally divided installments, in
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2016 and 2017. Management’s proposal for the 2015 profit destination is to pay dividend in the
amount of R$ 65,453 in December 2016.

Retained earnings

Legal reserve
Created at the rate of 5% on profit for the year, limited to 20% of share capital, as shown below:

R$

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Profit for the year (*) 173,804 183,276
5% 5%
Legal reserve (*) 8,690 9,164

The reserve is calculated based on Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A. per solo profit above, which is different from the
consolidated one due to the elimination of un-realized profit in intercompany transactions, in the amount of R$ 1,785
in 2015. In 2014, the amount of un-realized profit in intercompany transaction eliminated was R$ 1,163.

This reserve can only be used for capital increases or absorption of losses.

Tax incentives reserve

Until 31 December 2007, all amounts of tax incentives were recognized in capital reserve, and
starting 1 January 2008, due to changes implemented by Law 11,638/07, were recognized in profit
or loss, and then designated to the tax incentives reserve. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Company received government grants in the amount of R$ 42,816 (R$ 40,321 in the year ended
31 December 2014). The tax incentive reserve cannot be distributed as dividends. If the Company
distributes it in the future, the amounts have the following treatment depending on the incentive:

Federal incentives - the amount of income taxes not paid and distributed as dividends, must be
paid as back taxes, as if there was no incentive;

Other incentives - the amount distributed must be added back to the taxable income used for
calculating income tax and social contribution, under a combined rate of up to 34% in the period
of the distribution, and will be also subject to PIS and COFINS taxes (currently 9.25%) on the
distributed amount.

These government incentives are as follows:

PROVIN - Cear4 State

The Government of the State of Ceard, in accordance with the state public policies geared
towards promoting the industrial development of Ceard, decided to provide financial assistance
for the investments necessary for installation of the industrial unit in the city of Eusébio - CE.
The incentive consists of the postponement of payment of the ICMS state VAT tax and the
deduction of 56.25% of total sales of vacuum line. The incentive is valid until July 2018. In
order to maintain the incentive, the Company committed to: (a) finalize appropriately the
investment project; (b) utilize the incentives exclusively for the project; (c) have no overdue tax
and labor obligations; (c) keep the headquarters in the State of Ceara and have no changes in the
Company’s ownership involving third parties for the duration of the incentive contract, currently
until July of 2018.
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PROADI - Rio Grande do Norte State

The government of the State of Rio Grande do Norte, in the interest of the development of this
State, decided to grant financial assistance to the investments necessary for the 3Corag6es
industrial units in the cities of Natal and Mossor6. The benefit consists of the postponement of
payment of the tax and the subsequent deduction of up to 75% of ICMS state VAT payable. In
order to maintain the incentive, the Company committed to have no overdue tax and labor
obligations and keep the plant related to the project in the State of Rio Grande do Norte.

The incentives are valid at least until September 2020 (the Mossor6 unit) and March 2023 (the
Natal unit).

Other
The Group has received certain tax incentives and special tax regimes also in other Brazilian
states.

Federal incentive - “Re-investment”
The Group is allowed to allocate part of its income tax payable to capital investments. The
projects associated with these investments are submitted to the authorities’ approval.

The allocated amount is recognized in profit or loss at the moment of the Group’s decision to
proceed, since there is reasonable assurance the grant will be approved.

Federal incentive - “Exploration profit”

The Group benefits from the income tax exemption of 75% of the operating income derived
from its main activities at the units of Eusébio (State of Ceara), Natal and Mossor6 (State of Rio
Grande do Norte).

According to the rules for income tax government grants, until 2007 the amount, for local
purposes, was charged directly to capital reserve - investment subsidy. Starting 2008, due to the
effects of Law 11,638/07, the amount is charged to profit or loss, and then set aside from profit
for the year to retained earnings - tax incentives.

Reserve for profit to be distributed
Management decided to create reserve for profit to be distributed, for the remaining profit after
all destinations above.

Revenue
R$

2015 2014

Gross revenue:
Products - domestic 2,747,227 2,420,765
Products - foreign 240,329 335,880
Services 429 588
Other 194 740
Taxes on sales (200,426) (204,843)
Deductions (247,630) (200,631)
2,540,123 2,352,499
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R$
2015 2014
According to source
Cost of sales - domestic (1,598,694) (1,309,251)
Cost of sales - foreign (201,871) (328,980)
(1,800,565) (1,638,231)
R$
2015 2014
According to components
Materials consumed (1,715,345) (1,560,528)
Wages, salaries and related expenses (38,557) (35,151)
Depreciation and amortization (10,284) (9,391)
Services contracted (10,837) (10,675)
Maintenance (6,048) (5,843)
Other (19,494) (16,643)
(1,800,565) (1,638,231)
Selling and marketing expenses by nature
R$
2015 2014
Wages, salaries and related expenses (190,155) (170,050)
Depreciation and amortization (10,952) (8,509)
Transport expenses (83,083) (78,823)
Export expenses (5,444) (9,591)
Services contracted (33,586) (26,451)
Marketing (86,679) (112,812)
Travel expenses (8,697) (8,307)
Other (19,217) (16,844)
(437,813) (431,387)
General and administrative expenses by nature
R$
2015 2014
Wages, salaries and related expenses (37,036) (30,334)
Tax expenses (5,083) (4,763)
Depreciation and amortization (4,726) (3,433)
Services contracted (18,198) (14,108)
Provision for legal proceedings (3,880) (2,217)
Travel expenses (3,242) (2,903)
Other (9,962) (9,283)
(82,127) (67,041)
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Finance expenses, net

Finance expenses

Interest expenses

Interest on loans and borrowings
Exchange rate effect

Other

Finance income
Interest income

Interest from deposits

Financial instruments and risk management

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Short term deposits - Deposits in banks (Note 6)
Deposits with brokers (Note 7)

Loans and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)

Trade receivables with third parties (Note 8)
Trade receivables with related parties (Note 8)
Other

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Trade payables (Note 16)

Loans and borrowings (Note 15)

Other

Risk management

R$
2015 2014
(Reclassified)
(1,330) (916)
(19,973) (14,289)
(16,356) (3,847)
(3,237) (3,630)
(40,896) (22,682)
3,666 2,887
4,654 4,237
8,320 7,124
(32,576) (15,558)
R$
31/12/2015 31/12/2014
92,405 51,200
3,478 4,529
67,591 36,575
303,225 286,853
1,427 660
31,429 29,402
101,180 78,991
378,789 362,854
156,718 96,112

The Group is exposed to the following risks as a result of using financial instruments:

Credit risk
Commodity price risk

Interest rate risk
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Foreign currency risk
Liquidity risk
Capital structure risk.

This note provides information regarding the exposure of the Group to these risks and regarding
the policy of the Group for management of such risks.

In the sensitivity analyses, the Group used the following models:

Options - Black & Scholes model, standard deviation and quotations of relevant underlying
assets.

Forward transactions sensitivity analyses are determined according to the changes in the price of
the relevant underlying asset and interest differences deriving from interest rates and storage
costs (for green coffee).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of the Group incurring a monetary loss if a customer or counterparty does
not meet its contractual obligations, and it derives mainly from debit balances of customers. In
order to mitigate this risk, the Group assesses the financial situation of its customers or
counterparties, as well as defines credit limits and monitors outstanding debts.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

R$

31/12/2015  31/12/2014

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) 159,996 87,775
Deposits with brokers (Note 7) 3,478 4,529
Trade receivables (Note 8) 304,652 287,513
Other receivables 3,814 3,586
Other 18,176 16,995

490,116 400,398

Management assesses its credit risk exposure as low, once the trade receivables are not
concentrated. The biggest customer represents 5.67% of 2015 gross revenue (4.80% in 2014).

In addition, provision for doubtful debt accounts amounts to R$ 5,901 as of 31 December 2015
(R$ 3,958 as of 31 December 2014), which represents 1.90% (1.36% as of 31 December 2014)
of total trade receivables balance, to properly reflect the existing credit risk. Management
understands the increase in provision for doubtful debt percentage is a consequence of the
economic crisis in Brazil.

Commaodity price risk

The prices of raw materials used in manufacture (primarily green coffee) of the Group’s
products are affected, among other things, by uncontrollable factors, such as weather conditions.
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Green coffee export business

For its green coffee export activity, the Group covers it fixed future sales agreements by both
physical inventory, fixed future purchase agreements and uses financial derivatives to a limited
extent. Below is a table with the quantities of bags (60 kg each) which the Group was
committed to purchase or sell in the future, as of 31 December 2015 and 2014:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Purchase agreements:

Fixed price 52,800 216,649
Sales agreements:

Fixed price 101,960 243,560

Price to be fixed 1,920 47,313

Green coffee for the industry (internal market)

For its internal market production the Group principally seeks to manage its industry green
coffee price exposure by managing its physical inventory of green coffee, its green coffee future
purchases and only uses financial derivatives to a limited extent. When green coffee prices are
attractive, the Group typically increases its coverage in advance of any expected price increases.
Similarly, when green coffee prices are deemed high, the Group decreases its coverage of green
coffee in anticipation of lower prices in the future. The Group coverage can normally range
from as low as 2 months to up to 6 months.

Commodity financial derivatives - both green coffee export business and internal market
In prior years, the Group had engaged in future contracts and option contracts for the purchase
and sale of commaodities.

As of 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were no open derivatives positions and no sensitivity
analysis was required. Management has focused its hedging for green coffee prices variations in
purchase and sales agreements, presented above.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group does not use derivative financial instrument in order to reduce exposure to risks
arising from changes in interest rates.
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At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's interest bearing financial instrument
was:

Carrying amount

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
R$

Fixed rate instruments
Financial liabilities (158,565) (181,466)
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets 95,883 55,729
Financial liabilities (220,224) (181,388)
Net exposure (282,906) (125,659)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments - CDI and TJLP
Changes in the interest rates as of the report date would increase (decrease) equity and the
income or loss of the following period by the amounts presented below. This analysis was
performed assuming that all the other variables remain the same.

31 December 2015

Decrease Decrease of Annual weighted  Increase of  Increase of
of 2% 1% interest 1% 2%
R$
Total 2,487 1,243 (6,958) (1,243) (2,487)

31 December 2014

Decrease Decrease of Annual weighted  Increase of  Increase of
of 2% 1% interest 1% 2%
R$
Total 2,513 1,257 (2,906) (1,257) (2,513)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Fixed interest assets and liabilities of the Group (such as deposits and loans) are not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, any change in the interest rate as of the report date
would not have an effect on the statement of income.

Inflation rate

Brazilian inflation was 10.67% for the year ended 31 December 2015 as measured by the IPCA
consumer price index of the independent Fundagdo Getulio VVargas, however Brazilian economy
is still not considered as hyperinflationary according to 1AS 29 - financial reporting on
hyperinflationary economies. Management is aware of the high inflation rate impact in the
Group’s financial statements.
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d.  Foreign currency risk

Exposure to currency risk
The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:

Exposure to US$

R$

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Financial liabilities

Short term loans and credit (17,740) (40,135)
Long term loans and credit - (11,953)
Total exposure (17,740) (52,088)

Sensitivity analysis to currency risk

Any change in the exchange rates of the principal currency, Brazilian Reals, versus foreign
exchange rate currencies, mainly United States Dollars, as of 31 December would have
increased (decreased) equity and the income or loss by the amounts presented below. This
analysis was performed assuming that all the other variables remain the same and disregards use
of hedging instruments and tax effects.

The sensitivity analysis relates to foreign currency risk arising from financial items denominated
in foreign currency that is not the functional currency of the Group and its investee companies.
Therefore, the foreign currency risk arising from the translation of financial statements of foreign
operations, which is reflected in a translation reserve, is not included in this sensitivity analysis.

31 December 2015

Decrease Exchange rate Increase Increase
of 10% Decrease of 5%  carrying amount of 5% of 10%
R$
Functional currency
BRL/USD exchange rate 3,5143 3,7096 3,9048 4,1000 4,2953
Effect in R$ Thousand 1,774 887 (17,740) (887) (1,774)

31 December 2014

Decrease of Exchange rate Increase  Increase
10%  Decrease of 5%  carrying amount of 5% of 10%
R$
Functional currency
BRL/USD exchange rate 2,3906 2,5234 2,6562 2,7890 2,9218
Effect in RS Thousand 5,209 2,604 (52,088) (2604) _ (5.209)
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The Group uses derivative financial instruments in order to reduce exposure to risks arising
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. As of 31 December 2015, the derivative
financial instruments of the Group were as follows:

Expiration/ Face

Currency Currency Maturity/ value

receivable payable sale R$

Forward currency contracts Us$ R$ Feb/2016 17,010

Presented hereunder is a sensitivity analysis of the Group’s derivative instruments (foreign
currency) as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 in R$. Any change in the exchange
rates of the principal currency, Brazilian Reals, versus foreign exchange rate currencies, mainly
United States Dollars, as of 31 December, would have increased (decreased) the income or loss
and the equity by the amounts presented below (in R$). This analysis was performed assuming
that all the other variables remain the same, and disregards tax effects.

31 December 2015

Decrease Decrease Exchange rate Increase Increase
of 10% of 5% carrying amount of 5% of 10%
R$
Functional currency
BRL/USD exchange rate 3,5143 3,7096 3,9048 4,1000 4,2953
Effect Of forwards (1,660) (830) 110 830 1,660

31 December 2014

Decrease Decrease Exchange rate Increase Increase
of 10% of 5% carrying amount of 5% of 10%
R$
Functional currency
BRL/USD exchange rate 2,3906 2,5234 2,6562 2,7890 2,9218
Effect of forwards (2,694) (1,347) 386 1,347 2,694
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The following are the contractual maturities of financial
liabilities, including estimated interest payments and the impact of netting agreements. This
analysis is based on indices known as of 31 December, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates.

31 December 2015

Carrying Contractual

amount cash flow 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020  Thereafter
R$

Non-derivative
financial liabilities:
BRL long term loan 145,519 173,731 - 37,506 119,694 4,820 4,330 7,381
BRL credit from bank 70,168 73,206 73,206 - - - - -
USD long term loan 39,048 40,278 - 40,278 - - - -
USD credit from bank 124,054 125,007 125,007 - - - - -
Trade payables 101,180 101,180 101,180 - - - - -
Other payables 62,650 62,650 62,650 - - - - R
Total 542,713 576,146 362,137 77,784 119,694 4,820 4,330 7,381

31 December 2014

Carrying Contractual

amount cash flow 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter
R$

Non-derivative
financial liabilities:
BRL long term loan 43,305 57,375 - 23,555 12,311 6,195 4,165 11,149
BRL credit from bank 94,208 100,754 100,754 - - - - -
USD long term loan 38,515 40,692 - 14,097 26,192 403 - -
USD credit from bank 186,826 191,970 191,970 - - - - -
Trade payables 78,991 78,991 78,991 - - - - -
Other payables 66,902 66,902 66,902 - - - - R
Total 508,747 536,684 438,617 37,652 38,503 6,598 4,165 11,149

Capital structure management

Management policy is to maintain a solid capital base in order to maintain investors” and market
trust, as well as to maintain the future development of the business. Management monitors
returns on capital, which the Group defines as the relation between operational profit and total
equity. Management monitors as well the dividend amounts distributed to the shareholders.

Management seeks to maintain a balanced level of returns to the shareholders with low risk
level of net debt and a healthy capital structure.
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The Group’s equity and working capital versus net debt at the end of each year are presented

below:

Debt (Note 15)
Less: cash and cash equivalent (Note 6)

Net debt

Total equity

Equity/net debt ratio as of 31 December
Trade receivables (Note 8)

Inventories (Note 9)

Trade payables (Note 16)

Total working capital

Working capital/net debt ratio as of 31 December

Fair Value

R$
31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(Reclassified)
378,789 362,854
(159,996) (87,775)
218,793 275,079
532,372 465,457
2.43 1.69
304,652 287,513
277,283 236,803
(101,180) (78,991)
480,755 445,325
2.20 1.62

As of 31 December 2015 and of 2014, the fair value of financial instruments, as well as the
carrying amounts presented in the financial statements are identified below:

Financial assets

Short term deposits - Deposits in banks (Note 6)
Deposits with brokers (Note 7)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)

Trade receivables with third parties (Note 8)
Trade receivables with related parties (Note 8)
Other

Financial liabilities

Trade payables (Note 16)

Loans and borrowings (Note 15)
Other

R$
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
31/12/2015 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 31/12/2014
92,405 92,405 51,200 51,200
3,478 3,478 4,529 4,529
67,591 67,591 36,575 36,575
303,225 303,225 286,853 286,853
1,427 1,427 660 660
31,429 31,429 29,402 29,402
101,180 101,180 78,991 78,991
378,789 358,387 362,854 358,571
156,718 156,718 96,112 96,112

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined by reference to price at which they
could be exchanged in a current transaction between parties willing to negotiate, and not in a
forced sale or liquidation. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair value:

Regarding derivative balances, the Group used the fair value reported in the brokers’ statements,
which is identified in the Fair value hierarchy as the Level 2 of source of information.

52



(i)
(i)

(iii)

29

Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and

for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

The amounts of deposits presented in the financial statements as cash and cash equivalents are
close to its realizable value because the operations are performed at variable interest rate and are
immediately convertible to a determined amount of cash.

The fair value of non-negotiable instruments, bank loans and other debts, as well as other non-
current financial liabilities, are estimated using discounted future cash flows at the rates
currently available for similar instruments.

Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy to determine and disclose the fair values of financial
instruments, based on the valuation methodology used:

Level 1: quoted prices in an active market for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all of the data having a significant effect on the fair value
recorded are observable, directly or indirectly;

The fair value of assets and liabilities that are not quoted in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the asset or liability is considered as valued from Level 3
source of information.

Specific valuation techniques that might be used to value financial instruments in general
include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows based on observable yield curves;

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

Level 3: inputs for valuing a financial instrument that are not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs). As of 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had no financial
instruments classified at Level 3.

Subsequent event

On 19 January 2016, the Company has obtained favorable outcome in the Board of Tax Appeals
(CARF), first administrative instance, on the Goodwill amortization tax claim mentioned in
Note 20.

The Government may still contest the outcome at higher instances.
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Insurance
The Group hires insurance coverage for assets exposed to risks. The Management believes the

coverage is in an amount sufficient to cover eventual losses, considering the nature of the
Group’s activities.

On 31 December 2015, insurance coverage against operational risk comprised R$ 89,414

(R$ 83,776 on 31 December 2014) for material damage, R$ 131,172 (R$ 120,078 on 31
December 2014) for lost profits, R$ 3,500 (R$ 3,500 on 31 December 2014) for civil
responsibility and R$ 15,000 (R$ 15,000 on 31 December 2014) for directors and members of
the executive team civil responsibility.
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